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Selected key consolidated financial data

Year ended December 31

2012 011 2010 2009 2008

Consglidated data
Revenues {a) 28994 28813 78,878 27,132 25,392
EBITA {a) Ib) 5283 5860 5,726 5,3% 4953
Earmings attnibutable ta Viveadh SA shareownars 164 2,681 2,198 830 2603
Adjusted net income {b) 2550 2952 2,648 2,585 2,135
Financial Met Dehbt (bl {c) 13419 12027 8073 9566 8349
Total equity (d) 21436 22070 28,173 26,988 26 626

of which Vivendi SA shareowners equity {d) 18,465 19,447 24,058 22017 22,515
Cash flow from operations, before capital expenditures, net (CFFQ before capex, net} 7872 8034 8,569 1.79% 7056
Capital expenditures net (capex net) (e} {4 4490) {3340) (3,357) (2 562 (2001
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) (b) 1382 4,694 5212 5237 5,055
Financial investments {1 795) {536} (1397) 13 050) {3947)
Financia! divestments 29 4700 1982 I 352
Dividends paid with respect ta previous fiscal year 1245 1,71 1721 1639 {f) 1915
Par share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {g) 129849 12814 12738 1,244 7 1,2086
Adjusted netincome per share (g) 19 230 212 208 2.26
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares) {g) 13225 12874 1,278 7 12703 12116
Equety per share attributable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners (g) 1396 1511 1881 1733 1858
Diwvidends per share paid with respect to previous fiscal year 100 140 140 140 1.30

In millions of euros, number of shares in millions, data per share i eyros

a

An analysis of revenues and EBITA by operating segment 1s presented in Section 4 1 of this Financial Report and in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Financial Net Debt, and Cash flow from operations
{CFFO) are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators 1s defined in the appropnate
section of this Financial Report or i 1ts Appendix These indicators should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes, or as descnibed 1n this Financial Report !t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate these indicators
differently from Vivend) thereby affecting comparabifity

As of December 31, 2009, Vivend: revised 1ts definition of Financial Net Debt to include certain cash management financial assets
whose features do not strictly comply with the definrtion of cash equivalents as defined by IAS7 and the AMF's position n°2011-13 (in
particular, these financial assets may have a matunity of up to 12 months) Considenng that no mvestment 10 such assets was made
prior to 2009, the retroactive application of this change in presentation would have no impact on Financial Net Debt for the relevant
penods and the infermation presented in respect of the 2008 fiscal year s therefore consistent

With effect from January 1, 2009, Vivend: voluntanly opted for early application of the revised IFRS 3 {Business Combinations) and
IAS 27 (Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements) As a result, certan reclassifications have been made to the 2008
consolidated statement of changes 1n equity to conform to the 2009 financial statements presentation, as prescribed by revised IAS 27

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2008 totaled £1,639 mifiion, of which €904 million was paid n Vivend shares
fwhich had no impact on cash) and €735 miilion was paid in cash

The number of shares, adjusted net income per share, and the equity per share, attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners have been
adjusted for all periods previously published in order to reflect the dilution arising from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of
one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with 1AS 33 - Earnings Per Share
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation {EC) 808/2004 (Articte 28} which sets out the disclosure obligations for 1ssuers of securties
listed on a regulated market within the European Union (implementing Directive 2003/71 JEC, the "Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference

« 2011 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Staterents for the year ended December 31, 2011, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented 1n pages 130 to 266 of the "Document de Référence” No D 12-0175, filed on March 19, 2012 with the
French Autonté des Marchés Financiers {AMF), and in pages 128 to 264 of the English translation of this "Document de Rétérence”, and

e 2010 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Decermber 31, 200, prepared ender IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 126 to 270 of the “Document de Reférence” No 0 11-0155, filed on March 21, 2011 with the
french Autonté des Marchés Financiers {AMF), and In pages 126 to 270 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”
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I - 2012 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headguarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consoldated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Hawing considered the Audwt Commuties’s
recommendation given at its meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 22, 2013, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the
Management Board on February 18, 2013

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auchtors with
no guahfied opimon The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Consohdated Financiat Statements 1s included 1n the preamble to the Financial
Statements

1 Major events

As publicly announced to sharehoiders on several occasiens in 2012, Vivendi's Management Board and its Supervisory Board have engaged
in a review of the group’s strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen 1ts pasitions in media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considering the uncertainty of the timing of potential disposals of certain telecom businesses, none
of the group’s business segments met the critenia of IFRS 5 standard neither as af December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date
of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vivendr's Management Board remains commutted to focusing on shareholder value creation, adjusted net income per share and maintamning
a long-term credit rating of BBB (Standard & Poor's / Fitch) / BaaZ (Moody's)

11 Major events in 2012

1.1.1  Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

In accordance with the agreement entered into with Crtigroup Inc {Citi) on November 11, 2011, and following receipt of the regulatory approvals
from the European Commission and the Federal Trade Commission in the United States on September 21, 2012, Vivendi and UMG completed the
acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group Global Limited (EMI Recorded Music) on September 28, 2012 EMI Recorded
Music has been fully consolidated since that date The transaction was also unconditionally cleared n New-Zealand {June 21, 2012}, Japan
{July 9, 2012}, and Canada {August 20, 2012

The purchase price, in enterprise value, amounted to £1,130 million {approximately £1,404 million) and included €1,363 million paid n cash
of which £931 million {approximately €1,230 million} was paid in early September 2012, when conditions to payment were satisfied As part of
this transaction, Citi agreed to assume the full pension obligations in the Unrted Kingdom, and UMG received commutments customary for
thi type of transaction In addition, Citi undertook to indemnify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and lihgation claims, n particular
those related to pension obligations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the Eurcpean Commission was conditional upon the divestment of EMI's Parlophone label and certain other music assets
worldwide, such as EMI France, EMI's classical music labels, Chrysalis, Mute and several other local EMI entities In accordance with IFRS
5, Vivend: reclassrfied these assets as assets held for sale at market value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2012

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million {approx:mately 600 million after taking into account the
EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge in place) to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less sigmificant divestments
were also sald bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 million, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivendi nears the finafization of its regulatory commitments following the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, while
reinforcing UMG’s position as a worldwide leader in music The combination of UMG's and EMI's Recorded Music businesses 1s expected to
generate annual synergies of more than £100 million as previously stated As a result of the sale of Parlophone Label Group, the acquesition
of EMI Recorded Music acquisition will bie at less than 5xEBITDA multiple, including disposals, restructuning charges and synergies

For a detailed descnption of this transaction and of its impact en Vivendi's financial statements, please refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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1.1.2  Acquisition of Bolloré Group’s channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On December 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a definitive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canal+
Group of Bolloré Group's free-to-air channels, Direct 8 and Direct Star In February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised its option to acquire, in one
transaction, a 100% interest in Bolloré Group's tetevision business, in exchange for the issuance of Vivend: shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivend: carned out a share capital increase of 22.356 thousand shares, which 1t paid in consideration for the
contrbution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterprise value of £336 million  After taking into account a €16 millien price
adjustment related to debt and changes in working capital, the fair value of the transferred counterparty amounted to €320 million Bolloré
Group committed to retain the Vivend: shares receied in connection with the completion of this transaction for a minimum period of six
months after Septernber 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at €120 million These
guaranties expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of Imitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after
September 27, 2012 far all other matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed D8 and
D17, in connection with ther launch on October 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authority’s approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commitments These commitments provide for restnictions on the acquisition of nights for American movies and television series from certarn
American studios and for French movies, the separate negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television senes,
limitations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-year penod, renewable once if
the French Competition Authonty, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012,
the French Broadcasting Authonty (Consell Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the 08 shares far a
minimum period of two and a half years

Foltowing the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported having increased its nterest in Vivendi SA to 4 41 % Subsequently, on
October 16, 2012, it announced that it had crossed the 5% threshold in Vivend! SA’s share capital

On December 13, 2012, Vivendi's Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Bolloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as
a member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be subrmitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meeting to be held on
Apnil 30, 2013

For a detalled description of this transaction and 1ts 1mpact on Vivend''s financial statements, please refer to Note 2 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.3 Strategic partnership among the Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN in Poland

in accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and following the receipt on September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Polish Competition and Consumer Protection Authority, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, IT1, and TVN finalized the
combination of their Polish Pay-TV platforms, which remain controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acquisition by Canal+ Group of a 40%
interest in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group’s Cyfra+ platform) with IT) Neowision {TVN's “n” platform), which created a new
satellite TV platform n Poland, with a base of 25 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% nterest n the new structure “nc+”
{compared to a previous 75% interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy), TVN and UPC own a 32% and 17% interest, respectively As Canal+ Group has the
majenty on the Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “nc+”, the latter has been fully
consolidated by Canal+ Group since November 30, 2012

For a detalled description of this transaction and its impact on Vivendi's financial statements, please refer to Note 2 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.4 Liberty Media Corporation Complaint

On June 25, 2012, a verdict was returned by the jury against Vivendi in a lawsurt filed by Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its
subsidianes before the US District Court for the Southern District of New York The jury awarded damages to Liberty Media Corporation in
the amount of €765 million

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict it also awarded pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16, 2001, using the
average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills, or €180 milion On January 17, 2013, the Court entered a final judgment in the total
amount of €345 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered two pending post-tnial mations, which were
denied on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivend filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it
believes it has strong arguments
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Tuesday, February 26, 2013

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and following the entry of the final judgment by the Court, as of December 31, 2012,
Vivend: accrued a reserve in the amount of €945 million Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012

1.15 New financings

For a detaled descripuon of the new financings set up In 2012, please refer 1o Section 54 For a detarled descnption of the matunties of the bonds
and hank credit facilities as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012

1.1.6  Acquisition of 4G spectrum by SFR

In January 2012, followang calls for bids of the tender offer for 4G mobile spectrum [very-tugh-speed Internet - LTE) carned out in 2011 and in
accordance with the announcement made by the “Autorité de Régulaton des Communications Electroniques et des Postes” or “Arcep” (the French
telecommunications regulatory body), SFR acquired two 5 MHz duplex spectrum in the 800 MHz band for €1,065 milon As a reminder, in
October 2011, SFR acquired another 4G spectrum {the 2 6 GHz band) for a total amount of £150 million

1.1.7  Corporate officers

At a meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy's termn of office as Chairman of the Management
Board On June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following Management Board members Mr Abdeslam
Ahizoune, Mr Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Méheut it also appointed Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman of the
Management Board

The Management Board 1s currently composed of Mr Jean-Frangms Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

As a reminder, on March 26, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as a member of Vivend:'s Management Board and as Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of SFR

For a detailed description of the situation and compensation of the corporate officers, please refer to Note 25 to the Consalidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.8 Other events in 2012

Activision Blizzard

License agreements in China
On March 20, 2012, Blizzard Entertainment, a subsidiary of Activision Blizzard, announced that they renewed their license with NetEase for
World of Warcraft in mainfand China, adding an additional three years to the current license agreement

On July 3, 2012, Activision Blizzard and Tencent Holdings Limited, a leading Internet services provider announced a strategic relationship to
bring the Cafl of Duty franchise to Chinese game piayers Under the multi-year agreement with Activision Pubhishing, Tencent holds the
exclusive license to operate Activision's new Call of Juty game in mainland China

Stack repurchase programs

in 2012, Actwision Blizzard repurchased its own common shares for €241 midlion {3315 million), including €42 million [$54 million) pursuant
to the stock repurchase program of up to $1 billion authorized by Activiston Blizzard's Board of Directors on February 2, 2012 and
€199 million {$261 miYlion) pursuant to the previous stock repurchase program As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: held a 61 5% non-diluted
interest n Actwision Blizzard (compared to an approximate 60% interest as of December 31, 2011}

Dividends

On May 16, 2012, Actrision Blizzard paid to 1ts shareholders a cash dividend of $0 18 per common share, with respect to fiscal year 2011,
representing $123 million (€94 million} for Vivendi Due to its strong earnings and 1ts cash and short term nvestments amounting to
appraximately $4 4 bithon at year-end 2012, Activision Blizzard declared on February 7, 2013, a dwvidend of $0 19 per common share, to be
paid in cash on May 15, 2013

In addition, as part of 1ts earnings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Activision Bltzzard 1s considenng. or may consider
during 2013, substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactians These potential
transactions could be financed by debt
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Canal+ Group

Inquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given in connection with the merger of CanalSateliite and TPS
The French Competition Authonty opened an inquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given by Vivend: and Canal+ Group
connection with the merger of TPS and CanalSatellite

On September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision 1 which 1t established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some it considered essentsal — on which depended the decision authonizing, (n 2006, the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivendi and Canal+ Group As a consequence, the French Competition Authority withdrew the merger authorization,
requinng Vivend: and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competition Authonty within ane month Furthermore, the
Authonty ardered Canal+ Group to pay a €30 mullion fine

On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected the Canal+ Group and Vivendi motions requesting the annulment of the
decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012, and decreased the fine imposed on Canal+ Group from £30 million to €27 million
Pursuant to the July 23, 2012 decision, the merger was again authorized, subject to comphance with 33 imunctions

Please refer to Note 26 and 27 to the Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Acquisition of 8 non-controliing interest in Orange Cinema Series

On Apnil 12, 2012, Multuthématiques, a subsidiary of Canal+ Group, and Orange Cinema Series entered into a partnership via a joint
company, Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC, in which Multithématiques acgured an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema
Series contributed the publishing and broadcasting operations of its pay cinema channels Since Apnt 5, 2012, Canal+ Distnbution has been
distributing the channels of the Orange Cinema Senes” package through CanalSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authonizing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authonty required that Canal+ Group sell its non-controlling interest in
Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinquish certain of 1ts nghts contained 1n the shareholders’
agreement between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Series (please refer to Note 27 to the Consalidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012)

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with the injunction 2{b} ordered by the French Competiton Authority
on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Senes - OCS SNC Board of Directors resigned from ther positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affilation to
Multithématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC

Acquisition of a 100% terest in Hoyts Distribution
On July 17, 2012, StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution, a company specializing in the distribution
of feature films tn Australia and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date

Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Bull, and Caisse des Dépdts et Consignations announced the creation of Numergy, a company offering cloud
computing services to all economic players As of December 31, 2012, SFR held a 47% interest in Numergy and is accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital increase of this new company for €105 million, of which €26 milion
had been released

Distributions to shareholders of Vivend) SA and its subsidiaries

Dividend paid by Vivend: SA with respect to fiscal year 2011
On May 9, 2012, Vivendi SA paid to its shareholders a cash dvidend of €1 per share with respect to fiscal year 2011, representing a total
distribution of €1,245 million

Bonus shares granted to Vivendi SA shareholders

On May 9, 2012, Vivendi SA granted to each shareholders one bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction, realized by a
€229 million withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, resulted in the issuance of 416 million new shares with a nominal value of
€5 5 each and entitiement as from January 1, 2012

Dividends distributed by Maroc Telecom group

On May 31, 2012, Marac Telecom group paid to 1ts shareholders a cash dividend of MAD 9 26 per common share with respect to fiscal year
2011, representing MAD 4 3 tillion (€331 million) for Vivendi The Supervisary Board of Maroc Telecom group wsll propose at the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting, to be held an April 24, 2013, the payment of an ordinary divdend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds to 100%
of distributable earnings with respect to fiscal year 2012 This dividend will be paid in cash on May 31, 2013

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivendi /10




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

1.2 Major events since December 31, 2012

The major events that have occurred since December 31, 2012 were as follows

January 9, 2013 US court ruling in the lawsuit between Vivendi and Liberty Media Corporation {please refer to Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012},

January 16, 213 Maroe Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement {please refer to
Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012},

February 7, 2013 Vivend and Universal Mustc Group entered into a definitive agreement to sell Parlophone Label Group, a unit of
EMI Recorded Music, to Warner Music Group for £487 mithon {approximately €600 rmilhon) to be paid in cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivendi, Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Panis Commercial Court Lagardere Group is seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France (please refer to Note 27 1o the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012}, and

February 15, 2013 Vivend and Universal Music Group signed a defimtive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG for
£40 mulhion to be pasd in cash
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21 Consolidated statement of earnings and adjusted statement of

earnings

CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Ravenues

Cost of revenues

Margin trom opsrations

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of iMangible assets acquired thiough business
tombmations

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and
Income

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
cormbinations

\mpaument losses on intangible assets acquired through
bustness combinations

Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation
Nitigation n the United States

Other income

Other charges

EBIT

Incame frorm equity affiliates

Interest

Incorne from investments

Other financial income

Other financial charges

Earnings from continuing operations before provision
for ncome taxes

Provision for mcome taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

Eamings from discontmued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earmings attributahle to Vivendi SA shareowners
Non-controlling nterests

Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA sharsowners per
shate - basic (in auros}

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - diluted (sn euras}

in milliens of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
012 o 2002 2011
28,994 28013 2899 23813
(14 364} {14 381) {14 364) 14 391)
14,630 1442 14,630 14422
(8 995} {8401} {8 995} {8401}
(352) {161} {352) {161)
{487) {510}
{760) {397)
(945} -
22 1385
{235) {656)
28718 5,682 5283 5860
{38) (18 (38) {18)
{568) {481} (568) {481)
9 75 9 75
37 14
1210} 167}
2,108 5105 4,686 5,436
[t 158} {1 378} {1339) {1 408)
949 n
949 3127 3347 4,028
164 2,681 2550 2952
785 1046 787 1076
013 209 136 23
012 209 196 230

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Margin trom oparations

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Restructunng charges and other operating charges and
ncome

EBITA

Income from equity affilates
Interest

Incorna from investments

Adjustad earnings from continuing operations hefore

prowvision for incomo taxes
Prowasion for income taxes

Adjusted net income before non-controlling tnterests
Cf which

Adjusted net income

Non controling interests

Adjusted net income per share - hasic {in euros}

Adjusted net income per share - diluted (in euros)

Note. Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share and adjusted net income per share (basic and diuted) for all penods
previously published have been adjusted in order to reflect the dilution anising from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one

honus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with IAS 33 - Earnings per share
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2 2 Earnings review

Adjusted net mcome amounted to €2,550 million (or €196 per share') compared to €2,952 million {or €2 30 per share) in 2011 This
€402 miliion decrease {-13 6%} in adjusted net income resulted primarily from

» 2 €577 million decrease in EBITA to a total of €5,283 milhion {compared to €5,860 mition 1in 2011} This change mamly reflecied the
dechne n the performances of SFR {-€678 milhion, including the €187 million restructunng charges). Maroc Telecom group
{-€102 mullion, including the €79 million restructuring charges), and Canal+ Group {-€38 million, including the -€51 million impact of
the actuisition of the D8 and D17 channels and the new actwvities in Poland, partially offset by the aperating performances of
Activision Blizzard (+€138 million), GVT (+€92 million), and Universal Music Group (+€18 million) including -€98 million 1in EMI
Recorded Music integration costs and restructuring charges,

+ @ €87 milhion increase 1n interest expense, resulting from the impact of the intrease in the average outstanding Financial Net Debt
{-€127 million), partially offset by the decrease of the average interest rate on Financial Net Debt (+£40 million),

» 3 €66 million decrease mainly attributable to the balance of the contractual dwidend paid by GE to Vivendi in January 2011 as part
of the completion of the sale by Vivend of its interest in NBC Universal,

e a€£20 mllion decrease resulting from income from equity affiliates,

e 2 €69 mithon decrease in income tax expense This change notably reflected the impact of the decline in the group's business
segments taxable income (+£264 million), pnman'y related to SFR, partially offset by the £181 million decrease n current tax
savings related to Vivendi SA’s tax group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems This decrease notably included the impact
of the changes in French Tax Law i 2011 and 2012, mainly the capping of the deduction for tax losses carmed forward at 50% of
taxable income {compared to 60% in 2011), and

» 2 £279million decrease in adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests, mainly resulting from the acquisition In
June 2011 of Vodafone's non-contrelling interest in SFR {£242 mithian)

Breakdown of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €28.994 mullion, compared to €28,813 million 1n 2011, a €181 milhon increase {+0 6%, or -0 7% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Costs of revenues amounted to £14,364 million, compared to €14.391 million tn 2011, a €27 million decrease (-0 2%}
Margin from operations increased by €208 million to €14,630 million, compared to €14,422 million 1n 2011 {+1 4%)

Selling, general and admimistrative expenses, excluding the amortrzation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €8,995 million, compared to €8,401 million in 2011, 2 €594 mihon increase (+7 1%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intargible assets acquired through business combinatians,
amounted to €2,682 million {compared to €2,534 million in 2011), an additional €148 mullion charge (+5 8%) This change primanly resulted from the
Increase In the depreciation of telecommunication network assets at Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted 1o a net charge of €352 mithon, compared to a net charge
of €161 million 10 2011, a €191 milhon increase In 2012, they prmanly included restructuring charges of SFR (€187 milhon) and Maroc
Telecom group (€79 million), restructuring charges and integration costs at UMG (€98 million), as well as transition costs incurred by Canal+
Group as part of the acquisttion of the free-to-awr channels 08 and D17 1n France and the pay-TV platfor “n” 0 Poland (811 mithon)
Moreover, in 2012, other operating charges included the €66 million fine ordered against SFR by the Fiench Competition Authority in
December 2012 In 2011, restructuring charges amounted to €100 milhon, of which €67 million at UMG and €19 mullion at Activision Blizzard
In 2011, other operating charges incfuded the €30 million fine ordered in September 2011 by the French Competition Authority on Canal+
Group, as part of the audit related to the compliance with the commitments undertaken by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of
CanalSatellite and TPS in January 2007

EBITA was €5,283 million, compared to £€5,860 million 1n 2011, a €577 million decrease {-3 8%, or -107% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financral Report

Amortization of mtangible assets acquired through business combinations was £487 million, compared to €510 million in 2011, a
£23 million decrease {-4 5%)

! For detauls of the adjusted net mcome per share pleass refer to Appendix T of this Financial Report
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Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combmations amounted to €760 million, compared to
£397 million 1 2011 In 2012, they related to Canal+ France's goadwill {€665 million) and certain goodwill and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group (€94 million} In 2011, they mainly related to Canal+ France’s goadw)ll (€380 milhan}

As of December 31, 2012, based on the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the
Umited States, which was confirmed by the court in New York on January 9, 2013 and entered into record by the |udge on January 17,
2013, Vivend accrued a reserve for the fult amount of the judgment {€945 million), representing, £765 million in damages and €180 million 1n
pre-judgment Interest covering the penod from December 16, 2001 to January 17, 2013, at the rate of one-year US Treasury notes In
addition, the reserve regarding the Securities Class Action i the United States was unchanged as of December 31, 201 2, at €100 milhion
Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Other income amounted to £22 million, compared to €1,385 million n 2011 In 2011, 1t pomarly included the impact related to the
settiement on January 14, 2011 of the litigation over the share ownership of PTC wn Poland {€1.255 mullion} and the sale in October 2011 of
UMG's interest in Beats Electronics {€89 milhon}

Other charges amounted to £235 miliion, compared to €656 million in 2011 In 2012, they mainly included the €119 million impairment loss
on Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision 1n Poland and acquisition costs (EMI Recorded Music, and the strategic partnership in Poland) of
€63 million In 2011, they mainly included the capital loss incurred 1n January 2011 on the sale of Vivendi's remaining 12 34% interest in
NBC Universal (€421 million, of which €477 million related to a foreign exchange loss attributable to the decline in value of the US dollar
since January 1, 2004) and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and vanous Brazilian States regarding the application of ICMS
tax on Internet and Broadband services {E165 million}

EBIT was £€2,878 million, compared to €5,682 million in 2011, a €2,804 million decrease (-49 3%} In addition to the decline n EBITA
{-€577 miltion, of which -€678 million from SFR), this change mainly reflected the recogmition in 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the
Liberty Media Corporation litigation (-€945 million) and the impairment of Camal+ France’s goodwill (-€665 millign) In 2011, the impact
related to the settiement of the htigation over the share ownership of PTC n Poland (€1,255 million), partially offset by the capital loss
incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% interest 1In NBC Universal €421 million), and the settlement of the past disputes between
GVT and various Brazilian States regarding the application of the ICMS tax (-€165 million}

Income from equity affiliates was a €38 million charge, compared to a €18 milhon charge 0 2m

Interest was an expense of €568 million, compared to €481 mullion in 2011, a €87 million increase (+18 1%

In 2012, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €539 million, compared to £529 million 1n 2011, a €70 million increase (+13 2%} This
change was mainly attributable to the increase in the average outstanding borrowings to €37 1 billion 1n 2012 {compared to €13 7 bithon in
2011}, pnimanly reflecting the impact of the acquisitions of the 44% interest in SFR in June 2011 (€7 75 ullion) and of EMI Recorded Music
in September 2012 (€1 4 billion), partially offset by the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 3 50% 1n 2012 [compared to
387% n 2011}

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €31 mullion in 2012, compared to €48 million n 2011, a €17 million
decrease This change was attnbutable to the decrease In the average cash and cash equivalents to €3 4 bilhon in 2092 {compared to
€41 billion 1n 2011} and to the decrease in the average income rate to 0 91% n 2012 {compared to 1 16% in 2011}

Income from investments amounted to €9 million, compared to €75 million 1w 2011 in 2011, 1t included €70 million attnbutable to the
balance of the contractual didend paid by GE to Vivend: on January 25, 2011 as part of the completion of the sale by Vivendi of its interest
in NBC Universal

Other financial income and charges amounted to a net charge of €173 million, compared to & net charge of €153 miltion 1n 2011, and
notably included foreign exchange losses on intercompany borrowings {-€105 mullien in 2012, compared to -827 mitlion in 2011) and fees
related to borrowings and dervative instruments (-€15 milhon in 2012, compared to -€57 milian 1n 2011} For more information, please refer
to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €1,339 million, compared to a net charge of €1,408 miffion (n 2011,
a €69 million decrease This change notably reflected the impact of the decline in the group’s business segments’ taxable income
(+£264 million), pnmanly related to SFR, partially offset by the decrease (-€181 millign} in current tax savings related to Vivendi SA's tax
group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems following the changes in French Tax Law in 2011 and 2012, mainly the capping of the
deduction for tax losses carmed forward at 50% of taxable income {compared to 60% in 201 1) The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net
income was 28 3% 1n 2012 {compared to 25 8% 11 2011)

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €1,153 million, compared to a net charge of €1,378 million 1n 2011, a
£219 million decrease In addition to the items that explained the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this increase
reflected the change i deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA’s tax group System, which was a €48 million charge {compared to a
€129 million charge n 2011)
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Adjusted net income attnbutable to non-controlling interests amounted to €797 million, compared to £1,076 milhon n 2011 The
€279 mithon decrease was primanly attnbutable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR {-€247 milhen), offset by
the operating performances of Actvision Blrzzard (+£34 million}

Earmings attnbutable to non-contretling interests amounted to £785 million, compared to €1,048 million 10 2041 The €261 million
decrease was marnly attributable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR (-£224 million), offset by the operating
performances of Activision Blizzard (+£41 mullion)

Earmings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners amounted to €164 millien (or €0 13 per share), compared to €2,681 million {or
€2 09 per share) in 2011, a €2,517 million decrease In addition to the decline in EBITA {-€577 milhion, of which -€678 million from SFR), this
change marnly reflected the recognition (n 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation {-€945 million) and
the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill {-€665 millien), and 1n 2011, the impact related to the settlement of the htigation over the share
ownership of PTC in Poland {£1,255 milhon), partially offset by the capital loss incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% interest n
NBC Universal {-€421 million}, and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and various Brazihan States regarding the application of
the ICMS tax {-€165 million)

The reconcibation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners with adjusted net tncome is further described in
Appendix 1 of this Financial Report In 2012, this recanciliation primanly ncluded the reserve acctual regarding the Liberty Media
Corporation litigation in the United States {-€945 mullion), the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill -€665 million), and amortization and
other impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (€414 mullion, after taxes and non-controlling
interests) In 2011, this reconcilsation primanly included the impact of the sett!fement of the htigation gver the share ownership of PTC in
Poland (+£1,255 million} and the sale in October 2011 of UMG's interest in Beats Electronics (+€89 miltion), partally offset by the capital loss
ncurred from the sale of Vivend's remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal completed on January 25, 2011 {-€421 millicn, of which
-£477 million related to a foreign currency translation adjustment reclassified to earmings, whrch represented a foreign exchange loss
attrributable to the decline in value of the US dollar since January 1, 2004) and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and various
Brazian States regarding the application of ICMS tax on Internet and Broadband services {-E165 million} The reconciliation also included
the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill {-€380 mithon} and the amortization and other impairment losses on intangrble assets acquired
through business combinations {-€336 million, after taxes and non-controlling interests)
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Prelimmary comment, Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations {CFFQ), cash flow from operations before
capita! expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT} are relevant indicatars of the
group’s operating and financial performance These indicators should be congidered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP
measures as reported in Vivendi's cash flow statement, contained in the group’s Consoldated Financial Statements

In 2012, cash flow from operations before capital expenditures {CFFO before capex, net) generated by business segments amounted to
£7.872 million {compared to €8,034 miflion in 2011}, a €162 million decrease (-2 0%} This change included the increase in EBITDA after
changes wn the group’s net working capital (+€277 million), notably thanks to the good performances of Activision Bhizzard {+€338 million,
Canal+ Group (+£108 million), and Maroc Telecom {+£34 mullion), despite the decline in the performance of SFR (-€407 million) Moreover, 1t
also reflected the increase in content investments (-£286 million), restructuning charges {-€75 miMion, pnmarily the impact of the voluntary
redundancy plan at Maroc Telecom), as well as the impact of the dwidend received in January 2011, as part of the completion of the sale of
Vivend!'s interest in NBC Universal (-€70 million)

In 2012, capital expenditures, net amounted to £4,490 miflion (compared to €3340 million in 2011}, a €1,150 millien increase This change
included SFR’s acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million in January 2012 and €150 milion in October 2011 Excluding the
acquisition of mobile spectrum 1n 2012 and 2011, capital expenditures, net increased by €235 million {+7 4%), pnmarily attnbutable to the
geographical expansion of GVT's telecommunication network and to the development of its pay-TV business {+£242 mullion)

After capital expenditures, net, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by business segments amounted to £€3,382 million {compared to
£4.694 million 1n 2011), a €1,312 million decrease Excluding the acquisition of mobile spectrum in 2012 and 2011, CFFO generated by
business segments amounted to €4,447 million (compared to £4,844 million n 2011), a €397 million decrease (-8 2%}, pnmanly reflecting the
decline 1 SFR's performance

In 2012, cash flow from operations after interest and Income taxes paid (CFAIT) amounted to £1,954 million {compared to £2,884 milhon i
2011}, a €930 million decrease {-32 2%) The decrease in CFFO {-€1.312 millien) and the 1ncrease n interest expense {-€87 million} were
partially offset by the €141 milhon decrease in cash payments of other items refated to fimancial activities and by the €328 millan decrease
In income taxes paid, net The change in income taxes paid, net mainly reflected the change from one fiscal year to another of the amount of
income tax installments for the current fiscal year and final settlements for the previous fiscal year patd by the group's entities n the course
of the given year

Cash payments of other items related to financial activities notably included the net premium paid in connection with borrowings 1ssued and
the early unwinding of interest rate hedging dervative instruments (-€74 million) and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and
varous Brazlian States regarding the application of the ICMS tax on Internet and Broadband services (€7 million paid 'n 2012, compared to
€164 million paid 1n 2011} In addition, hedging currency risk transactions generated a net cash outflow of €62 million in 2012 {including a
£78 mulhon foreign exchange loss attrbutable to the redemption in Apnil 2012 of a $700 million bond), compared 1o an €8 million net cash
inflow 1n 2011
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tin milions of euros)
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortizatton
EBITDA
Restructuring charges paid
Content investments net
aof which internally develgped franghises and other games content assets at Activision Blizzard
of which payments to artists and repertoire owners net at UMG
Payments to artists and repertoire owners
Recoupment of advances and other movements

of which film and telawision nghts net at Canak Group
Acaunsition of film and telawston nghts
Consumption of fiim and television rights

of which sports rights net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of sports fights
Consumption of sporis rights

Neutralization of change in provisions inctuded n EBITDA
Other cash operating items excluded from EBITDA
QOther changes i net working capital
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax pard
Dwidends receved frem equity affiliates
of which balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE
Dwdends recerved from unconsolidated companies
Cagh tlow trom operations, heforg capital expenditures, net {CFFD betore ca net
Capital expend:tures net {capex net)
of which SFR{f]
Maroc Telecom Group
GWT
ash flow from
Interest pard net
Other cash items refated o financial acities
of which  settfements with the Braztian Authorities regarding ICMS
fees and premium on borrowings 1ssued/redeemed and early unwinding of hedging
dervative Instruments
gains/flosses) on currency transactions
Financial activiies cash payments
Payment received from the Franch State Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA's French Tax Group
and Consohidated Globa! Profs Tax Systems
Other taxes paid
Incame tax {pasd)/received, nat
Cash flow from gperations after in

ration: FO

t and income tax pard {CF,

na* not applicable

Tuesday, Febrvary 26, 2013

Year ended December 31,

02 201 € Change % Change
28 394 28,813 +181 +) 6%
(20 841} (20,320 3N -1 §%
(a} 8353 84593 -140 16%
{189} {114) 75 658%
(299) (13} 286 x230
{108} {49} 59 x22
{647} 5891 58 -98%
603 581 +22 +38%
{44} 18} -6 x55
{760) (724) 35 50%
703 706 3 04%
{97} 18 <15 x32
{654} {652) +8 +12%
677 635 23 33%
18 33 15 455%
{56) (100) +4 +44 0%
30 " 24 x44
%0 13074 4387 na*
{b) 7868 7,952 44 -11%
(c) 3 79 -76 -962%
70 70 -100 0%
{c) 1 3 2 66 7%
1512 8,034 -162 -210%
{d) {4 490) 13 340) 1150 344%
{2 736/ {1809/ az7 -512%
{457) {466/} +9 +1 9%
{947] {705} 242 34 3%
3382 4,694 -1.312 -28.0%
{a) {568) (481} 87 181%
{e} {38) {239) 14 +500%
{7} {164} +157 +357%
9 (83) +74 +89 2%
{52 8 5 na*
{666/ (720) +54 +7 5%
536 53 % 93%
{1,298) {1681) +383 +22 8%
(b} (762} {1,090) +328 +30 1%
1,954 2584 -330 -32.2%

a EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1s described in Section 4 2 of this Financial Report

b As presented in operating activities of Vivendy's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3

¢ Aspresented In investing activities of Vivendi's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3)

d Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as presented in
investing actvities of Vivend's Staternent of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 53)

e Aspresented in financing activitres of Vivendi's Statement of Cash Flows (please refer to Section 5 3}

f  SFR's capital expenditures notably included a cash payment for 4G mobile spectrum of £1,065 million in 2012 and of €150 muliion in

2m
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41 Revenues, EBITA, and cash flow from operations by business

segment

{in mllions of eurosh
Revenues

Actrvision Blizzard
Universal Music Group
SFR

Marac Telecom Group
GVl

Canal+ Group
Non-core operatans and athers, and elimination ¢f intersegment
transactions

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Actrvision Blizzard

Universal Music Group

SFR

Marac Telecom Group

GVT

Canal+ Group

Holding & Corporate

Non-core operaions and athers
Totsl Vivend

{n mullions of euros)

Cash flow from operations, before capital expendstures, net {CFFO before capex, net}

Actoaision Bhzzard

Universal Music Group

SFR

Maroc Telecom Group

GvT

Canal+ Group

NBC Universal dividends
Holding & Cerporate

Non-core operations and others
Total Vivendi

Cash flow from oparstions (CFFO)
Activision Blizzard

Universal Music Group

SFR

Maroc Tetecom Group

GvT

Canal+ Group

NBC Universal dividends
Holding & Corporate

Noo-cere operations and others
Total Vivend

na* not applicable

Data presented above takes into account the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates

Year ended December 31
% Change at
2012 20m % Change constant rate
3768 3432 +9 8% +23%
4544 419 +8 3% +31%
11,288 12183 13% -713%
2689 2,739 18% 30%
1,716 1,046 +187% +282%
5013 4857 +3 2% +2%
24) 41) na* na*
28& 23_,23 +0 6% 0 7%
1,149 1,041 +136% +66%
525 507 +3 6% +12%
1600 2218 298% -29 8%
987 1,089 -04% 105%
468 3% 4+232% +337%
663 pill 54% 53%
{115) {100} -150% -130%
(14) {22 na" na*
5283 5,860 -98% -10 7%
—
Year ended December 31
2012 2011 % Change
1,161 929 +250%
528 495 +57%
3429 380 107%
1523 150 +1 5%
621 558 +11 3%
706 735 39%
- 70 1000%
{83 (83) -120%
{3} 12) na*
1872 8,034 -2 0F
1104 877 425 5%
472 443 +65%
693 2032 -659%
1 066 1035 +30%
(326) (147 %122
476 484 AT%
70 -100 0%
(99 {84} -119%
(%) {16) na"
3382 4,634 -28 0%

- atUnwversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music {September 28, 2012), and
. atCanal+ Group D8 and D17 [September 27, 2012), as well as "n” {(November 30,2012)
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4.2 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

Preliminary comments:

*  Vivend Management evaluates the perfermance of Vivendi’s business segments and allocates the necessary resources 10 them based
on certain operating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA [Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Income
Taxes) and EBITDA {Earrings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization)

e  The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquwed through business
combinations, the impasiment of goodwill and other ntangibles acquired through business combmations and EBIT's “other
charges” and "other income” as defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December
31,2012

e Asdefined by Vivend:, EBITDA 15 calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Eamings, before depreciation
and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, restructuring charges, gawns/{losses} on the sale of tangible and ntangble
assets and other non-recurring (tems (as presented n the Consolidated Statement of Eamings by operating segment - Please
refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Moreover, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA and EBITDA differently from Vivend), thereby
affecting comparability
e The Vivend group operates through six businesses at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks As of

December 31, 2012, Vivend!'s ownershrp interest in each of these businesses was as follows

e  Activision Blizzard 61 5%,

»  Universal Music Group {UMG} 100%,

s SFR 100%,

»  Maroc Telecom group 53%,

s GVT 100%, and

o Capal+ Group t00% (Canal+ Group halds an 80% interest 1a Canal+ France)
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421 Activision Blizzard

IFRS measures, as published by Vivend:

Year ended December 31

% Change al
{in mihans of euros except for margins) 2012 201 % Change constant rate
Activision 2370 2,047 +158% 18 4%
Blizzard 1,160 1,082 +12% -12%
Distribution 238 303 -215% -26 7%
Total Revenues 3,168 3432 +3 8% +2 3%
EBITDA 1315 1174 +120% +4 9%
Actwision 678 520 +304% +23 9%
Blizzard 483 483 -4 1% -119%
Distribution 8 8 - -13%
Total EBITA 1,149 1.011 +13 6% +5.6%
EBITA margin rate (%) 305% 295% +1pt
Cash flow from operations (CFFO} 1104 877 +25 9%
Non-GAAP and US GAAP measures, as published by Actvision Blizzard’
Year ended December 31
{in milfions of US dollars} 012 2011 % Change
Actiision 1072 1828 +8 6%
Biizzard 1 609 1243 +294%
Distribution 306 LAL:] 26 8%
Total nan-GAAPF net revenues 4,987 4,& +111%
Ehmmnation of non-GAAFP adiustments 131) 266 na'
US GAAF net rovenues 4,856 4,755 +21%
Actvision 970 851 +140%
Blizzard n? 486 +44 6%
Distnbution 11 11
Total non-GAAP operating incoms 1698 1358 +25 0%
Non-GAAP operating margin rate {%) 34 0% 303% +3 7 pts
Efimination of non-GAAF adjustments 1247) {30)
US GAAP operating income 1.451 138 +93%
Netrov istribution channgl
Retail channels 3082 21512 +227%
Digital online channels {a) 1599 1559 +2 6%
Sub-total Actiwision and Bhzard 4681 401 +150%
Distribution 306 418 26 8%
Total non-GAAP net revenues 4,887 4,489 +111%
Netrev latform my
Onhine subscnptions {) 1071 1153 73%
PC and other (c) 1250 299 x4 2
Console 2201 1452 -102%
Hand held 159 165 36%
Sub-total Actvision and Bhizzard 4 681 40N +150%
Distribution 306 418 25 B%
Total non-GAAP netrevenuas 4,987 4,489 +111%
Net reven! .o 111} 1
North Amenca 2514 23251 +117%
Europe 1996 1686 +58%
Asia Pacific 477 352 +355%
Total non-GAAP net revanues 4987 4,489 +111%

na* not applicable
a Includes revenues from subscriptions and memberships, licensing royalties, value-added services, downloadable content, digitally
distributed products and wireless devices

? The recancibation of US GAAP and non-GAAP data published by Activision Bhzzard {net ravenues and EBITA) to data relating to Actvision Bhizzard prepared by Vivend in
accordance with [FRS standards ts described i Appendix 2 to this Financral Report
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b Includes revenues from all World of Wareraft praducts, including subscriptions, boxed products, expansion packs, licensing royalties
and value-added services [t also includes revenues from Call of Duty Elite mermberships

¢ Other revenues mclude standalone sales of toys and accessaries products from Skyfanders franctuse, motule sales and other physical
merchandise and accessones

Revenues and EBITA

Higher than expected, Activision Blizzard's revenues were €3,768 million, up 98% (+2 3% at constant currency) compared to 2011, and
EBITA was €1,149 million, a 13 6% increase {+6 6% at constant currency} compared to 2011 These results take into account the accounting
principles requining that revenues and related cost of sales associated with games with an online component be deferred over the estimated
customer service period The balance of the deferred operating margin was up 10% to €1.000 mdhon as of December 31, 2012, comnpared to
£913 million as of December 31, 2011

In North America and Europe combined, Activision Blizzard was the #1 console and handheld publisher for 2012 with the #1 and #3 best-
selling franchises’, Call of Dutyand Skylanders In November 2012, Black (ps /f became the first video game ever to cross the $1 billion mark
in 15-days® As of December 31, 2012, the Skylanders franchise had generated, life-to-date, more than $1 billion in worldwide sales® In
January 2013, sell-through of Skylanders figures worldwide has exceeded 100 million®

In addition, Drablo Hf was the #1 best-selling PC game, breaking PC-game sales records with more than 12 million copies sold-through
worldwide through December 31, 2012, and World of Warcraft® Mists of Pandana® was the #3 best-selling PC game® As of December
31, 2012, World of Warcraft remains the #1 subscription-based MMORPG, with more than 9 6 million subscribers®

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Activision Blizzard's cash fiow from operations amounted to €1,104 million, a €227 million increase compared to 2011 This performance
reflected the growth in EBITDA after changes in Activision Blizzard's net working capital (+€338 million), related to the success of the games
released in the fourth quarter of 2012

3 According ta The NFD Grou, GIX Chart Track and Activision Biizzard internal estimates ncluding toys and accessorias
! According to Chart-Track retad custamer sefl-through information, tnternal company estimates and screenrant com

8 According o Actrvision Bhizzard internal estimates

¢ At retad and according to The NPD Group GfK Chart Track and Activision Bliuzard internal estimates
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422 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31
% Change at
{in millions of euros except for margins) 012 01 % Change constant rate
Physical sales 1756 1789 18% £1%
Digital sales 1365 1105 +23 5% +16 8%
License and others 548 478 +14 5% +89%
Recorded music 3669 (a} 33 +B8% +37%
Music publishing 661 638 +36% -10%
Meschandising and others 247 222 +11 3% +45%
Intercompany elimination {33) (35} na* na*
Total Revenues 4544 4,197 +83% +31%
EBITDA 674 (a} 623 +8.2% +50%
Recorded music 3B {a) 304 +A 6% +39%
Music publhishing 186 183 +16% -24%
Merchandising and athers 21 20 +50% -58%
Total EBITA 525 07 +3 6% +12%
EBITA margin rate {%) 116% i21% 05p
Restructuning and niegration costs (98) {67} -46 3%
EBITA excluding restructuring and initegration costs 623 574 +8.5% + 5%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 472 a3 +6 5%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 40% 41%
North Amenca 7% 36%
Asia 16% 15%
Rest of the warld 7% 8%
100% 100%
“UMG" recorded music: sales of physical and digital albums and DVDs, in millions of units {b)
Arust - Title 2012 Artist- Tide 2011
Taylor Swift - Red 51 LladyGaga Bom thisway 59
Justin Bieber - Beleve 29 Justin Bieber - Under The Mistletoe 28
Lana Del Rey - Born To Die 27 Rihanna - Loud 27
Rod Stewart Merry Christmas, Baby 26  FRihanna - Talk That Talk 26
fihanna - Unapologetic 23 Lil'Wayne - Tha Carter IV 24
Maroon 5 - Overexposed 22 AmyWinehouse - Lioness Hidden Treasures 24
Madonna MONA 18  Orake - Take Care 19
Gotye - Making Mirrars 17 Kanye West & Jay Z - Watch The Throne 17
bonel Richie - Tuskegee 15 Amy Winghouse - Back to Black 17
Nicki Ming; - Pink Fnday  Roman Relvaded 14 |MFAQ - Sorry for Party Rocking 17
Total 242 Total 58

na* not applicable

a Includes EMI Recorded Music {retained businesses) revenues and EBITA consolidated since September 28, 2012, for €279 million {of
which €148 million for physical sales and €79 million for digital sales) and -€2 million, respectively

b Atconstant perimeter
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group's (UMG} revenues were €4,544 million, an B 3% increase compared to 201t At constant penmeter (excluding
revenues from EMI Recorded Music, acquired at the end of September 2012}, revenues were up 1 6% thanks to growth in recorded music
sales in North Amenca and favorable currency movements At constant currency and at constant penimeter, revenues were down 3 3% with

a 10 0% increase in digitat sales and higher license income offset by the decling in physical sales Digital sales represented 44% of recorded
music sales compared to 38% in the prior year

Recorded music best sellers notably included new releases from Taylor Swift, Justin Bieber, Maroon 5, Rihanna, Nicki Mina), Lana Del Rey,
Gotye, Carly Rae Jepsen, Cecilia Bartoh, Daniel Barenbo:m, Rolando Villazan, and Myléne Farmer

UMG's EBITA of €525 million was up 3 6% compared to 2011 Excluding EMI Recorded Music and at constant currency, EBITA was up 1 6%,
strengthened by cost reduction policy

Cash flow from aperations {CFFO)

UMG's cash flow from operations amounted to €472 million, a €29 million increase compared to 2011 This includes the impact of the
integration of EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012 (-€18 mihon, including restructuring and integration costs paid for
€37 million), which was more than offset by UMG’s operating performances (EBITDA after changes in net working capital increased by
£69 milhon), the proceeds from the sale of certain content assets from UMG's catalog (€25 million), and a decrease in rastructunng charges
paid by UMG {-€14 million)
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423 SFR
Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros, except for margins) 2012 2011 % Change
Mobile service revenues 7008 7,885 111%
Equipment sales, net 510 567 -101%

Mabile 7516 8452 -111%

Broadband Internet and Fixed 3,963 4,000 -09%

Intercompany elimination {191} (269) +29 0%

Total Revenues 11,288 12,183 -7.3%

EBITDA 3,299 3,800 -13.2%

EBITA 1,600 2218 -298%

EBITA margin rate {%) 14 2% 187% 4 5pts

Restructuring costs (187) (12) x156

EBITA excluding restructuring costs 1,787 2,290 -220%

Capital expenditures, net {capex net) {a) 2,736 1,809 +512%

of which acquisttions of mobile spectrum 1.065 150 x71
capital expenditures, net excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1,671 1,658 +7%

Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 693 2,032 -65 9%

of which acquisitions of molnle spectrum {1,065 (150 x71
cash flaw from operations excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1,758 2,182 -194%
Mohile
Number of customers (in thousands)
Postpaid (b} 16,563 16,566 -
Prepaid 4127 4,897 -157%
Total SFR Group 20,690 21,463 -36%
Mobile customer base market share (¢) 78 3% 313% 3pts
12-month rolling ARPU {in euros/year} {d)
Postpad 417 462 27%
Prepaid 11z 135 -176%

Blended ARPU 344 378 -90%

Acquisition cost compared to mobile service revenues (in %) 7 1% 7 6% 05pt

Retention cost campared to mobile service revenues {in %} 91% 82% +09pt

Residential broadband Internet and Fixed

Number of broadband Internet customers {in thousands) 5075 5,019 {g) +11%

ADSL customer base market share 22 5% (f) 235% -1pt

o @

Includes MZM (Machine to Machine} customers

Source Arcep

(2]

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

d  Includes mobile terminations ARPU (Average Revenue Per User) 1s defined as revenues net of promotions and net of third-party content
provider revenues, excluding roaming in revenues and equipment sales divided by the average Arcep total customer base for the last

twelve months ARPU excludes M2M [Machine to Maching) data

e  On December 31, 2011, the Broadband Internet customer base was adwsted by 23,000 customers following the removal of 1P and 2P

Akeo customers from the consolidation perimeter
f  SFRestimate for 2012
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Revenues and EBITA

SFR revenues” amounted to £11,288 million, a 7 3% decrease compared to 2011 due to the progressive impact of price cuts related to the
competitive environment and to price cuts Imposed by the regulators® Excluding the impact of these regulatory decisions, revenues
decreased by 33%

Mobule® revenues amounted to €7,516 million, an 11 1% decrease compared to 2011

During the fourth quarter, SFR's postpa:d mobile customer base increased by 109,000 additions At the end of 2012, SFR's postpaid mobile
customer base reached 16 583 million, stable compared to 2011 The customer mix {the percentage of the number of postpaid customers in
the totai customer base) amounted to 80 1%, a 2 9 percentage point increase year-on-year SFR's total mobile customer base reached
20690 million Mabile Internet usage continued to progress, with 49% of SFR customers equipped with a smartphone (41% at the end of
2011)

SFR became the first French operator to open the 4G network to the mass market and enterprises After Lyon on November 29, 2012, the 4G
netwark was launched in Montpellier and Pans-La Défense Four additional cities will open in the first half 2013 This offer includes the
availabihity of a wide range of compatible equipment and 1s based an « Formules Carrées » packages

SFR also introduced a new pricing policy in January 2013 offenng the best value/price ratio on the market both for its low-cost offers and its
premium offers, the latter remaining the choice of the majority n the French market

Broadband Internet and fixed revenues® amounted to €3,963 million, a 0 9% decrease compared to 2011, and a 0 3% Increase excluding the
impact of requlated price cuts

At the end of 2012, the postpaid broadband Internet residential customer base reached 5 075 million, with 56,000 net additions™ yeai-on-
year The customer base for the quadruple play offer (" Multi-Pack de SFA") reached 1 8 million at the end of 2012

SFR's EBITDA amounted to €3,299 million, a 132% decrease compared to 2011 Excluding negative and positive non-recurning items
{-€15 rulhion 10 2012 and +€93 mitkion 10 2011), EBITDA decreased by 10 6%

EBITA amounted to £1,600 million, a 29 8% decrease Excluding negative and positive non-recurring items and restructuring charges, EBITA
decreased by 18 0%

In 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan while continuing to invest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt its arganization to changing
market conditions In Navember, SFR announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

SFR's cash flow from operations amounted to €693 million, a 65 9% decrease compared to 2011 This change notably included the impact of
the acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million 1n 2012, compared to €150 million 11 2011 Excluding these impacts, cash flow from
operations amounted to €1,758 million, compared to €2,982 milLon 1n 2011, a £424 million decrease {-19 4%), primanly due to the decrease
in EBITDA after changes in net working capital (-£407 million)

? rollowing the disposal of 100% of Débrta! France SA to La Posta Télécom SAS, Débite! France SA with a custemer base of 290,000 has been excluded from the conselidation
perimeter since March 1 2011
B Tanff cuts imposed by reguiatory decision
1) 33% decrease in mobile voice termination regulated price on July 1 2011 & 25% additional decraase on January 1, 2012 and a further 33% dacrease on July 1, 2012
u) 26% decrease in SMS termination regulated prce on July T 2011 and a 33% additional decrgase on July 1 2012 In additon to asymmetiic tanff n favor of Free,
i} Roaming tanff cuts an July 1, 2001 and July 1, 2012 and
) 40% decrease in fued voice termination regulated price on October 1 2011 and a 50% additional decrease on July 7 2012
® Mobue revenues and broadband Internet and fixed revenues are determined as revenues before elwmination of intarsegment operatigns within SFR
04t the end of December 2011, SFR group broadband internat residential customer base totaled 5 019 midiion, following the exclusion of 1P and 2P Akée customers from the
consolidation penimeter
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Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 % Ch % Change at
{in millions of euros, except for marging) o Lhange constant rate
Motule service revenues 1,529 1615 53% £6%
Equipment sales net 45 &7 328% -338%
Mobile 1574 1,682 6 4% 77%
Broadband Internet and Fixed 601 660 89% -103%
\ntercompany elimination 87) {119} na* na*
Marocco 2,088 2,223 61% -7 4%
International 638 539 +18 4% +177%
Intercompany elimination (37) {23) na* na*
Total Revenues 2,689 2139 -18% -3 0%
Total EBITDA 1,505 1,500 +0.3% -09%
EBITDA margm rate (%) 56 0% 54 8% +12pt
Morocco B30 1,000 -17 0% -18 1%
Internationai 157 89 +76 4% +75 1%
Tatal EBITA 987 1,089 -9 4% -105%
Restructuring charges {79 - na*
EBITA excluding restructuring charges 1,066 1,089 -21%
Margin rate (%) 396% 39 8% 02 pt
Capital expenditures, net {capex net} 457 166 -19% |
|
Cash flow from operations {CFFO} 1,066 1,035 +30% |
|
|
Morocco |
Number of mobile customers (in thousands) |
Prepaid 16,656 16,106 +34%
Postpaid 1,199 1,019 +17 7%
Total 17,855 17126 +4 3%
Mobile ARPU (in MAD/month) 79 87 -92%
Mol {in min/month) 122 85 +43 5%
Mabile churn rate {in %/year) {a} 20 8% 233% -25pts
Postpaid 155% 13 4% +2 1 pts
Prepad 22 2% 24 8% -2 6 pts
Number of fixed lings (iIn thousands) 1,269 1,241 +23%
Number of Broadband Internet customers {in thousands) (b) 683 591 +156%
International
Number of customers (in thousands)
Mobile 12,685 9,626 +31 8%
Fixed 298 299 -03%
Broadband Internet a0 99 -91%
na* not applicable
a  Excluding the impact of non-recurrent termination of inactive customers
b Includes narrowband and leased line accesses
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Revenues and EBITA

Maroc Telecom group's revenues were €2,689 million, a 1 8% decrease compared to 2011 {-3 0% at constant currency} The group's overall
customer base mamtained positive momentum in 2012 with a 13 5% increase and reached nearty 33 milion customers, primanly due to a
30 4% increase In the international market year-on-year

Operations in Morocco generated revenues of £2,088 million, a 6 1% decrease compared to 2011 {-7 4% at constant currency) This change
reflected the successive cuts in mobile termination rates carried out in Januvary and July 2012, the additional price cuts m the mobile
segment {-34 §%), and the decrease n fixed-line revenues under competitive pressure from the mobile segment The economic slowdown
and competitive environment continued to be very intense

The group’s international actvities generated revenues of €638 million, a strong 18 4% growth compared to 2011 (+17 7% at constant
currency) This performance resulted trom very strong growth among mobile customers +31 8%), enbanced product offers and higher
customer usage In a stable competitive enviranment Despite the conflict in Mali, the growth in revenues continued at a very sustained
place {+15 7% at constant currency)

The group’s EBITDA amaunted to €1,505 mulion, a 0 3% increase compared to 2011 (-0 9% at constant currency) This perfarmance reflected
a strong 43 5% growth {+42 6% at constant currency} in international EBITDA, which offset the 6 6% decline in EBITDA 1n Morocco EBITDA
margin increased by 12 percentage point year-an-year, reaching the high level of 56 0%

The group’s EBITA amounted to €387 mullion, a 4% dechne compared to 2011 {-10 5% at constant currency) Excluding restructunng
charges of €79 million, EBITA amounted to €1,066 million, a 2 1% decrease, representing a 39 6% margin, a modest 0 2 percentage point
decrease

Cash flow from operations (CFF0)

Maroc Telecom group's cash flow fram operations amounted to €1,066 millon, @ €31 miilion increase compared to 2011 (+3 0%/, primanly
due to the ngrease in EBITDA after changes in net working capital €94 mitlion} and to the reduction in capital expenditwres, net
{(+€9 million), which was partially offset by the restructuring charges pad {-€79 million)
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425 GVT
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in millians of euros, except for margins) 2012 201 % Change constant rate
Telecoms 1,633 1,444 +131% 22 1%
Pay-TV (a) 83 2 na* na"
Total Revenues 1,716 1,446 +18 1% +282%
Telecoms 749 616 +21 6% +316%
Pay-TV (a} (9) {15) na* na*
Total EBITDA 140 601 +231% +33 4%
EBITDA margin rate (%) 43 1% 416% + 5pt
EBITA 488 39% +23.2% +33 7%
EBITA margin rate (%) 284% 27 4% +ipt
Total Capital expenditures, net (capex net) 947 705 +34.3%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO} (326} {147} x22
Net Revenues (IFRS, in millions of BRL)
Voice 2,577 2,081 +238%
Pay-TV (a) n 4 na*
Corporate and carrer data 263 235 +119%
Broadband Internet 1,188 972 +22 2%
VolP 61 62 -16%
Total 4,300 335 +28.2%
Number of covered cities 139 19 +20
Net Revenues hy region
Region |1 59% 63% -4 pts
Regions 1 & i 41% 37% +4 pts
Total homes passed (in thousands of iings) 9,095 1,207 +26.2%
Number of lines in service (in thousands)
Retail and SME 5515 4,372 +26 1%
Vorce 3358 2708 +24 0%
Broadband internet 2157 I 663 +297%
Proportion of offers > 10 Mbps 80% 75% +5pts
Corporate 3,154 1,954 +61 4%
Total Télécoms 8,669 6326 +37 0%
Pay-TV (a} 406 32 na"
Total 9,075 6,358 +42 7%
Net New Additions (in thousands of [ines)
Retail and SME 1,143 1,337 -145%
Voice 645 769 -15 6%
Broaghand internet 494 568 130%
Corporate 1,200 757 +58 5%
Total Télécoms 2343 2,094 +119%
Pay-TV {a) 374 3z na*
Total 2,117 2126 +27 8%
ARPU by line - Retall and SME {BRL/month}
Voice 648 669 31%
Broadband Internet 509 580 -12 2%

na" notapplicable
a  GVT launched its pay-TV offer in October 2011
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Revenues and EBITA

GVT's revenues reached €1,716 million, an 18 7% increase compared to 2011 {+28 2% at constant currency), excluding the impact of tax
changes (VAT), revenues increased by 35% at constant currency In 2012, GVT expanded 1ts coverage to 20 additional cities and currently
covers 139 cities As a result of commercial efforts and geographical network expansien, GVT Telecom lines-in-service reached
8 669 million, a 37 0% rncrease year-on-year After only one year in operation, its pay-TV service generated revenues of €83 million

GVT was named the best Broadband service in Brazil far the 4% consecutive year, offering the most modern and differentiated netwark in
Brazd At the end of 2012, 44% of its customers opted for speeds equal to or higher than 15 Mbps, compared to 37% ane year ago

Launched commercially in January 2012, the number of subscribers to its new pay-TV service totaled about 406,000 as of
December 31, 2012, representing an 18 8% penetration rate among the broadband customer base Dunng 2012, GVT's share of the net adds
of the entire Brazian pay-TV market reached 11 4%, and when considering only the cities where it operates, GVT's share of net adds
reached 27 7%

GVT's EBITDA was €740 million, a 23 1% increase compared to 2011 (+33 4% at constant currency) and EBITDA margin reached the record
level of 43 1%, or 45 9% for the telecom activities only

GVT's EBITA was €488 million, a 23 2% (ncrease compared to 2011 {+33 7% at constant currency and +57 5% excluding the impact of the
VAT change and at constant currency)

GVT's capital expenditures amounted to €347 mmilion, a 34 3% increase compared o 2011, of which approsamately €248 million related to
the pay-TV business GVT reached break-even on an EBITDA-Capex bass for its telecom activities

Cash flow from operatons (CFFO)

GVT's cash flow from operations amounted to -E326 million, compared to -€147 mullion in 2011 This change reflected the increase in GVT's
capital expenditures, net to £947 muhon tn 2012, comparad ta €705 mulion i 2011, which was pimanly related to investments in networks
in order to (ncrease coverage in regions | and Ili, as well as investments relating to the pay-TV operations However, cash flow from
operations before capital expenditures {CFFO before capex, net} increased by 11 3% 10 2012, to €621 million, reflecting the growth in EBITDA
after changes n net working capiial
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426 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

{in millions of euros, except for margins) 02 2011 % Change constant rate
Revenues {a) 5,013 4857 +32% +32%
EBITDA 940 913 +30% +31%
EBITA 663 m 54% 53%

EBITA margin rate (%) 132% 144% -1 2pt

D8, 017 and "n" integration (including transition costs) a1 -
EBITA excluding D8 D17, and *n” integration {including transition costs) 714 701 +1 9%
Cash flow from operations (CFFD) 476 484 1 7%

Subscriptions (in thousands}

Pay TV France (b} 9580 3760 B0

Canal+ Overseas (c) 1683 1456 +227
Canal+ France 11363 11216 +147
Poland {at constant perimeter) and Vigtnam 1,882 1730 +152
Total Canal+ Group at constant perimstar 13245 12,946 +299
"n" platform in Poland 1,009 na” +1 009
Tatal Canal+ Group 14,254 12,946 +1,308
Churn, per digital subscnber (Mamtand France) 136% 121% +15pt
ARPU 1n euros per subscriber (Mainjand France} 480 475 +11%

n_u

a Includes the D8 and D17 free-to-awr channels, consolidated since September 27, 2012, as well as the "n" platform, consolidated since
November 30, 2012 The contrsbution of these entities to Canak+ Group’s revenues amounted to €41 million, since their respective
consohidation date For information, revenues and EBITA of D8, D17, and “n" amounted to €287 million and -€95 million 1n 2012,
respectively

b Includes subscript:ons with commitment at Canal+ and Canal3at, as well as subscriptions with no commitment at CanalPlay Infimity in
Mainland France

¢ Includes French overseas terntornies and Afnca

Revenues and EBITA

Canal+ Group's revenues were €5,013 million, a 3 2% increase compared to 2011 {+2 4% at comparable penmeter, 1 € excluding D8, D17
and the new activities in Poland)

At the end of December 2012, Canal+ France, which includes Canal+ Group’s pay-TV activities in France and French-speaking countries, had
11 363 million subscriptions, representing a net growth of 147,000 year-on-year This growth was driven by strong performances at Canal+
Overseas (in French overseas terntories and primanly in Africa), which had 1683 milhon subscriptions at year-end, a net growth of
227,000 subscriptions, compared to 2011 In maimland France, the subscription portfolio reached 9 680 mullion, & slight decrease compared to
2011 due to a difficult economic and competitive environment Average revenug per subscrber increased shghtly to €48, parbcularly
reflecting impraved cross-selling between Canal+ and CanalSat offerings

Revenues from other Canal+ Group activities grew strongly thanks to StudioCanat and new internatianat activities (natably 1n Poland and
Vietnam), as well as to free-to-air TV

Excluding the impact of D8, D17 and the new activities in Poland (as well as transition costs), Canal+ Group's EBITA amounted to
£714 million, a 1 9% increase year-on-year, thanks to Canal+ Overseas’ growth, notably in Afnica, and despite the negative impact of a VAT
rise {around €40 million} Including the 1impact of the integration of the new actvities 1n Poland and of D8 and D17, Canal+ Group’s EBITA
reached €663 million

0On January 31, 2013, Canal+ Group renewed its exclusive nights to England's Premier League, the world’s most widely broadcast football
championship, for the coming three seasons As a result, it will be positioned to offer its subscribers the best French and European soccer,
with the top two of the Ligue 1, the top Champions League and 100% of the English Premier League In addition, Canal+ Group announced
on February 14, 2013, that it had secured exclusive nghts in France to the Formula 1 world championship

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Canal+ Group’s cash flow from operations amounted to €476 million, compared to €484 million in 2011 The favorable evolution in EBITDA
after changes n net working capital were offset by the increase in content investments, net {notably StudioCanal)
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4.2.7 Holding & Corporate

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros) 2012 2011

EBITA {115) (100)
Cash flow from operatians {CFFO) {94} (84}
EBITA

Holding & Corporate’s EBITA was -€115 million, compared to -€100 million in 2011, due notably to higher iigation costs and several one-
time items

Cash flow from operations (CFF0)

Holding & Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€94 rilhon, compared to -€84 million in 2011 The change in cash flow from
operations between 2011 and 2012 was maunly atinbutable ta the change in EBITA

4.28 Non-core operations and others

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2012 20M

Non-core operations and others 65 a4

Elimination of intersegment transactions (89) {82}

Total Revenues {24) {41)

EBITA {14) {22}

Cash flow from operations {CFFO) {9 [16)
Revenues and EBITA

Revenues from non-core operations amounted to €65 mullron, a €24 million increase, following the 2012 contribution of Digitick (€11 million

mn 2012, compared to €9 muthon mn 2011}, and of See Tickets (£33 rullion ;m 2012, compared to €12 mulion n 2011} acquired on
August 23, 201

EBITA from nen-core operations amounted to -€14 mullion w 2012, compared 10 -€22 milhon 1 2011 This increase was mamly due o the
contribution of See Tickets (€11 million in 2012, compared to €4 mulleon 10 2011}

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

Cash flow from operations from non-core operations amounted to -€9 mithon, compared to -€16 millran in 2011 This change was mainly
related to the change in EBITA
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments:

5.1

Vivend: considers Financral Net Debt, a non-GAAP measure, ta be a relevan! indicator in measunng Vivendy's indebtedness Financial Net
Debt is calculated as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and other long-term and short-term financial iabilities as reported
on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position as well as denvative financial instruments in assets, cash depasits backing borrowings. and certain cash management
financial assets (included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”) Financial Net Debt should be
considered n addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures reported on the Consoldated Statement of Financial Position,
as well as other measures of ndebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP Vivendi Management uses Financial Net Debt for reporting
and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants of Vivend:

In addition, cash and cash equivalents are not fully avalable for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes including but
not linnted to, acquisitions of businesses, capital expenditures, dividends contractual obligations and working capital

Summary of Vivendi's exposure to credt and liquidity risks

Vivend!'s financing policy consists of incurring long-term debt, mainly 1n bond and banking markets, at a variable or fixed rate, n euros or In
US dollars, depending on general corporate needs and market conditions

Non-current financial debts are primartly raised by Vivendi SA, which centralizes the group’s financing management, except for Activision
Blizard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, in 2012, Vivend: pursued its policy of disintermediatian, having recourse n
priority to the band market Vivend: also sought to dwersify its investor base by 1ssuing on the Amencan bond market and pursued
its policy of maintaining the “economc” average term of the group’s debt above 4 years In addition, Vivend: has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which s renewed each year, in order to take advantage of every euro
bond market opporturuty Vivendi's bank counterparties must meet certain critena of financial soundness, reflected in their credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreover, to comply wath the rating agencies’ prudentia! requlations regarding liguidity
management, Vivend: arranges to the extent possible, the refinancing of all expiring bank credit facilities or bonds one year in
advance As a result in 2012, Vivend: made three bond issuances i euro for @ total amount of £2.250 miMion (January, Aprl and
December 2012}, and one issuance (n US dollars for $2,000 million {April 2012)

Contractual agreements for credit facilities granted to Vivendi SA do not include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivendi SA 1s notably required to comply with a financ:al covenant {please refer to Note 22 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31,2012} The credit facihities granted to group companies other than Vivendi SA are
intended to finance erther the general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or specific projects

In 2012, investments, working capital, debt service {including the redemption of borrowings), and the payment of income taxes and
the dwvidend distribution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset disposals, and borrowing or share 1ssuances
{Direct 8 and Direct Star) For the foreseeable future and based on the current finangial conditions on the financial market, subject
to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope, Vivend! intends to maintain
this financing policy for its investments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

The group’s bond debt amounted to €10,888 million (compared to €3,276 million as of December 31, 2011) In 2012, Vivend: 1ssued
bonds 1n euros and 1n US dollars for a total amount of £3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of €2,048 million {of
which $700 million (or €448 mullion) were early redeemed in Apnl/May 2012) For additional information on this bond debt, please
refer to Section § 4 below The group's bond debt represented 61% of the borrowings the Statement of Financial Position
(compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011}

The total amount of the group’s confirmed credit facihties amounted to £9.,039 million {compared to €12,083 million as of
December 31, 2011) The group's aggregate amount of cred:t facilities nerther drawn nor batked by commercial paper amounted to
£3.361 million {compared to £6,635 million as of December 31, 2011) The decrease in the amount of credit facilities neither drawn
nor backed by commercial paper was notably due to the disintermediation policy, the mcrease n the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by drawing on credit facilities

Vivendi SA's and SFR's total confirmed credit facilities amounted to €8,340 mullion as of December 31, 2012 (including €2 bilhon i
available swinglines), compared to €11,242 million as of December 31, 2011 Al these credit facilities have a matunty greater than
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one year These credit faclities were drawn for €1,894 million as of December 31, 2012 Considering the €3,255 million

commercial paper 1ssued at that date and backed to bank credit facilities, these facilities were available up to a maximum amount
of €3,191 mllion

» Inconnection with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Carporation htigation, Vivendi wll shortly deliver a letter
of credit 1ssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 million [damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivend) has signed a
Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
ietter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contained n Vivendi's credit facilities In certain circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivendi to have to post cash
coltateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the 15 banks defaults tn respect of its abligations and was not
able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of Amenca, Vivendi could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a last resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank’s participation in the
letter of credit

o  The short-term borrowings mamly included 1ssued commercial paper The “"economic”™ average term of the group’s debt was
4 4 years {compared to 4 Q years as of Decernber 31, 2011}

o  Finally, there 1s no restriction on the use of the financial resources which the group’s companies benefit {including Vivend: SA) that
may materially affect, directly or indirectly, the group’s activities

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negative that 1t had placed on Vivendi's debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, which 1s used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivendi reaffirmed its commitment to maintaining such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivend's financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivend: SA and SFR had available confirmed credit facilities amounting to €8,340 mullion, of which €500 mullion were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilities for £3,991 million, these
faciities were available for an aggregate amount of €3,849 million Moreover, the sale of Parlophone Label Group, announced on February 7,
2013, for £487 mullion (please refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012), should be
finahized dunng the second half of 2013

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivendi considers that the cash flows generated by 1ts operating activities, 1ts cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit faciities will be sufficient te cover 1ts operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service 1ts debt (including the redemption of borrowings), pay its income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
investment projects, if any, for the next twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change in scope In addition, Vivendi considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place in connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation litigation will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Carporation until the appeal 15 resolved
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52 Financial Net Debt changes

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendr's Financial Net Debt amounted to €13,419 million {compared to €12,027 million as of December 31, 2011), a
£1,392 million increase This change notably reflected the following transactions

- the impact of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {€1,329 million, of which €1,363 million paid in cash and €34 million net cash
acquired) and the 40% wnterest 1n N-Vision (€277 million, excluding the redemption of the loan granted by Canal+ Group to [T} in
Navember 2011), for further detalls please refer to Section 11 above,

- the cash payments related to capital expenditures (64,490 million, of which €1,065 million was paid in January 2012 by SFR for 4G
mobile spectrum),

- the dwidends paid notably to shareowners of Vivend SA (€1,245 million), Maroc Telecom SA (€345 million}, and Activision Blizzard
(€62 million), and the impact of Activision Blizzard's stock repurchase program (€241 million), and

- Interest expense (€568 mullion),

the above 1tems being offset by net cash generated by operating activities of business segments (€7,106 million} and by the capital
increase subscribed by employees in connection with Vivendi SA's employee stock purchase plan in Juty 2012 (€127 million)

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated December 31,2012 December 31, 2011

ncial Statement
{in millions of euros) financial Sta 3

Borrowings and other financial kabilities 17,757 15,710
of whigh fong-term (a) 22 12,6567 12,409
short-term (a) 2 5090 3,301

Cash management financial assets (B} (c) 15 {301} (266)
Dervatve financial nstruments in assets (b) 15 {137} (101
Cash deposits backing borrowings (b) 15 {6) (12
17,313 15,331

Cash and cash equivalents (a) 17 {3894) (3304)
of which Actision Bhizzard {2 969) {2.448)
Financial Net Debt 13.419 12,027

a Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
b Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

¢ Pumanly included Activision Blizzard's US treasuries and government agency securities, with a matunity exceeding three months

Cash and cash Borrowings and other  Impact on Financial Net
equivalents financial 1tems {a) Debt

{in milhons of euros)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2011 (3.309) 15,331 12,027
Qutflows/linflows) generated by

Cperating activities (7 106} - {7 106}

Investing activities 6042 2 6 063

Finanging activities 477 2085 2512
Foreign currency translation adjustments 47 {124} {77)
Change in Financial Net Debt over the period {590} 1982 1392
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2012 {3,894} 17313 13419

a  "Other financial items” inciude commitments to purchase non-contralling interests, denvative financial instruments (assets and
liahilities}, cash deposits backing borrowings, as well as cash management financial assets
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5.3 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

{in millions of euras)

EBIT

Adjustments

Coritent nvestments net

Gross cash provided by oparating sctivitres before mcome tax pard
Other changss in net working capital

Ne! cash provided by operating sctivitres balore mcome tax pard
tncome tax paid net

Oparating activitios

Financial investments
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash
of which atquisihon of EM! Bacorded Music by Vivend: and UMG
Payment in cash
Nat cash acquired
Invastments in equity affillates
of which acquisition of 40% interest in N Vistan by Canal+ Groug
Increasa n financial assets
Total financial investments
Finsacial divesiments
Proceads from sales of consolidated compames after dvested cash
Disposal of equity affiliates
Detreass in financial assets
of which redempiion of the loan granted by Canale Group to IT1
Total financial divestments
Financral investmant acbvities
Drvidends received from equity affihates
Dmdends receved from unconsolidated companies
Net investing activities excloding capital expenditures and p

Year enced December 31 2012

Befer 1o

from sales of property, plant, squipment and intangible sssets
Capital expenditures
Proceods trom sales of proparty glant eguipment and inangitie assets
Caprtal expenditures, net
Inyesting activities

sactgn  MPact on cash and Jmpact on borrowings  Impact on Finangial
cash equivalents and cther financizl items Net Debt
: e : )
{5199) 15 199)
29 299
(rim - 7778
0 190)
3 ] - {7.858]
3 762 76
(7108} - 17,106}
1374 58 1432
! 1260 4 1329
1383 1353
(83} 4 134
sz w
! m 277
kil {60} 29
1795 2 1,757
i3y 13
m P
(2is) n 192)
1 1201 120/
259) <) (216)
1556 Fl 1577
@ )
m )
1552 F3] 151
1516 e
9 (2
3 4490 P
6,042 1] ﬁ.ﬁ:&-

Please refer to the next page for the end of this table
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Continued from previous page

Year ended December 31 2012

nsizot: Impact on cash and Impact on borrowings Impact on Financial
cash equivalants and other financial stems Net Debt
{in millians of euros}
Tr tions with sh. 1]
Net proceeds from rssuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share based compensation plans (131} {131}
of which caputal increase subscrbed by employees 1 connegtion witf the stock purchase plarr 127) - 127
|Salesi/purchases of Vivendi SA s treasury shares 18 18
Drndends paid by Vevend: SA (€1 per share} | 15 1245
Other transactions with shareowners ol - 29
of which stock repurchase program of Actiwsion Bhezatd 1 241 241
Dradends pad by consohdated companies to their non-contralling interests 1 483 483
of which Maroc Telecom SA 345 45
Activision Bhzzard 62 - 62
Total transections with sharsowners 1.EH - 1884
' Transactions on borrowings and other financial habiiting
Setting up of long tem borrowangs and Increase in ether long term financial lisbilities 54 (5859 5859
of which bonds (3 758) 3758
bank credit facihties {1894 1894
Principal payments on long term borrowsngs and decrease In other long term financial habiiities 4217 s
of which bank credit facitties 4176 {4 176)
Principal payments on short term borrowangs 54 2615 12 615)
of which bonds 2048 {2048}
bank credit faciities 27 271 -
commercial paper 40 (40)
Other changes in shost term bemowings and other financial habilimes {3 056) 3056
of which commercial paper {2 757} 2 767
Non-cash transactions 2 2
Interest paid net 3 568 568
Other cash items related to financial activities 3 98 8
Total transactions on borrowgs and other financial haliites 1417 2085 658
Financing actmnes c 2] 2085 2512
foresgn currency translation adjustments D 47 {124) [12i]
Change m Financial Net Dobt A+84C+D {530) 1,882 1392

5.4 New financings

Bonds
in January 2012, Vivend: 1ssued a €1,250 million bond, witha 5 5-year matunity and a 4 125% coupon, and an effective rate of 431%

In Apnil 2012, Vivend: made the foliowing transactions in the bond markets

1 e A $2 billon bond issue consisting of the following three tranches
w - $550 million with a 2 4% coupon maturing 1n Apni 2015 and an effective rate of 250% A USD-EUR foreign currency hedge
{cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche with a rate of 1 3082 USD/EUR, or a €420 million counter value at

maturity,
. $650 million, with a 3 450% coupon maturing in January 2018 and an effective rate of 356%, and
- $800 millon, with a 4 750% coupon maturing 1n April 2022 and an effective rate of 4 N%
This bond natably allowed the early redemption, through a tender offer, of the $700 mitlion bond, with an imtial scheduled maturity in

Apn! 2013

o A €300 million tap issue an the €750 million bond maturing in July 2021, with a 4 750% coupon This transaction increased the total
amount of the bond 1ssue to €1,050 million, with an effective rate of 4 67% {compared to 4 90% as of December 31, 2011]

in December 2012, Vivend: 1ssued a €700 million bond, with a 7-year and one month matunty and a 2 500% coupon, and an effective rate of
2 65%

Moreover, the bonds issued in February and July 2005 for €600 million and €1,000 million were redeemed upon maturity n February and
July 2012, respectively
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Bank credit facilities

o In January 2012, Vivendi set up a €1 1 bilhon bank credit faciity with a 5-year matunty, which permitted the early rehinancing of the
€15 billion credit facdity wath an initral scheduted matunty 1n December 2012 and a €05 billion SFR syndicated loan with an initial
scheduled maturity :n March 2012, and

s InMay 2012, Vivend: set up a €1 5 billton bank credit facility maturing in May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of the two credit
facilities for a total amount of €3 billion {the €2 billion credit facility set up in August 2006, maturing 1n August 2013 for €1 7 bilon and in
August 2012 for €0 3 bilhon, as well as the €1 biflion cred:t facility set up in February 2008, matunng m February 2013}

Moreover, in June 2012, Vivend increased the maximum amount authorized by the Bangue de France regarding Vivendi SA's commercial
paper program from €3 billron to €4 billion

For a detailed analysis of the bond and bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

55 Financing of subsidiaries

Excluding primanly Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling) of all controlled
entities {a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or {b) that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to a 100% awnerstup interest in SFR on June 16, 2011 {please refer to Note 2 5 to the Consoldated
Financial Statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2012}, has enabled Vivend) SA to centralize all of SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis
from July 1, 2011 through a cash pooling account

Alternatively, in particular at Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not poeled by Vivendi SA but rather, as the case
may be, distrtbuted as dividends when they are not used to finance investments of the relevant subsidiaries, as common stock repurchases
or to redeem borrowings used to finance their investments Regarding Activision Blizzard, up until July 8, 2013, the distnibution of any
dividend by Actwision Blizzard requires the affiumative vote of a majonty of the independent disectors 1f Actvision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds $400 million

Activision Bhezzard's net cash position amounted to €3,230 milhion {€2,714 million as of December 31, 2011 This amount notably includes US
treasunies and govermment agency secunities having a matunty exceeding three months for $387 millton {compared to $344 million as of
December 31, 2011}, classified as short-term financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positron [n addition, cash and cash
equivalents also include cash held outside the United States by Activision Blizzard's non-Amencan subsidianes for €1,936 million (compared
to €1,266 million as of December 31, 2011} The funds held by foreign subsidianes are generally subject to US income taxation an
repatriation to the United States

Maroc Tetecom group’s Financial Net Debt amounted to €638 million (€617 million as of December 31, 2011)
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6 Outlook

Preliminary comments. The outlook for 2013 presented below regarding revenues, EBITA, EBITA margin rates, EBITDA, EBITDA margin
rates, cash flow from operations (CFFO), and capital expenditures 1s based on data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable by
Vivend: Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties related i particular to the economic, financial,
competitive and/or requiatory environment Moreover, the matenalization of certain nisks described in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements could have an impact on the group’s operations and 1ts abiity to achieve its outlook for 2013 Finally, Vivend: considers that the
non-GAAP measures, EBITA EBITDA, CFFO. and capital expenditures are relevent mdicators of the group’s operating and financial
performance

Vivendi's 2012 actuals compared to outlook

o (On March 1, 2012, Vivend: expected a 2012 adjusted net income above €2 5 billon, before the impact of the transactions announced
i the second half of 2011 {as a reminder acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by UMG, acquisition of the DB and D17 channels by
Canal+ Group, and strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN in Paland) As a result, the group expected to propose a
cash dividend with respect to fiscal year 2012 representing around 45% to 55% of adjusted net income In addition, Vivend: expected
Financial Net Debt to be below €14 billion at year end 2012, assuming closing by end of 2012 of the transactions announced in the
second half of 2011

» On November 13, 2012, given the better than expected performance of Vivend!'s businesses for the first nine months of 2012, which
offset the economic slowdown and heavier tax environment, Vivend announced an impravement in the 2012 adjusted net income
guidance to “around £2 7 billion, before the impact of the transactions annaunced in the second half of 2011 and the restructuring
charges n telecom operations”

¢ In2012, Vivend''s adjusted net ncome amounted to £2,550 millian, after the impact of the transactions announced in the second half
of 2011 {-€51 million for Canal+ Group and -€2 million for UMG} and restructuring charges in its telecom operations (-E187 million for
SFR and -€79 million for Maroc Telecom group), as well as the fine incurred by SFR {-€66 million} Excluding these non-recurmng items
and after the impact of :come taxes and non-controlling tnterests, adjusted net income amounted to €2,862 million, above the
upgraded guidance announced on November 13, 2012

e In addition, at the end of December 2012, Financial Net Debt amounted to €13 4 billion {below the guidance of “below €14 billion™)
and the Management Board will propose, at the General Shareholders” Meeting held on Apnil 30, 2013, a €1 dividend per share, to be
paid in cash, representing a distribution of €1,300 million, or 51% of adjusted net income, or 45% of adjusted net income, excluding
these nan-recurring items

Vivendr's outlook for 2013

» Vivendi's new strategic onentation focuses on strengthening in media and content and the maximization of SFR's value The group’s
strong presence In content {games, music, and audiovisual} provides a selid and unique foundation to build a worldwide European-
born media leader Vivend) owns and creates high-quality content with strong brands and a unigue know-how Moreover, SFR will
strive to statilize its operations thanks to a proactive commercial strategy, invest to boast growth, adapt 11s cost structure to a new
bipolarized market (and execute the €500 million fixed cost savings plan), and seek to enter into partnerships (network sharing /
industrial partnerships)

» Through this strengtheming in media and content and the maximization of SFR's value, Vivendi's Management Board remains
committed to focusing on shareholder value creation (through dividend distnbutions, share buybacks, and strategic acquisitions),
adjusted net income per share, and maintaining a long-term credit rating of BBB (Standard & Poor's / Fitch) / BaaZ (Moody's)

o Vivendi's prionties far 2013 will be to focus on cash flow generation in a slow economic environment, continue to adapt its telecoms
businesses to a challenging enviranment, and integrate the acquisitions closed in 2012 and deliver initial synergies

Activision Blizzard

o In 2012, Activision Blizzard exceeded its guidance with an EBITA of £1,149 million, driven by the strength of its main franchises (Calf
of Duty, Skylanders World of Warcraft and Diablo If}

e In the short term, Activision Blizzard expects to deliver strong profitability, but below 1ts record setting 2012 performance, due to a
challenged global economy, the ongoing console transition and a smaller number of game reteases compared to 2012 However, for
2013, the EBITA guidance 1s stifl above $1 billion

« In addition, according to February 7, 2013's announcement an outlook, Activision Bhzzard 1s considering or may consider during 2013,
substantral stock repurchases, dvidends, acquisttions, licensing ar ather non-ordinary course transactions, and significant related debt
financings Activision Blizzard's full year 2013 outlook does not take into account any such transactions or financings that may or may
not occur duning the year, with the exception of the $0 19 per share cash dividend announced on February 7, 2013
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Umiversal Music Group (UMG)

SFR

In 2012, n ine with 1ts guidance, UMG achieved a double digit EBITA marqin, at constant penmeter (before the impact of the
acquistion of EMI Recorded Music, announced on November 11, 2011 and completed on September 28, 2012} 12 4%, compared to
12 1% 1n 2011, notably thanks to the increase in digital sales and to cost reductions

For 2013, UMG expects an increase in EBITA, with a positive contribution from EMI Recorded Music, incfuding restructuring charges
The combination of UMG and EMI Recorded Music 1s expected to generate annual synergies abave £100 million per annum by the end
of 2014, desprte having to sell one third of EMI Recorded Music's revenues

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EM! Recorded Music, for £487 million {approximately €600 million after taking into
account the EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge m place), to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less
significative divestments (of which notably Sanctuary, Mute, Co-Op) were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed
£530 mullion, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

In 2012, the decrease in EBITDA, excluding negative and positive non-recurnng items (-€15 million 1n 2012 and +€93 million in 2011),
decreased by 10 6% thanks to (ts adaptation plan and the strong control of its commercial costs Cash flow from operations, excluding
the impact of the acquisition of 4G spectrum for €1,065 million amounted to €1,758 million Capital expenditures, net amounted to
£€2,736 million 1n 2012 {€1,871 milhion excluding the acquisition of 4G spectrum) In addition, in 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan
while continuing to invest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt 1ts organization to changing market condit:ons In November 2012,
1t announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

For 2013, SFR expects EBITDA of close to €2 9 billion and capital expenditures, net of argund €1 6 billion and confirms 1ts objective to
reduce operational costs by approximately €500 million by year-end 2014

Maroc Telecom group

In 2012, Maroc Telecom group's EBITA margin, excluding restructuring charges, was better-than-expected, at 39 6% thanks to
outstanding results of (ts International activities Cash flow from operations amounted to €1,066 mullion 1n 2012 (compared to
£€1,035 million 1n 2011}

For 2013, Maroc Telecom group expects to maintain the EBITDA margin at a substantial level of approximately 56% and a slight
growth in EBITDA - capex (excluding potential acquisition of spectrum and licenses)

In 2012, GVT’s revenues increased by 28 2%, at constant currency and 1t achieved an EBITDA margin of 43 1%, including the impact of
the pay-TV business Capital expenditures, net amounted to €947 million {compared to €705 miltion n 2011) For the telecom activities
anly, GVT reached break-aven on an EBITDA - capex basis

For 2013, GVT expects revenues growth in the low 20's at constant currency, an EBITDA margin slightly above 40%, and an EBITDA -
capex close to breakeven

Canal+ Group

In 2012, in Ine wath 1ts guidance, Canat+ Group’s EBITA increased by 1 9% at constant permeter (before the impact of the acquisition
of the 08 and D17 channels, completed on September 27, 2012 and of the merger between Cyfra+ and “n” in Poland, completed on
November 30, 2012)

For 2013, Canal+ Group expects an EBITA of around €670 million {excluding restructuning charges related to pay-TV in Poland), up
£50 million compared with 2012 proforma EBITA of €620 mulhan, including a €95 million loss related to D8, D17 and “n”, assuming
ownerstup as of January 1, 2012
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7 Forward-looking statements

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements

This Financia Report contains forward-locking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strateqy, plans, and outlook of Vivend:, including projections regarding the payment of dividends as well as the impact of certan
transactions Although Vivends believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are
not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of
risks and uncertaintigs, many of which are outside Vivend's contral, including, but not imited to, the nsks refated to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals In connection with certain transactions as well as the risks described in the documents of the group filed with the
Autornite des Marchés Financiers {AMF} (the French secunities regulator), which are available in Enghsh on Vivendi's website
{www vivendi com) Accordingly, readers of this Financial Report are cautioned against relying on any of these forward-looking statements
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivendh disclasms any intention or obligation to provide,
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

8 QOther Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend! does not sponsor an Amencan Depositary Receipt (ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 15
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivendi Vivend) disclaims any hability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of such report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This
translation 1s qualified in 1ts entirety by the French version, which 15 available on the company's website (www vivendi com) In the event of
any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1. Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator of the group’s operating and financial performance
Viventh Management uses adjusted net income because 11 11lustrates the undertying performance of continuing operations more effectively
by excluding most non-recuriing and non-operating items Adjusted net income 1s defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financral
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended Becember 31,

{n midlions of euros) 2012 2011

Earmings atiributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (a} 168 2681
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business comhinations 487 510
Imparrment tosses on intangeble assets acquired through business combinations (a} 760 397
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States |g) 945 -
Other income (a) {22) (1,385}
Other charges (a) 235 656
Other financial income {a) (37) (14)
Other financial charges (a) 210 187
Change n deferred tax asset related to Vivench SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consoldated Global Profit Tax Systems 48 129
Non recurning 1tems related to provision: for income taxes {25) 41
Provision for mcome taxes on adjustments {203} {200
Non-controlling interests on adjustments {12) (30}

Adjusted net income 2,550 2,952

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings

Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

202 20M
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net ncome (in millions of euros) 2,550 2,547 (a) 2952 2,919 (a}
Number of shares {in millions)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b} {c) 12989 12989 1,28t 4 12814
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation {d} - 35 - 24
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 12389 13024 12814 12839
Adjusted net income per share {in euros} (b} 196 196 230 230

& Includes only the potential dilutive effect related to employee stock option plans and restricted stock plans for Activision Blizzard in a
non-significant amount

b  The weighted-average number of shares and adjusted net income per share have been adjusted for all periods previously published in
order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in
accordance with 1AS 33 - karnings per share Please refer to Section 1 1 8 of the Financial Report above

¢ Net of treasury shares (please refer to Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012)

d  Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share based compensation plan 15 preserted in Note 2122 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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2 Reconciliation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA'

As reported below, the reconcihiation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA to IFRS as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201115
based on

Activision Blizzard's data prepared in compliance with US GAAP standards, in US dollars, contained in its Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and non-GAAP measures published by Actwision Blizzard on February 22, 2013, and

data relating to Activision Blizzard established in accordance with IFRS standards, in euros, as published by Vivend in its Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Non-GAAP measures of Activiston Blizzard

Activision Blizzard provides net revenues, net income (loss), earnings {loss) per share, operating margin data and guidance both including (in
accordance with US GAAP) and excluding {non-GAAP} certain items The non-GAAP financial measures exclude the following items, as
applicable in any given reporting penod

|

i

v

v

vi

the change 1n deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's online-enabled games,
expenses related to equity-based compensation,

expenses 7elated to restructuring,

smpairment of Intangible assets acquired through business combinations,

the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, and

the income tax adjustments associated with any of the above items

Revenues reconciliation

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011

Non-GAAP Net Revenues {in milhons of dellars) 4987 4,489
Elimination of ngn-GAAP adjustments

Changes in deferred net revenues (a) (131) 266

} Net Revenues in U $ GAAP (in millions of dollars), as published by Activision

Blizzard 485 4,755
Flumination of U S GAAP vs IERS differences na* na*
Net Revenues in IFRS {in millions of dollars) 4 856 4,755
Doilar to eurg transiation
Net Revenues in IFRS {in millions of euros), as published by Vivendi 3,768 3.432
of which

Activision 2,370 2,047

Blizzard 1,160 1,082

Distribution 238 303

Please refer to the Notes on the next page

na* not applicable

? Note For a defimtion of EBITA please refer to Section 4 2 of thus Financial Report
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EBITA reconciliation.

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011
Non-GAAP Operating income/iLoss) {in millions of dollars) 1,698 1,358
Elimination of non-GAAP adstments
Changes in deferred net revenues and related cost of sales (a) (91} 183
Equity-based compensation expense {126} {103}
Restructuning charges - (26)
Amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (30) {72)
Impairment of intangibles acquired through business combinations - {12)
Operating Income/(Loss) in U $ GAAP (in millions of dollars), as published by
Activision Blizzard 1,451 1,328
Elmination of U S GAAP vs IFRS differences 5 7
Operating Income/iLoss) in IFRS (in milhons of dollars} 1,456 1,335
Elimination of items excluded from EBITA
Amortization of \ntangibles acquired through business combinations 30 12
Impainment of intangibles acquired through business combinations - 5
Other {1} {3)
EBITA m IFRS (in millions of dollars) 1,485 1,409
Dollar tg gure transiation
EBITA in IFRS (in millions of euros), as published by Vivend: 1,149 1,011
of which
Activision 678 520
, Blizzard 463 483
| Distrbution ] B

a  Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's

onlne-enabled games As of December 31, 2012, both in US GAAP and IFRS

¢ the change in deferred net revenues resulted in deferred revenues for $131 million (€103 mitlion) and, after taking nto account
related costs of sales, the spreading of margin from operations for $32 mithon (€72 mihon), and

s the deferred net revenues balance in the Statement of Financial Position amounted to $1,657 million {€1,251 mullien, compared to
$1,472 million (€1,139 million) as of December 31, 2011 After taking into account related costs of sales, the deferred margin
balance in the Statement of Financial Pgsition amounted to $1,324 milllon {£1,000 mullion), compared to $1,181 million
(€913 million} as of December 31, 2011
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3. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2012 and 2011 quarterly data

2012

1st Quarter ended 2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quanter ended
(in muillions of euros) March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 894 837 673 1,364
Unwersal Music Group 981 961 981 1541
SFR 2927 2,834 2,747 2,780
Maroc Telecom Group 676 687 665 661
GVT 432 an 429 434
Canal+ Group 1,232 1,238 1177 1,366
Non-core operations and others, and elimination
of intersegment transactions {3} (13 (%) {3
Total Vivend 7119 6,965 6,667 8243
EBITA
Actwision Biizzard 395 177 182 3%
Universal Music Group 68 88 82 287
SFR 561 552 537 {50
Maroc Telecom Group 273 190 266 258
GVT 116 107 18 147
Canak+ Group 236 247 239 (59)
Holding & Corporate {25) {44) (26} (20)
Non-core operations and others {3) {1} (4) {6}
Total Vivendi 1621 1,316 1384 952

2011

Tst Quarter ended  2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
{in millions of euros} March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 1,061 796 b33 1,042
Universal Music Group 881 982 979 1,385
SFR 3,056 3,064 307 3,046
Maroc Telecom Group 672 689 698 680
GVT 329 353 395 369
Canal+ Group 1,192 1,200 1,17 1,294
Non-core operations and others and elimination
of intersegment transactions 7 (15) (16) (3)
Total Vivend 1,184 7,063 6,771 17183
EBITA
Actwision Blizzard 502 KXY 18 60
Universal Music Group 46 86 112 263
SFR 566 675 644 393
Maroc Telecom Group 266 265 302 256
GVT 90 97 112 97
Canal+ Group 265 230 237 (31}
Holding & Corporate (20) {22) (17} (41
Non-core opsrations and others (10) {4} (5) {3}
Total Vivendi 1,205 1,658 1,503 994

Data presented above takes into constderation the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates
at Universal Music Group EMI Recorded Music {September 28, 2012), and
- atCanal+ Group DB and D17 {September 27, 2012) and “n” {November 30, 2012)
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Il - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31 2012 on

o the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vivendi S A, hereinafter referred to as “the Company |
e the justification of our assessments, and

e the specific verfications required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role 1s to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, based on our audit

I. Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable 1n France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained (s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
group and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union

Il Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de Commerce) relating to the justificaticn of our
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

in connection with our assessment of the accounting principles applied by your Company

e Note 136 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the applicable critena for classifying and accounting for
discontinued operations or assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 We venfied the correct application of this accounting
principle and we ensured that Note 2 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to
management’s position as of December 31, 2012

e At each financial year end, your Company systematically performs impaiment tests of goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
lives, and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets. according to the
methods described 1n Note 1357 to the Consolidated Financial Statements We examined the methods used to perform these
impairment tests, as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 9 to the Consolidated
financial Statements provide appropriate disclosures thereon

e Note 139 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax andNote 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venified the correct application of these accounting principles
and also examined the assumptions underlying the positions as of December 31, 2012 We ensured Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropriate information on tax assets and liabiities and on your company's tax positions

e Notes 138 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
Iiigation We examined the methods used within your group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such
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Itigations We also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 131
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could
have an impact upon the reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Fnancial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to
the opmon we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report

Hl Specific verdication

We have alse vertfied, 1n accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the (nformation previded in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters 1o report as to its fair presentation and its conformety with the Consolidated Financial Statements

Paris-la Défense, Febryary 25, 2013

The Statutory Auditors
KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES
Département de KPMG S A
Frédénc Quélin Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling, general and adminustrative expenses

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States
Other income

Other charges

Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)

Incorne from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from investments

(Other financial income

Other financial charges

Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

Earmings from discontinued operations

Earmings

Of which

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivends SA shareowners per share -
basic

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share -
dituted

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, In euros

Note

62

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
28,994 28,813
{14,364} {14,391)

{9,482) (8911}
{352} {161}
(760) {397
(945) -

22 1,385
{235) {656)
2,818 5682
(38) {18)
{568) (481)
g 75

37 14
(210) {167

2,108 5,105

(1,159) {1,378}
949 3727
949 3127
164 2,631
785 1,046
013 209
012 208
013 209
012 209

Note- Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share {basic and diluted) have been adjusted for all perods previously published
in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in

accordance with 1AS 33 - Farnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,
{n millions of euros) Note 2012 2011
Earnings 949 3,727
Foreign currency translation adjustments {605) 132
Assets available for sale 63 15
(Cash flow hedge instruments 2 78
Net investment hedge instruments 17 21
Tax 1 {24)
Unrealized gains/{losses) 103 a0
Other impacts, net - 12
Charges and wcome directly recogmized i equity g {502) 283
Total comprehensive income 47 4,011
of which
Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (317) 2,948
Tatal comprehensive income attnbutable to non-contraliing nterests 764 1,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2012 Vivend: /49



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{m millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwili

Non-current content assets
Qther intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments 1n equity affiliates
Non-curent financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

inventories

Current tax recervables

Current content assets

Trade accounts receivable and other
Cusrent financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share caprtal

Additonal paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial Liabilities
Deferred tax habilities

{Other non-current liabilities

Non-current liahihties

Current provisions

Shart-term borrowings and other financial Labilities
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payables

Liailities associated with assets held for sale
Current hhlabilities

Total iabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Note December 31, 2012

10
1
12
14
15

16

10
16
15
7

18

19
22

16

19
22
16

December 31, 2011

24,656 25,029
3,327 2,485
5,190 4,379
9,926 9,001

388 135
514 394
1,400 1,421
45,401 42,794
738 805
819 542
1,044 1,066
6,587 6,730
364 478
3,894 3,304
13,446 12,925
667 -

14113 12,925

59,514 55,119
7.282 6,360
821 8,225

(25} (28
2937 4,390

18,465 19447
291 2,623

21,436 22,070
3,094 1,568

12,667 12,409

991 728
1,002 864
17,754 15,570
m 586
5,090 3,301
14,196 13,987
321 205
20318 18,079
6 -

20,324 18,079

38078 33,649

59,514 55,119

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

{in m:lions of euros} Note 2012 2011

Operating activities
EBIT K1 2878 5,682
Adjustments 241 5.199 2,580
Content investments, net {299} {13)
Gross cash provided by operating activities befora incame tax paid 1778 8259
Other changes in net working capital 16 90 (307)
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 7,868 7,952
Inceme tax paid, net 63 {762) {1,090}
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,106 6,862

Investing activities
Capital expenditures 3 {4,516) {3.367)
Purchases of conschdated companies, after acquired cash 2 {1,374 {210
Investments in equity affiliates 14 (322) {49)
fncrease in financial assets i5 {99) {377)
investments (6.311) {4,083
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 26 27
Proceeds from sales of consohdated companies, after divested cash 13 30
Disposal of equity affiliates 14 1" 2920
Decrease i financial assets 4 215 1,751
Divestituros 265 4,728
Dividends received from equity affiliates 3 79
Dividends receved from unconsolidated companies [ 3
Net cash provided byf{used for) investing activities {6,042) 807

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based

compensation plans 21 13 151
SalesApurchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares {18) {37}
Dividends paid by Vivend| SA to its shareowners 18 {1,245) (1.731)
Other transactions with shareowners {229) (7.909)
Dwidends patd by consohidated companies (o thew non-controlhng interests 18 {483} {1,154}
Transactions with shareowners (1,844) {10.680)
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in other leng-term financeal liabilities 22 5859 6,045
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease w othar long-term financial habibites 22 (4,217 {452
Principal payment on short-term borrowings 22 (2,615} (2.451)
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 22 3.056 597
interest pad, net 5 (568) {481)
Other cash items related to financral activities {58) (238)
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabifities 1417 3,019
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing activities (427) {2,661}
Foreign currency translation adjustments (47} (14)
Change i cash and cash equivalents 590 {6)

Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period 17 3304 3310
At end of the period 17 3,894 3304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consoltdated Financral Statements
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Tuesday February 26, 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivendi is a kmited fiability company (société anonyme) incorporated under French law, subject to French commercial company law and, In
particular, the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivend was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unfess the term 1s extended !ts registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Pans (France) Vivend 1s hsted on Euronext Pans [Compartment A)

Vivend 1s at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks and combines the warld's leader in video games
{Activision Blizzard), the world's teader in music (Universal Music Group), the French leader in alternative telecoms {SFR), the Moroccan leader
in telecoms (Maroc Telecom group), the leading afternative broadband operator in Brazil (GVT) and the French leader in pay-TV {Canal+ Group)

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries (the "group”) together
with interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in eurcs and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Having considered the Audit Committee’s recemmendation
given at its meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 22, 2013, reviewed the Financial Report
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the Management Board on
February 18, 2013

On Apnil 30, 2013, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 will be submitted for approval at Vivendi's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2012 Consclidated Financial Statements of Vivend: SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ({IFRS) as endorsed by the Evropean Union {EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board (|ASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2012

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.21 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main ling items presented in Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, nterest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents a
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding thase financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined 1n paragraph 12 3 and presented in Note 5

1.22 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided from operating activities

Net cash provided from operating activities is calculated using the indhrect method based on EBIT EBIT 15 adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided from operating activittes excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing actvities includes changes 1n net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments {particularly dividends received from equity affiliates) It also includes any cash flows anising from the gain
or loss of control of subsidianes

Net cash used for financing activihies

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
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derivative instruments 1t also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and of the group

Vivendh considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net income (ANI), and Cash Flow Fram Operations {CFFQ), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reperted in
the segment data The method used In calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
ncome and charges related to finantial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend to measure and
compare the cperating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance 1s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial income and charges related to
financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
investing transactions include gans and losses recognized in business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivend considers adjusted net incame, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and financial
performance Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because 1t better illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurning and non-operating items  Adjusted net income (ncludes the following items

EBITA(**),

income from equity affiliates (*} {**),

interest (*) {(**), corresponding to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
income from mvestments ("} (**), including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and

taxes and non-controliing interests related to these items

It does not include the fallowing items

e amortization of intangbles acquired through business combinatrons (**) as well as impairment losses on goodwill and other
intang bles acquired through bus:ness combinations (*) (**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above,

s other financial charges and income {*) (**}, equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination of change n value of financial liabihves, which pnmarily clude changes n fair value of dervative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of denvative instruments, the cost of issuing or cancaliing
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and habilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
earnings from discontinued operations {*} {**}, and

provisions for income taxes and adjustments attnbutable to non-cantrolling interests and non-recurning tax items (notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA's tax group and the Consolidated Glebal Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liahilities relating to risks extinguished over the period)

(*} ltems as prasented in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, {**) items as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations (CFFQ)

Vivend considers cash flow from operations {CFFO}, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s aperating and
financral performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsohidated companies It also includes caprtal expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating actwities, before income tax consists of dividends received from equity
affilates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabilities that are expected to be realized, or ntended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabilities If thewr matunity exceeds this penod, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabilities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements

13  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basts, with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities detailed below

The Cansolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and 1ts subsidianies after eliminating intragroup ttems and
transactions Vivend: has a December 31 year-end Subsidianies that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenm financial
statements at that date, except when therr year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidianies are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financsal Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group management to make certain estmates and
assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Even though these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend
Management based, in particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could impact the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

e revenue estmates of provisions for returns and price guarantees, and rewards as part of loyalty programs deducted from certain
revenue items (please refer to Note 1 3 4},

e Activision/Blizzard revenue estimates of the service penod over which revenue from the sale of boxes for video-games with
significant onfine functionality is recognized (please refer to Note 13 4 1),

o provisions nsk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events dunng the course of procedures
may lead to a nsk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 13 8 and 19,

e employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate {please refer to Notes 13 8 and 20},

« share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield (please refer to Notes 13 10.and 21},

e certan financia! instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 137 and 23),

e deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group {please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6},

e goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combmations (please refer to Notes 1352 and 2),

o goodwil, intangible assets with indefinte useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
to Notes 1357,9, 11, and 12},

e Activision Blizzard content assets estimates of the future performance of franchises and other content assets related to games are
recognized 1n the Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10), and

e UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who were granted advances are recognized n the
Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10)

Given the current economic crisss, notably in respect of sovereign exposures In countries considered to be at risk, Vivend has reviewed the
valuation of all its financial assets and liabilities This review did not have any significant impact on the 2012 Consolidated Financial
Statements
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1.32 Pnnciples of consolidation
A hist of Vivend!'s major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities ts presented in Note 28

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely those in which 1t has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

A controlling posttion 1s deemed to exist when Vivend: holds, dwectly or indurectly, a voting interest exceeding 50% of total vating nghts n an
entity and ro ather shareholder or group of shareholders may exercise substantive participation nights that would enable it to veto or block
ordinary decisions taken by Vivends

A controlling position also exists when Vivendi, holding an interest of 50% or less 1n an entity, has (1} control over more than 50% of the voting
rights of such entity by virtue of an agreement entered into with other investors, (n) the power to gavern the financial and operational policies
of the entity by virtue of statute or contract, {11} the nght to appoint or remove from office a majority of the members of the board of directors
or other equivalent governing body ar (v} the power tp assemble the majorrty of voting nghts at meetings of the board of directors or gther
gaverning body Rewvised IAS 27 presents the consolidated financial statements of a group as these of a single economic entity with two
categories of owners Vivend: SA shareowners and the owners of nen-controlling interests A non-controlling interest 1s defined as the equity
i a subsidiary that s nat attributable, duectly ar indirectly, to a patent As a result of this new approach, changes 0 a parent's awnership
interest in a substdiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic entity Hence,
n the event of the acquisition of an additional witerest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivend: recognizes the difference
between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Viveng: SA
shareownsis Conversely, any acquisibion of contrel achieved in stages or a loss of confrel give nse to profit of loss in the statement of
garnings

Vivend consolidates special purpose entities that 1t controls in substance where 1t either (1} has the nght to obtain a majonty of benefits, or {11}
retains the majonty of residual risks (nherent in the special purpose entity or its assets

Equity accounting

Entities aver which Vivend! exercises significant influence as well as entities over which Vivend exercises jomnt controf are accounted for
under the equity method

Sigruficant influence 1s presumed to exist when Vivend: halds, diectly or indicectly, at (east 20% aof voting nghts 1n an entity unless 1t can be
clearly demonstrated that Vivend: does not exercise significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other cntena, such
as representation on the hoard of dwectors or the entity’s equivalent gaverning body, partiepation in policy-making processes, matenal
transactions with the entity or the :nterchange of managenal personnel

Compamies that are jointly controlled by Vivendi, directly or indirectly, and a [imited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement are also accounted for under the equity method

13.3 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euras The functional currency of Vivend) SA and the presentation currency
of the group 15 the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are inrtially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liablities are translated into the entity’s functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in a fereign currency

Except tn cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consohidated Statement of Financial Position 15
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average manthly exchange rates for the pernod The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized 1n equity In agcordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency translation
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differences resulted from the translation ito ewro of the financial statements of subsidianies having foreign currencies as their functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianes, joint ventures or
associates, whose functional currency 1s not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when it 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Activision Blizzard

Video games

Revenues from the sale of boxes for video-games are recorded, net of a provision for estimated returns and price guarantees (please refer to
Note 134 5 below) as well as rebates, If any Regarding boxes for video-games with sigrificant oniine functionahity, revenues are recorded
ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually beginning (n the menth following the shipment of boxes for video-
games developed by Activision Blizzard and upon activation of the subscription for Massvely Multiplayer Ontine Role Playing Games
IMMORPG) of Blizzard { World of Warcraft and its expansion packs) The estimated refationship period with the customer over which revenues
are recognized currently ranges from a minimum of five months to a maximum of less than a year

Deferral of Activision Blizzard revenues

Activision Blizzard believes that onling functionality for console games, along with its obligation to ensure durability, constitute, for certain
games, a service forming an 'ntegral part of the game itself In this case, Activision Blizzard does not account separately for the revenues
linked to the sale of the boxed software and those linked to the online services because it is not possible to determine their respective vaiues,
the onling services not being charged for separately As a result, the company recognizes all of the revenues from the sale of these games
ratably over the estimated service period, usuaily beginning the month following shipment

Regarding games that can be played with hardware, Activision Blizzard determines that certain hardware components have stand alone
values with estabhshed fair values, as the hardware 1s either currently being sold separately or will be sold separately i the future Where
this 15 the case, Actwision Blizzard recognizes revenues for the hardware upon sale and defers the software revenues, if apphicable, over the
estimated service period based on the relative fair vaiug of the components

Deferral of Blizzard's MMORPG revenues

Based upon the view that the service proposed by the expansion pack 1$ closely iinked to the mtral World of Warcraft boxed software and to
the subscription to onhine service, thus valuing a global approach of the game, revenues related to the sale of World of Warcraft boxed
software, including the sale of expansion packs and other ancillary revenues, are deferred and recognized ratably over the estimated service
relationship perod with the custamer beginning upon activation of the software by the customer through subscription

Other revenues
Revenues generated by subscriptions and prepaid cards for online games are recogized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the
service

Revenues from third-party licensees in certain countnes {Russia, China, and Taiwan) who distnibute and host Blzzard's World of Warcraft
game are recognized as royalties, when the sale to the customer is made on behalf of the third party Any upfront licensing fee recewved from
third parties 1s recagnized over the term of the contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing, warehousing, shipping and handling costs, royalty, research and development expenses, and the
amortization of capitalized software development costs Costs of sales associated with revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with
significant online functional ty are recorded ratably according to the same method for revenues

1342 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1345} and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board {FOB) and on delivery for products sold free on
destination
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Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and rehiable data from certain distributors, are
recogmized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notifrcation by the distribution platform {on-line or mobile music distributar) to UMG of a sale to the final
gustomer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copyrights on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are recerved and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distributien costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primartly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indirect overheads

1343 SFR, Maroc Telecom group, and GVT

Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales i accordance with 1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment {mobile phones and other equpment), net of discounts granted to customers through the distnibution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contiact penod Revenues from incoming and outgong traffic are recognized when the senace 15 rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distnibutors, are recogrized as a deduction from revenues Customer acqu:sition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and comrissions pard to distributors are recognized as sefling and general expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Cantains a Lease applies to equipment for which a right of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed by SFR and Maroc Telecomn group on behali of content providers {mainly premium rate
numbers) are either accounted for gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider i1s responsible for the content and for setting
the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and instaltation costs (waiced prmarly to the operator's clients on the installation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructures 1s provided to clients pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU} agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable nght to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwidth) during a (generally lengthy) defined perrod without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements (s recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 15 considered as a sale on credit

In the case of IRU agreements and certain lease or service contracts, services are paid in advance the first year Where the contract 1s not
quahfied as a finance lease, these non-refundable advance payments are recorded as deferred income and recognized ratably over the
contract term The deferral period 15 thus between 10 and 25 years for IRU agreements and between 1 and 25 years for leases or service
contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues comprise purchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and

equipment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses
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1344 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestnial, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service period,
net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recognized over the period during which advertising commercials are broadcasted
Revenues from ancillary services (such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition costs, as well as television distibution costs, are included n selling, general and administrative expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a right of use 15 granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recogmzed on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television proagramming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distnbution and from video and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1 34 5) and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and avarfability of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video inventory costs and television, and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues

1345 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors They are
estimated based on past sales statistics and they take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final customers

The recognition of awards associated with loyalty programs in the form of free or discounted goods or services are recorded according
to IFRIC 13 Loyalty programs of SFR [valid until the third quarter of 2012), Maroc Telecom, and Canal+ Group grant to existing customers
awards n the form of free services, according to the length of the relationship with the customer and/or loyalty points for subsequent
conversion into either handset renewal subsidies, or free services IFRIC 13 - Interpretation 15 based upon the principle of measuring loyalty
awards by reference to their fair value Fair value 1s defined as the excess price over the sales incentive that would be granted to any new
customer and, should any such excess price exist, would result in deferring the recognition of the revenue assocrated with the subscription in
the amount of such excess price

Selling, general and admunistrative expenses prmarily include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, admimstratve department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
and Activision Blizzard 1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s indvidualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitalized hnancial interest

Unti! December 31, 2008, Vivend did not capitalize financial interest incurred durning the construction and acquisition penod of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest 1s included 1n

the cost of qualifying assets Vivend: applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitahization of
costs I January 1, 2009 onwards
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1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the inttial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control
s the identifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed are recogmized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
¢ non-controlling nterests are measured erther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option 1s avaitable on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwill 1s imitially measured as the difference between
(1) the fair vatue of the considerat:on transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and, in a business
comtunation achieved in stages, the acquisttion-date fair vatue of the previously held equity interest in the acqutree, and
{n) the net fair value of the identifiable assets and lhabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase In goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recogmition of a “full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill 1s negative, It 1s recogmized in the Statement of Earmings Subsequent to the acquis:tion date, goodwall 1s measured at its
imtial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1357 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

= gn the acquisitan date, to the extent passible, goodwll 1s allocated to each cash-generating umit kikely to benefit from the business
combination,

e gontingent consideration in a business combination 1s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subseguent adjustment
accurnng after the purchase price allocatron perrod s recognized in the Statements of Earnings,

o acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

e n the event of the acquisition of an additional mterest in a subsidiary, Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisiion
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners, and

e goodwill 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vvend: elected nat to restate business combinatians that accurred priar to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, ts provisions differed from those of the revised standard on the main
following items
»  mmnonty interests were measured at thewr proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable gssets as there was no option of
measurement at fair value,
e contingent consrderation was recognized In the cost of acguisiion only iIf the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
s transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisiion costs, and
¢ inthe event of the acquisition of an additional interest 1n a subsichary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the cariying
value of minanity interests acquired was recegnized as gaadwill

1353 Content assets

Activision Bhizzard

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recognized as content assets at their acguisition cost or development cost {please
refer to Note 1 35 4 below) and are amortized over their estimated useful life on the basis of the rate at which the refated economic benefits
are consumed Where appropnate, imparment loss 1s fully recogrized against earmings for the period duning which the loss 1 identified This
generally leads to an amertization period of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

UMG

Music publishing rights and catalogs include music catalogs, arusts” cantracts and publishing nghts, acquired through business combinations,
are amortized over @ period of 15 years in selling, general and administrative expenses

Royalty advances to artists, songwniters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current populanity and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwniter or
co-pubhisher Any portion of capitahized royalty advances not deemed 1o be recoverable agamst future royalties 1s expensed dunng the penod
inwhich the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues
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Royalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns

Canal+ Group
Film, televiston or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisiion of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the nghts acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
o film and telewision broadeasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost, when the program is avallable for sereeming and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,
e  sports broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost, at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
o expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts 1s included 1n cost of revenues

Theatrical film and television rights produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrical film and television nights produced or acquired before therr initial exhibihion, to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost Theatrical film and television nights are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method [ . based on the ratio of the current penod's gross
revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis) Vivendi considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future ecenomic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 1s, for this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
Iine amortization method If, however, the accumulated amartization would be lower than this charge, 8 minimum straight-ine amartization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year penod, which corresponds to the typical screening period of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided In full against earnings for the period 1n which the losses are estimated, on an
:ndhvidual product bass

Film and telewiston rights catalogs

Catalogs are comprised of film nghts acquired for a second television exhibition, or produced or acquired film and television nghts that are
sold after their first television screening (1 e , after thesr first broadcast on a free terestrial channel} They are recognized as an asset at their
acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of fitms, or indwidually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are caprtalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Caprtalized software development costs comprise amounts paid to entitled beneficiaries for the use of therr intellectual property content for
developing new games {e g, software development, graphics and editorial content), direct costs incurred during the internal development of
products and the acquisition costs of developed software Software development costs are capitalized when, notably, the technical feasiblity
of the software 1s established and they are deemed recoverable These costs are mainly generated by Activisian Blizzard as part of the games
development process and are amorhized using the estimated revenue method (1 e , based on the ratio of the current period's gross revenues to
estimated total gross revenues) for a given product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum peniod of 6 months
commencing on a product’s release date Technical feasibibty 1s determined on a product-by-product basis Non-capitalized software
development costs are 1immediately recorded as research and development costs The future recoverabihty of capitalized software
development costs and intellectual property license costs Is assessed every quarter When their recoverable value 1s less than their carrying
value, an impairment loss 1s recognized against earnings for the perod

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use. including website development costs,
are capitalized duning the application development stage Application development stage costs generally nclude software configuration,
coding, nstaliation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitahzed
These capitalized costs, mainly recognized at SFR, are amortized over 4 years Maintenance and minor upgrade and enhancement costs are
expensed as sncurred
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1355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection wath a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost modet 15 applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are all subject to an annual iImpairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with
a finite useful ife Useful ife 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting per:od

Other mtangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscnbers' hases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

SFR, Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at histonieal cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from their effective service start date over their estimated useful life untl matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized 1 the amount of the fixed, upfront fee pard upon the granting of the License The vanable fee, which cannot be rehably determined
(equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses in France), 1s recorded as an expense
when incurred

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carnied at histoncal cost less any accumulated depreciation and impanment losses Histoncal cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, the costs directly attrbutable to transparting an asset to its physical location and prepanng it for use
in gperations, the estimated costs for the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of the physical
location resulting from the incuired obligauon

When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets Useful life 1s reviewad at the end of
each reporting period

Property, plant and equipment mainly consist of the network equipment of telecommunications activities, each part of which 1s amortized
generally over 1 to 50 years The useful lives of the main components are as follows
¢ huldings over 8 to 25 years,
fiber optic equipment 50 years
pylons aver 15 to 20 years,
radio and transmission equipment over 3 to 10 years,
switch centers 8 years, and
servers and hardware over 1 to 8 years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future minimum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 1s recorded as “Borrowings and other financial habilities™ In generai, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis aver their estimated useful hife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Armortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included 1in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost model 15 applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend! has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with [FRS 1, Vivendi detided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group and GVT satelite capaoity and for
SFR, Maroc Telecom group, and GVT telecommunications services
s Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU} agreements confer an exclusive and irrevacable right to use an asset dunng a defined peniod iRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific right of use for @ defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths {RU agreements are capitalized if the agreement period covers the major part of the useful hife of the
underlying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
+  Some IRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a nght to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operational costs for the period
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1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events ar changes in the economic environment indicate a current nsk of impairment of goodwall, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets 1n progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an ndefinite useful life, and intangible assets wn progress are all subject ta an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, with some exceptions This test is performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) or, if
necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwill) A Cash Generating Uit 1s the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets The Vivend! group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are
marketed through different channels CGUs are indapendently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments
Vivendi CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of erther {1} the value in use, or (n) the fair value {less costs to sell) as described
hereafter, for each indvidual asset If the asset does nat generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 1s performed by Vivendh for
each CGU or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivend: Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows {discounted cash flow method
(DCF)} by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial Institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value [less costs to sell} s the amount obtamable from the sale of the asset or group of assets in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data {stock market prices or
comparison with similar isted companies, with the value attnibuted to similar assets or companies 1n recent transactions} or on discontinued
future cash flows n the absence of reliable data

If the recoverable amount 1s lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an (mpairment loss equal to the difference 1s
recognized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 15 recorded first against goodwill

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and ntangible assets {other than goodwill} may be reversed in
a later period If the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized 1n respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of fimancial assets measured at fair valug and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recognized at the fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, for which the best evidence 1s the acquisition cost
{including associated acquisition costs, if any|

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at farr value include available-for-sale securities, denvative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 13 7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded wn
organized public markets, their fair value being calculated by reference to the pubbished market price at period end For financial assets for
which there exists no published market price in an active market, farr value is then estimated As a last resort, the group values financial
assets at ustoncal cost, less any impairment losses, when a reliable estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation techniques 1n the
absence of an active market

Avanlable-for-sale secunties consist of unconsolidated interests and other securities not qualifying for classification in the other financial
asset categories described below Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recogmized in charges and ncome directly
recogrized In equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there 15 objective evidence that the (nvestment 1s 1mpared, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and ncome
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Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend) intends to sell in
the near future {pnmanily marketable securities} Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recewvables {primanly loans to affihates and associates, cusrent account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, secuntized loans and recevables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors}
and held-to-matunity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunty) At the end of each penod, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method ! there 1s objectve evidence that an impawment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying value and its recoverable amount (equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's nitial effective interest ratel, 1s racognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed I the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually computed at the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

135.10 Trade account receivahles

Trade accounts receivable are imtally recogmized at fair value, which generally equals the nominal value Provisions for impairment of
receivables are specifically evaluated 1n each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference penod related to revenues for this same penod Thus, for the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription
(Actwision Bhizard, Canal+ Group, SFR and GVT), the depreciation rate of trade account recewables 1s assessed on the basis of histongal
account recewvables from former customers, pnmanly on a statistical basis In addition, account recevables from customers subject to
insolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivend: 1s involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired n full

1.3511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly iiquid investments with initial maturities of generally three months or less Investments in securities, investments with imtial matunties
of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrnctions {blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector {e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the historical performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification

136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities 1s held for sale when 1ts carying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this defimtion, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiiure must
be highly probable These assets and liahilities are recognized as assets held for sale and habilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees) and the camying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impawment losses, and are no longer depreciated

An operation 15 qualified as discontinued when it represents a separate major line of business and the critenia for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend: has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and habilites of the drscontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate iine of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods
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13.7 Fwnancial habilities

Long-term and short-term barrowings and other financial iabilities include
e bonds and facilities, as well as various other borrowings {including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and related
accrued snterest,
« obhgations ansing in respect of commitments to purchase non-contreli:ng interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of other denvative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at farr value net of transaction costs directly attnbutable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
Interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the internal yield rate
that exactly discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing compnses an embedded denvative
{e g. an exchangeable bond) or an equity nstrument (e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost is calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded dervative or equity instrument In the event of a change n expected future cash flows (e g, redemption
garlier than imitially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted
at the initial effective interest rate

Commitments to purchase non-conatrolling interests

Vivendi has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling Interests to certain shareowners of 11 fully consolidated subsidiaries These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g . put aptions} or irm{e g, forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted for commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

» upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests 1s recogmized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through book value of nen-
controlling interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners,

» subsequent changes in the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability by an adyustment to equity attnbutable to
Viwends SA shareowners, and

e on matunty of the commitment, (f the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the entries previously recognized are reversed, If
the non-controlling Interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial habilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-contralling interests

Denvative financial instruments

Vivend! uses denvative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in nterest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either hsted on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these dervative financial nstruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses refating to the hedged item When the dervative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which 15 not recognized m the Statement of
Financial Posttion, 1t 1s a fair value hedge The instrument 1s remeasured at fair value in eamings, with the gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged tem offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to @ non-financial asset or hability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability When the dervative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at far value and the portion of the gain or loss that I1s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective pertion (s
recognized In earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or liability When the hedged item s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized In equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign
operation, 1t 1s recogmized n the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resufting gains and losses are recognized directly 1n earnings, without remeasurement
of the underhying instrument

Furthermore, meome and expenses felating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nghts (including sports, audiovisual and fitm rights) are recognized in
EBIT in all other cases, gains and fosses anising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges and
income
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13.8 Other habihties

Provisions

Provisions are recogmized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivend has a legal obligation {legal, reguiatory or contractual} or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benehts will be
required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s materal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money If no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure 1s made i the Notes to
the Consoldated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-rebrement health care, Wife insurance and post-employment Denehts to ehgible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficianes who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and mult-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group 1s consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contnibution and mult-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in vanous nstruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
secunties, excluding Vivend shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected umt credit method This method 1s based on annually updated
assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend: until retirement, expected changes in future compensation
and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan The assumptions adopted in 2011 and 2012, and
the means of determining these assumptrons, are presented i Note 20 As such, the group recognizes pension-related assets and liabilities
and the related net expense

A provision 15 recorded in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuanal value of the related benefits
{actuarial Jiability} and the fair value of any associated plan assets, net of past service cost and unrecognized actuarial gains and losses which
remain unrecognized in the Statement of financial Position Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obhigations, a financial asset 1s
recognized up to the maximum cumulative amount of net actuanal losses, unrecognized past service cost, and the present value of future
refunds and the expected reduction in future contributions

Actuanal gains and lesses are recognized through profit and loss for the year using the “cornidor method” actuanal gains and losses in excess
of 10% of the greater of the benefit obhigation and the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the fiscal year are divided by the expected
average warking life of beneficranies On January 1, 2004, mn accordance with IFRS 1, Vvend: decided to record unrecogmized actuarial gains
and losses against consolidated equity

The cost of plans 15 included in selling, general and administrative expenses, except for the financial component which 1s recorded n other
financial charges and income The financial component of this cost consists of the undiscounting of the actuanal liability and the expected
return on plan assets

Some other post-employment benefits, such as hfe insurance and medical coverage imainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanal computation comparable to the method used for pension provisions
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139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and thewr carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give nise to temparary differences Pursuant to the hiability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of

o deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying value {expected future tax saving}, and

o deferred tax liabiliies, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year duning which the asset will be realized or the hability
settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulations} enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changes 1n applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it 1
probable that a taxable profit will be avaulable, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 15
generated by initial recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction which 1s not a business combnation, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earmings, nor tax income or |oss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it s probable that the temporary difference will reverse n the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account i1s taken, pnmarily, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurrng items unlikely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carred forward 1s to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ sigmficantly from those expected, the group would be required to ncrease or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matenal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earnings
of the group

Deferred tax Labihties are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liabiity results from goodwill or
initial recognition of an asset or hability in @ transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, nor tax income or 108s

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidianies, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer 1s able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, If the tax refates to 1items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of ahgning the interest of its executive management and employees with 1ts shareholders™ interest by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basts, Vivend) maintains several share-
based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and benus share plans) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend share price {stock options}, which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares are
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance abjectives fixed by the Management Board and the Suparwisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Activision Blizzard maintains several share-based compensation plans {restricted shares) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the share pnce {stock options), which are settled in equity instruments Grants under these plans are approved by the Board of
Directors of Activision Blizzard The final grant of these rights 1s contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by
the Board of Directors

Lastly, Universal Music Group maintains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These equity units are phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Piease refer to Note 21 for details of the features of these plans

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend) /68




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Share-based compensation 1s recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted Tiis expense 1s spread over
the vesting penod, 1e 3 years for stock option plans and 2 years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivend:, other than
specific cases

Vivend: and Activision Blizzard use a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated
at the valuation date such as the computed volatlity of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the risk-free interest rate, the
expected dividend yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of
their nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will ditfer

Enuitysettled instruments
¢ the expected term of the opuion granted 1s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
« the value of the instruments granted I1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
e the expense 1S recognized with a corresponding increase In equity

Cash-settled mnstruments

s {ne expected term of the instruments granted 15 deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
far vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the strument for unvested nghts,

¢ the value of instruments granted 15 nitrally estimated at grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1s atusted pro rata taking into account the vested nghts at eath such reporing date,
the expense 1s recognized as a provision, and
moreover, as plans settled i cash are primanly denominated 1 US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 1s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata the number of equity instruments or equivalent instruments
granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi or Activision Blizzard shares
whuch are n the process of vesting 1s reflected in the ¢alculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which rights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

1.4 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive contral, joint control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidianes, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise an exclusive control, joint
control, or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianes over which the group exercises a control are eliminated in the intersegment operations {a list of
the principal consolidated subsidiaries is presented in Note 28} Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm's length basts under terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties The operating costs of Vivend: SA's headquarters in Pans and of 1ts New York City office, after the allocation of a
portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses, are included in the Holding and Corporate aperating segment (Please refer to Note 3
for a detailed description of the transactions between the parent company and the subsidianies of the group, aggregated by operating
segments)
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15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a vear, Vivendi and its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all matenal contractual obfigations, commercial and financiat
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are jointly and severally hable These detalled reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are performed, including {but not himited to) the review of

e minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authonzation of asset acquisitions or divestitures,

e pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

« pending Iivgation, claims (in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,

e tax examiner’s reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

« nsurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whaom the group contracted,

o related-party transactions for guarantees and other given o received commitments, and more generally

e major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among FRS accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by IASB / IFRIC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivendi has not elected for an earlier application, the main standards which may
have an impact on Vivend are as follows

» Standards adopted in the European Union
. Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements  Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income, on the
presentation of items of other comprehensive tncome, and their recycling or not in the Statement of Earnings, which applies to
periods beginning an or after January 1, 2013, and with retrospective effect as of January 1, 2012,

. Amendments to IAS 19 — Employee Benefits, which apphes to periods beginming on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective
effect as of January 1, 2012, and for which the main impacis are presented below,

- New standards relating to the principles of consohdaton IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 — Jamt
Arrangements, \FRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests 1 Other Entities, IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements, and 1AS 28 —
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, which all apply to pencds beginming on or after January 1, 2014 Vivend: intends
to early apply these standards from January 1, 2013 and retrospectively from January 1, 2012, and

- New standard IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement, relating to the definition of the fair vaiue notion n terms of measurement
and disclosures, which applies prospectively to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

¢ Standards not yet adopted in the European Union
. Amendments to vanous IFRS included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2003-2011 Cycle, as published by the |ASB on May
2012, which apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, retrospectively from January 1, 2012, but are still subject to
adoption in the European Unign

Vivendh 1s currently finahizing the assessment of the patential impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in apply:ng these standards and
amendments No significant impact 1s expected for the time being, except for the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 19, which main impact
identified by companson with the current accounting treatments applied by Vivend: relates to the suppression of the "corndor method”, on the
recognition through profit and loss for the year of the amortization of actuanial gains and losses on defined employee benefit plans Thus,
actuanal gans and losses not yet recogmized will be recorded against consolidated equity as of January 1, 2012 for an amount of -€119
million, and as from January 1, 2012, actuanial gans and losses will be immediately recogmized 1n other comprehensive income in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and will no longer be recycled in profit and loss
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Note 2 Major changes in the scope of consolidation

21  Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

In accardance with the agreement entered into with Citrgroup Inc {Citi) on November 11, 2011, and following recespt of the regulatary approvals from
the European Commussion and the Federal Trade Commussion in the Urited States on September 21, 2012, Vwendi and UMG completed the
acquisttion of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group Global Limited {(EMI Recorded Music) an September 28, 2012 EMI Recorded
Music has been fully consolidated since that date The transaction was also unconditionally dleared in New-Zealand {June 21, 2012), Japan
{July 9, 2012}, and Canada {August 20, 2012)

The purchase price, in enterpnse value, amounted to £1,130 mullion (approximately €1,404 million} and included €1,363 mull:on paid in cash, of
which £991 milhion {approxwnately €1,230 miflion) was paid in early September 2012, when conditions to payment were satisfied As part of ths
transaction, Citi agreed to assume the full pension obligations in the United Kingdom, and UMG received commitments customary for this
type of transaction In addition, Citi undertook to indemnify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims, in particular those
related to pension obligations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the European Commission was conditional upon the divestrent of EMI's Parlophone label and certam other music assets worldwide,
such as EMI France, EMI's classical music labels, Chrysalis, Mute and several other local EMI entities In accordance with IFRS 5 - Noncurrent
assets held for sale and discontinued operations, Vivend: reclassified these assets as assets held for sale at market value in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2012

The sale of Parlaphone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million {approximately €600 million after taking into account the
EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge n place) to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less significant divestments
were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 million, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivend: nears the finalization of its regulatory commitments following the acquisihon of EMI Recorded Music, while
reinforcing UMG's position as a worldwide leader (n music The combination of UMG's and EMI’s Recorded Music businesses Is expected to
generate annual synergtes of more than £100 million as previously stated As a result of the sale of Parlophone Label Group, the acguisttion of
EMI Recorded Music acquisition will be at less than SxEBITDA multiple, including disposals, restructuring charges and synerges

Purchase price allocation

In accordance with the accounting standards applicable to business combinations, UMG has performed a provisional allocation of the
purchase price using the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities incurred or assumed, based on analyses and appraisals prepared by UMG
with third-party appraisers, \f any The majar acquired assets were the music rights and catalog The allocation of the purchase price will be
finalized within the 12-month penod as required by accounting standards and the final amount of goodwifl may significantly differ from the
amount presented below

{in millions of euros) September 28, 2012
Carrying value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and halnhities acquired by Vivend) (A) {100}
Fair value adjustments of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilities {provisional)

Music nghts and catalog 1,036
Deferred income tax, net {332
Other {94}
Total {8} 610
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed habilitigs (C=A+B} 510
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and habihities held tor sale 593
Provisional goodwtll k1]
Purchase price of 100% of EMI Recorded Music 1.404

Moreaver, the acquisition-related costs amounted to €56 million in 2012 and to €6 million in 2011 They were recorded as ather charges fram
EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and as investing activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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22 Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On December 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a definitive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canal+
Group of Bolloré Group's free-to-air channels, Direct 8 and Direct Star In February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised its option to acquire, in one
transaction, a 100% mterest n Bolloré Group's television business, i exchange for the 1ssuance of Vivendi shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivendi carried out a share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid in consideration for the
contribution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterprise value of €336 million After taking into account a €16 million price adjustment
related to debt and changes in working capital, the fair value of the transferred counterparty amounted to €320 million Bolloré Group
committed to retain the Vivend: shares received in connection with the completion of this transaction for a mimmum oeriod of six months after
September 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at €120 million These guaranties
expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of imitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after September 27, 2012
for all other matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed 08 and D17, wn connection with
their launch on October 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Vivendi and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commuitments These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of nghts for Amercan movies and television senes from certain
American studios and for French movies, the separate negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series,
limuitations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-year period, renewable once If the
French Competition Authonty, after having performed a competitive analysts, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authority {Conseil Supénieur de I'Audiovisue!] approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for a minimum period of
two and a half years

Following the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported having increased s Interest i Vivendi SA to 4 41% Subsequently, on
October 16, 2012, 1t announced that 1t had crossed the 5% threshold 1n Vivend) SA's share capital

On December 13, 2012, Vivendi’s Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Bolloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as a
member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be submitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meeting to be held on
Apri 30,2013

The purchase price allocation will be finalized within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards The final amount of goodwill
may differ significantly from the provisional goodwill of €310 mullion recorded as of December 31, 2012

23 Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN in Poland

In accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and fottawing the receipt on September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Palish Competition and Consumer Protection Authority, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN finalized the
combination of their Polish Pay-TV platforms, which remain controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acquisition by Canal+ Group of a 40% interest
in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group’s Cyfra+ platform) with [TI Neowision (TVN's "n” platform), which created a new
satellite TV platform in Poland, with a base of 2 5 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% interest in the new structure “nc+” (compared
to a previous 75% witerest in Canal+ Cyfrowy), TVN and UPC own a 32% and 17% interest, respectively As Canal+ Group has the majortty on
the Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “nc+”, the latter has been fully consolidated by Canal+
Group since November 30, 2012

Liguidity rights
The key hiquidity nghts under the agreements are as follows

« At the level of N-Vision

- ITi has a put option to sell an additional 3% of N-Vision to Canal+ Group+, exercisable during a 90-day period beginrung on
December 18, 2013, on the basis of a value equal to Group Canal+” imitial investment In N-Vision, 1e for a cash prnce of
€61 milion Since the option 15 based on an equity affiliate interest given to a third party it does not relate to a commitment to
purchase a non-controlling interest, and thus follows the accounting freatment of a dernvative nstrument,

Canal+ Group has a call option 1o acquire ITV's remaining N-Vision shares, gxercisable at any tme dunng the two 3-month
periods beginning February 28, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,

- conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise Its call option on ITV's interest in N-Vision, 17! has a call option to
acquire Canal+ Group's interest 1n N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month periods beginning May 30, 2016
and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June 30, 2018, at
the then-prevailing market value, and
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- Canal+ Group and IT each has the liquidity night, following the above call option periods, to sell its entire interest in N-Vision

» At the level of "nc+”
- Canal+ Group has a calf option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in “nc+” at market value, which (s exercisable during the 3-
month periods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
if Canal+ Group exercises its call gption, Canal+ Group will be required to acquue ITi's remataing wnterest in N-Vision, and
I the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liquidity rights in the form of an Initial Public Offering
of its interest in “nc+”

Purchasae price allocation of ITI Neovision “n”

The purchase price of 100% interest in “n” was valved at €268 million The allocation of the fair value of the acquired assets and incurred or
assumed liabulities wll be finalized withun the 12-manth penod as required by accounting standards The final amount of goodwill may diifer
sigmhicantly from the provisionat goodwi!l of €213 million recerded as of December 31, 2012 and valued according to the full goodwli method

In addition, n accordance with accounting standards, the dilution of Canal+ Group by 24% due to its interest in Canal+ Cytrowy resulted in a
€114 million income directly recognized i equity Finally, “n" acquisition-related costs amounted to €15 mellion, of which €8 million were
incurred 1n 2011 These costs were recognized as other charges from EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and as investing
activitres in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Intgrest in N-Vision

The 40% interest in N-Vision was acquired by Canal+ Group for €277 millon, paid in cash Simultaneously, the €120 milhion loan granted in
December 2011 by Canal+ Group to ITl has been redeemed As of December 31, 2012, this interest was valued using the most recent cash
flow forecasts approved by the Management of TVN, resulting in a €119 million impairment loss (including the additional put option of 9%
interest 1in N-Vision}

24 Other changes in the scope of consolidation

Acquisition by Canal+ Group of a non-controlling interest in Orange Cinema Senes

On Apnl 12, 2012, Muluthématiques, a subsidiary of Canal+ Group, and Orange Cinema Series entered into a partnership via a jomt company,
Orange Cinema Senes - OCS SNC, in which Multithématiques acquired an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema Series
contributed the publishing and broadcasting operations of its pay cinema channels Since April 5, 2012, Canal+ Distribution has been
distributing the channels of the Orange Cinema Series’ package through CanalSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authonizing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authonty requwed that Canals Group sell ts non-controling interest m
Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinquish certain of its nghts contained in the shareholders’
agreement between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Senes (piease refer to Note 27)

Given Orange’s deciston not to approve any transferee, the French Competition Authonty confirmed that Group Canal+ was required to apply
the second part of the injunction {injunction 2{B}), requiring Multithématiques to
- dismuiss the two members of Grange Cinema Series- OCS SNC’ Board of Directors appointed by Muitithématiques and replace them
with Independent representatives having no affiliation to Canal+ Group, and
- renounce certain nghts provided in the shareholders” agreement, in particular those relating to
o the transmission of informaticn, notably regarding the company's performance,
o the clause which caps the expected costs of the acquisition and praduction of programs in the annual budget,
o the non-compete clause, and
o the framework services contract between Multithématiques and Orange Cinerna Senes whereby certain group entities
waould have provided support services to Orange Cinema Series

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and in order to comply with the imjunction 2(b) ordered by the French Competition
Autharity an July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Senes - OCS SNC' Board of Directors resigned from thew positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no afftliation to
Mutiithématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC

Acquisition by StudioCGanal of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distnibution

On July 17, 2012 StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 100% wterest in Hoyts Distribution, 8 company specializing 1n the distribution of
feature films in Australia and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date
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Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Bull, and Caisse des Dépéts et Consignations announced the creation of Numergy, a company offering cloud
computing services to all economic players As of December 31, 2012, SER held a 47% mterest in Numergy, which 1s accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital ingrease of this new company for €105 mithon, of which €26 million
had been released

25  Acquisition of Vodafone’s 44% interest in SFR in June 2011

In accordance with the agreement entered into on Apnl 3, 2011, Vivend: acquired on June 16, 2011, a 44% interest 1in SFR from Vodafone for a
total amount of £€7.950 miilion, which was paid entirely in cash This transaction valued the 44% interest in SFR at €7,750 million as of
January 1, 2011, to which was added a lump sum of €200 mulhon related 1o the amount of cash generated by SFR between January 1 and
June 30, 2011, paid as an intenm dividend by SFR

In accordance with IAS 27 revised standard, this transaction was accounted for as a purchase of non-controlling interests and accordingly the
consideration paid was fully recogmzed as a deduction fram equity The dfference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of
non-controlling snterests acquired as of June 16, 2011, ve, a net amount of €6,049 million, was recorded as @ deduction from equity
attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

26 Changes in the group’s activities

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012, Vivend's Management Board and its Supervisory Board, have engaged in
a review of Vivendr's strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen its positions in media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considening the uncertainty of the timing of potential disposals of certain telecom bustnesses, none of
the group's business segments met the critena of IFRS 5 standard neither as of December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date of
Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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Note 3 Segment data

31 Operating segment data

The Vivendi group comprises six businesses operating at the heart of the worlds of content, platforrs and interactive networks Each business
offers different products and services that are marketed through different channels Grven the unique customer base, technology, marketing
and distnbution requirements of each of these businesses, they are managed separately and represent the base of the internal reporting of
the group The Vivendr group has six businesses engaging in the operations described below

¢  Activision Bhzzard development, publishing and distribution of interactive entertainment software, online or on other media {such
as console and PC},

*  Umversal Music Group- sale of recorded music, including EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012, (physical and digital
media), exploitation of music publishmg rights as well as artist services and merchandising,

s  SFR: 2 telecommunication operator {mobile, broadband Internet and fixed telecommunications) in France,

e  Maroc Telecom group: a telecommumcation operator {mobile, fixed telecommunications and Internet) in Africa, predominantly in
Morocco as well as in Mauntania, Burkina Faso, Gabon, and Mali,

e GVT. a Brazihan fixed telecommunication and broadband Internet operator and, since Octaber 2011, Brazilian pay-TV provider, and

e Canal+ Group. publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in metropolitan
France, Foland, Afitca, French overseas territones and Vietnam as well as cinema film production and distrebution in Europe

Vivend) Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating indicators {segment earmings and cash flow from operations) Segment earmings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 1s prepared according to the following principles

» the operating segment "Holding & Corporate” includes the cost of Vivendi SA’s headguarters 1n Panis and of its New Yark City
office, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the businesses,

» the gperating segment “Non-core operations and others” includes actvities penpheral to the group, notably Vivend: Mobile
Entertainment (which operates a service sefling digital content on the Internet and on mobile phones under the “za0za" brand),

Wengo {the French leader in expert advisory services by phone), Digitick {the French leader in web ticketing), and See Tickets {a
British ticketing campany),

e ntersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions simular to those which would be
offered by third parties,

o the operating segments presented hereunder 1s strictly identical to the information given to Vivend:'s Management Board, and

¢ (0 addition, the VTI/SFR merger had no impact on the Group’s internal reporting, SFR and Maroc Telecom group's operational
performance still reports separately to Vivendi's Management

Vivend! also presents data categonized according to six geographic regions, consisting of its five man geographic markets (France, Rest of
Europe, Umited States, Marocco, and Brazil), as well as the rest of the world

Financial Report and Avdited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend: /75




710Z ' |€ Jaquia3ag Papu3 JeaA Ay} 10} SIUALBIIS |BIJUBUIJ PIIRNI(OSUO] PaIpNY pue uoday |210UBL4

q// IPUBAIp
SBL
91
L ————
66
{651 L)
o1z}
£
6
1gas}
(8g}
BIS'T
(cez)
(44
{ap6l
(T3] - v - {599} - - - {6 -
(8l - {€) . (8t ir&} 1£2) (99! [g0¢g) i€zl
£875 - bi) {511 £99 88t 186 o0g'L 528 (1§
{se6) - £) - {e8) {zz) (Z6h {eva) - (58}
(¥ \) - {2 (b 1St} {622) (eve) (g} {2l (o)
{£2) - - t (z1) - ] - (8L} :
{6} - - - 1] (3] l i - (v
(z5e) - - {t) - - {62 1£8L) {6) -
ESE'8 - (6} (311) o6 1]3 S05°L 66T w9 SIE')
(01 - {1 g} F48] (2) {€) {ze) (51) {96)
{1y 02) 68 {ed {zoul {190 ¥ {6} (1t 1) {se's) (8sB €) l5e2)
¥66'82 (e8) 59 - £105 L't 689°Z B8TLL 't 89L°C
- {68} ¥ - al - 6t ¥ 9 -
¥65'82 - 19 - 66 v ail 0592 ¥9z' 1L 885y 89LE
SI90 arelodio] dnosg dnoug sy piezzg
IPUBAIA |04 SUOEUII EMHM””._Z&% B Buipjoy 4019 +euEY A9 IR #4s {esIaAILN UDISIANYY

£107 "9z Asenigay "Aepsan)

s1s2)93u1 funjoauo3-uoy

S1aUMOGIRYS VS IpUBMIp 0) jqRinguyje shuiniey
YIHYM 40

sbuimey

suonesado panunuoasip woi) sbuiuey

S92 3WOIUI 10} UDISIAG]

safieya jeroueuly g

2WOIUL [R1JUBUY JBRID

SJUSLISIAUI WO SWOIL]|

jsalaty|

seyeipye Aunba woy swedu

{LI83) SOXE) GL0I PUB ISAIFIUI S10j8g sBuimey
sabiuey 1sylp

ENTLTTDET]

S3.IS pauun

aty w uonebinl] uoneiodioy) etpay Auaqr A Buipseiay [eruode amasey

SUDITRUIQIGD
ssauisng ynoay paanbae syasse a|qibuelul uo $3550) wawuedw)
SUONELIGWO

ssauisng yhinosy pannbae s1asse ajqiiueul 4o uonezLOWyY

(v 1193} S9XE) SW0atI PUB JSAIAIN 310jaQ shiviues paysnlpy
SUOIJRUMILIO] SSaUISNY

yBnoiy paanboe asoyl Buipnioxa siasse a|qifiuiul o UONBZIOUNY
sjasse a|qifuey jo vanenaidag

sway Burunaal-uou 1AY1Q

syasse ajqiBueu pue ajqibue) Jo sa(es uD (sassol}/suie]

safiieya Buumonnsay

vaial

suejd uonesuadwod paseq-a.eys ol paejd) sabieyn

sueqd uonesuadwod paseq-aseys 0} paieR) safueya

$@ [{9M SE LDNEIIaIdap puB UONEZILIOWE Buipnjaxa sasuadxa fuueladg

sanuaasy
sanuana) uawbasia|
SaNUBARl [ewIaa

(so1na 0 SuDI|{IL U}

ZL0Z ‘LE 19qadag papus Jeay
mm:-—_.—mw jo SJUIWIEBS _uwwu_-_om_._cu




2102 *1€ 18GWa23(Q papu3 Jea Ay} Joj SJUBWAIES |erdueuly PajepIosucy) Pavpny pue 1oday (eidueuly

L4/ 1pudAip
9ol
1892
—_———
LZL'e
(Bg'L)
1£91)
vl
13
(18¢)
{8t)
Z89'S
(958}
gge'l
|£6E} - - - {98€) - - - {2} {v}
{018} - - - {ze) {44] {Lz) {£9) 2L {es)
039's - {zz) {o01) 10¢ 36¢ 6801 87T 0§ Lol
{28 - {e) - {ou) {zz} {v6) (65! - 68!
{zea 1) - {1} {1) {irt) {tgi} {8LE} {615 {6t {zg)
B - (L ¥ - - l § . -
(8} - - - () {2 - (z} - ]
(00 - - @ - - - {z1) 1£9) L)
[2:1 4] - ey {101) £16 109 005'L D08t £29 bLLL
(521} - ) L] (ot} € (@ 4] (L e}
{161'02) Z8 {£8) (g8} (VEGE) (zva} {tez'} {09E 8l {ess’e) (581 2}
£18'8Z (28} 14 - 58 W'l GEL'T £8L'ZL 6Ly ZEV'E
- (z8) S - Ll - BE El B -
£1882 - 9t - ovetv 'L 10L2 041721 88l ¥ er'e
S0 a1el0dion dnoig dnorg osnpy psezzig
IPUBAIA [BIO)  SUOREUILIT EM MH”M__,_&D * BuipoH dnosg +eue) 18D Wwosaya) 0sepy GEY esIanlf) UoisIANY

£10Z '9Z Areniga ‘Aepsan]

sisaiaiu Buigjonuod-uoy

S10UMORIBYS S 1pusaIp 0} 9jqenguye sBuliey

wium i

sinuwey

suonesado panuiuessip woy sGuruey

SXE) BLU0JUI J0] LOISIAOLY

safiieyo [eoueuy Jayg

atuoaur feraueuly 1Yy

SIUAWISBAUI WO SO

1531830

sajeifiye Aunba wioy awoou)

(1193} s6XB} 0WOdtn pue Jselejul 810joq sBUIUIE]

sabueya sayp

awoaun sayig

SUOIBUIQUIOD

ssaunsng yBnony pannboe syasse a)qibuejur uo sasse| uattredu;
SUDNEBUIQWOI

ssaursng yBrouy paainbae siasse ajqibueiu po uoneziiowy
{v.1193) saxe) WO pur )sasaym ss0j0q sBunwiea pazsnipy
SUDIBUIGWIOD SSBUISNQ

ybnoay) paainbae asoiy Guipnjoxe siasse a|qiBuelLl Jo uonezLaUN
s¥asse ajqifiue) jo uonenadag

swiay Buumdal-uou JalyQ

sjasse ajqibueyn pue aiqibue Jo sajes uo (sassojl/suieg)

safileya Buunionnsay

valig3

sug)d uonesuadwod paseq-aseys o) pajeja sabieyn

sue|d uonesuadwed paseq-sueys o} paje|a. safiey)

SE [|3m Se uoneidadap pu voneziowe Sutpnjoxs sasuadtxe funeradg
senuaaay

sanuaaa! uawbiasiayy

S9NUAAD) |BIIAI

{s0Jna Jo Suorjiw w)

L10Z ‘L€ Joqedaq papua Jeoy




8¢/ IUBAIA

Z10Z 'LE 19qWadag papu3 1ea ), sy 10) SUALUBIRIS [RISUBLIJ PAIRMIIOSUO) PaLIpNY pue Loday [elaueuly

s}esse a)qifuelul pue Juawdinba pue uejd ‘Apadoid Jo saes woly Spasadoid Jo Jau 'sain)ipuadxa [eydes SOy pasn Yses 0 Saledy @

3|es 10 pjay $198SE 0} PAIE|3S SANIJIGRI| SE [j3m Se sajgeAed Xe] 1Ua1Ing 'SaINjiqel| Xl paliajap ‘SaRIjIqe]| [BIIUBUY Jayio pue sBuimalioq apnau senqer palesageun P

sjgeied sunoase apen pue “saiji|iger| JuaLnd-uou Jayio ‘suoisixoid apnjoul saijgel luawlag 9

3|es 10} P|ay] S19SSe S |1oMm Se SIuajeainba Ysed pue yses ‘Sa|qeaIadal Xe} IUSIIND ‘SIASSe XE) PaLIajep apnjoul siasse paleojieu) g

o

PUE ‘$3}QeAIa03] JUNODIL IPEI) PUB SBLOIUBAUI ‘SJASSE (RIJURUIY 'SAIRI|IE ALinba Ui Sjuswisaul ‘Juawdinba pue jueid ‘Auadold 's1asse a|qiBueiu 1810 ‘s18sse 1usIU0 “||Impood apnjoul s1asse swbag e

_Suoielado wodaal Jo s1asse ayqifue) pue ajqibueiuy £| 910N PUB _SIUBWIILIWOT pUE SI3SSE JUSILDY, 0L S10N ', [I1Mpo0D), § 210N Ul pajuasard si eyep juawbas GBunelado [euciippy

Ove'E ¥ | 152 S04 agy 608t 25 A (8} (1au 'xaded) 1au ‘sainyipuadxa jerde]
LOV'E 13 l 19¢ 8rl §ls Gl 45 FAY s1asse a|qibuetul pue ajgibue; w aseaiou)
69’EE som)igern] jBo)
£¥99L (P) sa11j1ge1) pajeacjieun
900'£1 05 0862 628°Z 819 069°1 L0y 9:'g 866°) {0 saniiqei} wawbag
6LL'SS slassy oL
19z's {q) s3asse pajeaojjeun
Gt - - g - - oy 4] - sajeiye Ainba ui spuauiisasur [
7506 60z ast ZA BS.Y vEL'g G900z ¥BS'L LY (e) s1938€ JUBWEag
LLOZ 'LE soquiadag
0BY'Y 9 L 11574 1y6 {5y 9807 95 {5 {8} {1au "xades) 12U “saimipusdxs [eNde]
209t g l £ez 966 Gay 891°Z7 £9 65 s1asse a|qifueru pue ayqibuey u asessau)
8L0°8¢ saniigery jeiol
§/0°6L (p) sampigei| paiedv|jeur)
£00'61 09 £50'y G262 089 G191 L0y 8¥5C 1661 (of saripiqer| Jususbag
FLS'65 slassy (o)
08L9 {qj siasse pareasyieuq)
BeE - - 991 - - 8E1 v8 - sapeijiye Aynba ut SiUBwISaAL (3t
vELTS Ged {61 LLg'L 5804 800'9 L (088 661 {e) 519852 Wawbhag
ZL0Z L€ saquadag
slayo S0INa Jo SUOI|j(lu Ul
IpueAIp R0  PUE SUOResado alesodi0) dnous +eue) m dnog) " dnoig misniy plezzug ! ¥ fIw i)
109-UON B Buipjoy wods|aj J05eiy [ESIaAIUN oIS 1Ay

£107 '9Z Aenigay “Aepsan)

UONISD4 JRITUEUIJ JO SJUDWSIEIS PAYEPIJOSU0]




3.2 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by the customers’ location

{in millions of euros)

Revenues
France
Rest of Europe
Umited States
Moracco
Brazl

Rest of the World

{in mullions of eurgs!

Segment assets
France
Rest of Eurape
United States
Morocco
Brazil

Rest of the World

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011
15,955 55% 16.800 58%
3,393 12% 3173 11%
3395 12% 3,085 1%
2029 7% 2,166 3%
1,797 5% 1,527 5%
2425 8% 2,062 7%
28,994 100% 28813 108%

Dacember 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

27,539 52% 27,339 54%
2,692 5% 1958 4%
10815 21% 9,772 19%
4,347 8% 4,620 8%
5,127 10% 4,79 10%
2.214 4% 1,972 4%
52,734 100% 50,452 100%

Tuesday, February 26 2013

in 2012 and 2011, acquisihions of tangibe and intang(ble assets were mainly realized in France by SFR and Canal+ Group, in Morocco by
Maroc Telecom SA, and in Brazil by GVT

Note 4

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,

{in mull:ons of euros) 2012 2011
Product sales, net 8,262 7.598
Services revenues 20,648 21175
Qther 84 40
Revenues 28,994 23,813
Cost of products sold, net {4.932) {4,811}
Cost of service revenues {9,444) {9,585
Qther 12 5
Cost of revenues (14,364) (14,391}
Personnel costs and average employee numbers
Yea ended December 31
(in milliens of euros except number of employees) Note 202
Annual average number of full-ime equivalent employees (in thousands) 1 584
Salaries 2559 239%
Social securtty and other employment charges 723 634
Capitalized personned costs {268) 2113
Wages and expenses 3014 2,839
Share-based compensation plans 211 170 129
Employee benefit plans 201 3 N
Other 275 266
Personnel costs 31532 3,305

Finanoial Report and Avdited Consohidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012
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Additional information on operating expenses

Research and development expenditures amounted to €718 milion in 2012 (compared to €722 million in 2011} and compnised all internal or
external net costs brought to earnings for the perods reported

Advertising costs amounted to €300 million n 2012 {compared to €877 milon in 2011}

Expenses recorded «n the Statement of Earnings, with respect 1o service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €116 million
1n 2012 {compared to €112 million n 2011}

Net expense recorded In the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €580 million n 2012 {compared to
€576 million 1n 2011}

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31,

(in milhions of euros} Note 2012 20M
Amortization {excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations} 2682 2,534
of wiuch property plant and equipment 12 1,744 1 662
content assets 10 122 117
ather intangible assets 11 818 755
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 487 510
of which content assets 10 324 320
other intangible assets " 163 190
Impairment losses on ntanghle assets acquired through business combinations {a} 910 760 397
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 3,929 341

a  Manly relates to the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill (€665 million) and certan goodwill, and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group (€94 mitlion) in 2012 and to the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill (€380 mullign) in 2011

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31

{in mithons of euras} Note 2012 201

Impact related to the settlement of the litigation over the share ownership af PTC in Poland 26 - 1,255
Capital gam on the divestiiure of businesses 5 14
Capial gan on financial investments 8 a3
of which the sale of UMG's interest n Beats Electromics 4 83
Qther 9 23
Other income 22 1385

Downside adjustment on the divestiture of businesses (3} {5}

Downside adjustment on financial invesiments {153) {421}
of which 1mpairment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affiliate 2 {11g} -

the capital loss on the sale of the remaiming 12 34% interestin NBC Umversal - {421)

QOther {79} {230}
of which acquisihon costs related to EMY Recorded Music and IT! Neowision 'n* 2 {63} {14}
sattlements with the Brazihan Authonties regarding ICMS 27 {7) {165)

Other charges {235) (656}
Net total (213) 7:]
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Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2012 2011
{Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrowings {599) {529}
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 31 48
Interest {568) {481}
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities issued/redeemed and early unwinding
of hedging derivative Instruments {15} {52}
{583) {533)
Other financial income and charges
Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 202 20
Expected return on plan assets related ta employee benefit plans 202 12 g
Change in value of derivative instruments 23 -
Other Z 9

Other financial income 37 14
Effect of undiscounting habilities {a) {31) (33
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 202 (38) (35)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facdities issued/redeemed and early unwinding of
hedging dervative instruments (15} (52}
Foreign exchange loss {105) {27

of which GYT's euro barrawing to Vivendi SA 23 {76) {24)
Change in value of derivative instruments - (10)
Other {21} {10}

Other financial charges (210} {167

Nat total {173} (153)

a In accordance with accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal, assets and liabilities are mitially
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position 1n an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent penod, the present value of such assets and habrhities s adjusted to account for the passage
of tme As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, these adjustments only appled to lablities (mainly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivend: benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2011 included, from the Consolidated
Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivends 1s entitled to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidianes that are at least 95% directly or indwrectly owned by it, and that are located in France Umiversal Music in France,
SFR fas of January 1, 2011}, and Canal+ Group {excluding Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, 1n which Vivendi directly or mdirectly
owns at most 80% af the outstanding shares},

Until December 31, 2011, the Consalidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivend: to cansolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidianies that are at least 50% directly or indirectly owned by 1t, and that are located in
France or abroad, 1 €, besides the French companies that are at least 35% directly or indirectly owned by Vivendi Activision
Bhzzard, Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Societé d'Edition de Canal
Plus (SECP} As a reminder, as of May 19, 2008, Vivend: apphed to the French Mimistry of Finance for the renewal of Its
authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authonzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2009, for a three-year period beginming with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 capped the deduction for tax losses camed forward at 60% of taxable income and
terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carned
forward 1s capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest 1s limited to B5% of financial charges, net

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consalidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend!'s tax attributes {tax losses and
tax credits carned forward) are as follows

As Vivend: considers that its entitlement to the Consohdated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, and thereby ncluded fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, 1t filed on
November 30,2012, and asked for the refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011 However, as this fiscal position may be challenged, Vivend: has accrued a €366 mullion provision for the
associated nisk (please refer to Note 6 6, below),

Moreover, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System tax credits can be carmed forward upon the matunty of the
autharization on December 31, 2011, Vivendi will request a refund of the taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the
year ended December 31, 2012, excluding social cantributions and exceptional contributions, or €208 million Similarly, this fiscal
position may be challenged and Vivend: has acerued a €208 million provision for the associated nsk {please refer to Note 6 6,
below),

Considening the above, as of December 31, 2011, Vivend: recorded tax attnibutes amounting to a potential tax saving for a total of
€2 013 million On February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012, the 2012 tax results of the subsidianes within the scope of Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System
were datermined as an estimate, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes at such date could not be determined with certainty,
After the impact of the estimated 2012 tax results and before the impact of the potential consequences of the engoing tax audits
{please refer to Note 66 below) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA should achieve tax saving from tax attrnbutes of
€1,567 mullion {undiscounted value based on the current ncome tax rate of 36 1G%i], and

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi SA valued its tax attnbutes under the French Tax Group System based on one year's forecast
results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivend! would benefit from the French Tax Group System tax savings
in an amount of €324 million {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 36 10%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

Year ended December 31
(i mullans of euros) Note m2 011
{Charge)/income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Tax savings related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and to the

Consolidated Globat Profit Tax System 61 381 565
Tax savings refated to the US tax group 20 40
Adjustments 1o pror year's tax expense {21} 1"
Consideration of risks refated to previous years' income taxes 62} {253)
Qther income taxes Items {1471] {1,584}
{1,153} (1,221}
Deferred
Impact of Vivench SA’s French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax Systern 61 {48} {(129)
Impact of the US tax group .
Other changes in deferred tax assets 2 43
lmpact of the changels) in tax rates {4 b
Other deferred tax income/{expenses) 44 77
{6 {157}
Provision for income taxes {1,159} (1.378)

6.3 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic region

Year ended December 3t

{in milhions of euras} 2012 2m
(Charge)/Income
Curcent
France {510) (549)
United States {198} na
Morocco (257) {:3)
Braul {87} (45)
Other junsdictions (101) {202)
{1,153) (1.21)
Deferred
France {38) {217
United States (22) {83}
Moracco 3 3
Branl {1 90
Other jurisdictions 82 50
i6) {157)
Prowision for income taxes (1,159) {1379)
income tax {paid)jcoliected
France {189} {322)
United States {109} (z0%
Morocco (256} {338
Brazil (74) (61}
Other junsdictions (134} {162}
Income tax paid {762) {1,090}
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6.4 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros except %} Note 2012 W01
Earnings from continuing operations before proviston for incomse taxes 2108 5105
Elrmination
Income from equity affiliates K} 18
Earnings before provision for income taxes 2,146 513
French statutory tax rate 36.10% 3610%
Theoretical provision for mncome taxes based on French statutory tax rate (775} {1849)
Reconuiliation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences 42 133
of which  other differences from tax rates 66 88
impacts of the changes i tax rates {4 6
Vivends SA's French Tax Group System and Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax System 61 333 436
of which current tax savings 381 565
changes in related deferred tax assets {48) {129)
Other tax losses and tax credits {3) {11
of which use of current losses of the period 4 -
use of unrecognized losses and tax credits 3t 56
unrecogmzed losses {38 {67)
Other temporary diflerences (341) 19
ofwhich reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation htigation in the Umited States {341) -
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense {65} (248)
of winch consideration of fisks related 10 previous years' meoma taxes {62} {253}
Capital gam or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial
investments or businesses 313) (130)
of which impairment of Canaf+ France gootfiwili {240} {137)
impairment of Canals Group's N-Vision equity affiliate {43) -
Dther (37 282
Effective provision for income taxes {1,158) (13718)
Effective tax rate 54 0% 26 9%

65 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes 1n deferred tax assets/(habilities), net

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} 2012 2011
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{habilities) 693 880
Provision for income taxes (6) {157}
Charges and mcome directly recorded in equity {a) (3 (25)
Buswiness cambinations (278) {1}
Changes in foreign currengy translation adjustments and ather 3 )
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{iabihties) 409 693

a  Includes +€1 milhion recognized n other items of charges and income directly recognized i equity for the year ended
December 31, 2012 {compared to -€24 million as of December 31, 2011}
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Components of deferred tax assets and habilities

{in mdhons of euros)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred taxes gross

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Tax attnbutes {a) 2639 3742
of which Vivend SA (b} 1,567 2653
Vivend: Holding I Corp (¢} 673 601
Temporary differences {d} 1734 1404
Netting {366 (414}
Deferred taxes, gross 4,007 4732
Deferred taxes unrecogmized
Tax attnbutes {a) {2 138} {3175}
af which Vivend: SA (b) {1.243) {2.281)
Vivendi Holding | Corp {c) 623} (601}
Temporary differences (d) (469) {135)
Deterred taxes, unrecogmized (2,607) (3.311)
Recorded deferred tax assets 1,400 1,421
Deferred 1ax habilities
Purchase accounting asset revaluations (g} 901 742
Qther 456 400
Netting {366} {414)
Recorded deferred tax hiabilities 99 128
Defarred tax assets/{liabilities), net 409 693

d

The amounts of tax attributes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junsdictions which
are material to Vivend, mamiy France and the United States, tax returns are filed at the latest on May 15 and September 15 of the
following year, respectively Thus, the amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may differ sigrficantly, and If necessary, may be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table above

Relates to deferred tax assets recognszable in respect of tax attnbutes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€2,013 mullion as of December 31, 2011, of which €1,055 million related to tax losses {please refer to Note 6 1 above) and €358 mullion
related to tax credits, after taking into account the estimated impact {-€446 million} of 2012 activities {taxable income and use or
expratian of tax credits), but prior to taking into account the potential cansequences of angawng tax audits {please refer to Note 66

In France, tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely and tax credits can be carried forward for a period of up to 5-years No tax

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi Holding | Corp 1n the United States as head of the
US tax group, representing $848 million as of December 31, 2011, after taking into account the estimated impact {-£22 million) of 2012
activities (taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, as well as capital losses and tax credits generated), but prior to

In the Uinited States, tax fosses can be carried forward for a penied of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carned forward for a penod
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2022 and $6 mullion tax credits matured as of Decamber 31, 2012

Manly relates the deferred tax assets related to non-deducted provisions upon recognition, including provisions relating to employee

b
below)
credit matured as of December 31, 2012
C
taking into account the potential consequences of angoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 6 below)
d
benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans
e

These tax liahihities, generated by asset revaluations following the purchase price allocation of companies are terminated upon the
amortization or divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended December 31 2012 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorities i the junsdictions 1n which
Vivend: has or had operations Vanous tax authonties have proposed or levied assessments for additional tax in respect of prior years |t1s
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of certain
of these audits Vivendi Management believes however, that it has serious legal means to defend the positions 1t has chosen for the
determination of the taxable income of the fiscal years currently under a tax audit Vivendi Management beleves that these tax audits will
not have a matenal and unfaverable impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of Vivend: Moreover, the impact of
the Consohidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 was accrued (€366 million), as well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012
{€208 million)

In addition, n respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consalidated income reported for fiscal years 2006, 2007, and 2008
s under audit by the French tax authonities This tax audit started in January 2010 In addition, in January 2011, the French tax authonties
began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for the fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities began a tax
audit on the consolidated income reported for the fiscal year 2016 Fnally, the cansequences of the tax audht for fiscal years 2004 and 2005 did
not materially impact the amount of tax attributes

Vivendt's US tax group had been under tax audit for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 The consequences of this
tax audit did not matenally impact the amount of tax attrbutes Vivendi's US tax group is under tax audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 Thus tax audit started in February 2012

Finally, Maroc Telecom 1s under a tax audit for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007, and 2008 This tax audit s currently
n progress

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31

2012 201
Basic Dluted Basic Diluted

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (in millions
of euros) 164 161 {a} 2 681 2,678 {a)
Number of shares (in millions}
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {b} (c) 12989 1,2989 12814 12814
Potential dilutive effects related to share-hased compensation {d} - 35 - 24
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 12989 13024 12814 12838
Eamings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share (in
euros) {b) 013 012 209 209

Earnings from discontinued operations are not applicable over the presented periods Therefore, the caption “earnings from continuing
operations attributable to Vivendi SA shargowners” relates to earnings attributable to Vivendh SA shareowners

a  Only includes the potential dilutive effect related to stock aption plans and restricted stock rights of Activision Blizzard for a non-
matertal amount (please refer to Note 21 3]

b  The weighted-average number of shares and earnings attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share have been adjusted for all
periods previously published in order to reflect the dilution anising from the grant to each shareowner on May 8, 2012 of one bonus
share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with |AS 33 - Earnings per share (please refer to Note 18)

¢ Netof treasury shares {please refer to Note 18)

d  Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share-based compensation plans is presented in Note 2122
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Note8  Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31, 2012

(in millions of euros) Note Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency translation adjustments {a) {605} . {605}
Assets available for sale 15 63 - 63
Valuation gams/flosses) taken to equity 55 - 55
Transferred to profit or foss of the pertod 8 - 8
Cash flow hedge instrements 23 2z 1 23
Valuation gains/flossesi taken to equity 41 1 42
Transferred to profit or loss of the period {13} - {19
Net investment hedge instruments 23 17 - 17
Valuation gans/{losses! taken to equity 17 - i7
Transferred to profit or foss of the penod . -
Charges and income directly recognized in equrty {503} 1 (502}
Year ended December 31, 2011
{in millions of euros) Note Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency translation adjustments [a) 182 . 182
Transferred to profit or loss as part of the sale of NBC Universal
interest (b 477 - 477
Assets available for sale 15 19 19
Valuation gans/flosses) taken to equrty 15 - 15
Transferred to profit or loss of the pertod - - -
Cash flow hedge instruments 23 78 {24) 54
Valuation gans/{iosses) taken to equrty {5} z {3
Transferred to profit o loss of the perred 83 {78} 57
Netnvestment hedge instruments 23 21 - 2
Valuation gans/{losses) taken to equity - - -
Transferred to profit or loss of the pernod 21 - 21
Other impacts 12 12
Charges and income directly recogmzed i equity 308 (24} 284

a  The change in foreign currency translation adjustments primanly resulted from fluctuattons tn the euro/dollar exchange rate {maily at
Activision Blizzard and Universal Music Group) and in the euro/Brazilian Real exchange rate {at GVT)

b Includes a foreign exchange loss attributable to the decline of the US dollar since January 1, 2004, recognized upan the sale of the
remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal on January 25, 2011
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Note 9

{wn mullions of euros)

Goodwill, gross

Impairment losses
Goodwill

Changes in goodwill

{in malions of ewros)

Actviston Blizzard
of wiich Actwsion
Biizzard
Universal Music Group
SFR
Maroc Telecom Group
of which Maroc Telecom SA

subsicharias
GVT
Canal+ Group
of which Canal+ France
StudhoCanal
Dg/Di7
nc+

Non-core operations and others
Total

{in milkons of euros}

Actision Blizzard
of which Actiision
Blizzard
Distnbution
Universal Music Group
SFR
Maroc Telecom Group
of which Maroc Telecom SA
subsidiaries
GVT
Canal+ Group
of which Canal+ France
StudioCanal
Non-core gperations and others
Total

Goodwill

December 31, 2012

December 31,2011

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

37.940 37,776
{13,284) (12,747}
24,656 25,029

Divestiteres changes in

December 3t Impasrment losses Business combinations foreign currency Decembar 31,
2011 translation adjustments 202
and other

2,309 {54) 2258
2265 - fa3) 2212
44 - - i 43
4114 (85) iab 304 {b) {195) 4138
9152 - i 9183
7413 . (6} 2407
1795 - {5} 1790
518 - - {1 §17
2222 - - {216) 2006
4648 (665) 837 7 4513
4309 {565} - {91 2635
192 4 1 207

- 310 (o) - 31G

25 - 213 |d) 8! 230

171 {1 7 7 184
7508 {15 849 A 24,65

Dwestitures, changes in
December 31 Impairment losses Business foreign currency December 31
2010 combinations translatien adjustments 201
and other

2,257 (4 2 54 2308
2209 - 2 54 2265

“ - - - 4

4 {4) - -

4011 - 5 98 4114
9170 - (8 9,152
2409 1 3 z2413
1,792 . 3 1,795

817 1 - 618

2423 - (201} 2222
4992 {386) 42 - 4,648
4,689 {3801 . - 4,309

149 - 42 1 192

83 88 te) - 171

25345 {390) 138 164) 25,029

a Relates to impairment losses related to certain music catalogs of Universal Music Group

b Manly relates to provisional goodwll attnbutable to the acguisition of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (please refer to

Note 2 1)

c Relates to provisional goodwill attributable to the acquisition of D8 and D17 on September 27, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 2)

d  Relates to provisional goodwaill attributable to the acquisition of “n”, which was finalized on November 30, 2012 (please refer to Note

23)

e  Manlyrelated to goodwill attnibutable to the acquisition of See Tickets in August 2011
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Goodwill impairment test

In 2012, Vivendi tested the value of goodwi! allocated to 1ts cash-generating umits {CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuahon methods
consistent with previous years Vivend ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded their carrying value
{including goodwill} The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows (discounted cash flow method (DCF}} and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companson with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies In recent transactions} For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please referto Note 1357

Prasentation of CGU or groups of C6Us tested

Universal Music Group

Artist services and merchandising

Music pubhishing

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Artvision Attvision
Activision Blizzard Blizzard Blizzard
Distrrbution Distribution
Recorded music

Universal Music Group

EMI Recorded music

la)

Mobile
R

5F Broadband Internet and fixed SFR ()
Mobile
Fixed and Internet Marac Telecom
Onatel Onatel

M co
aroc Telecom Group Gabon Telecom Gabon Telecom

Mauntel Mauntel
Sotelma Sotelma

GVT GVT GVT
Pay-TV in Metropolitan France Canal+ France
Canal+ Qverseas

Canak Group DB/D17 Free to-ar TV D8/D17 Free-to-ai TV ()

StudioCanal

StudioCanal

(Other entities

Other entities {a)

a  Asof December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding EMI Recorded Music, D8/D17 and "nc+” was undertaken given that the
purchase price allocation date was close to the closing date, and considerng that no tnggering event had occurred between those dates

b Due to the increased convergence of SFR's Mobile, and Broadband Internet and fixed services, Vivendr Management adjusted, in
2011, the level at which SFR's return on investments 1s monitored Consequently, Vivend now performs a goodwill impairment test by
combining SFR's Mobile CGU and Broadband Internet and fixed CGU

As of June 30, 2012, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to GVT, on the basis of an internal valuation of the recoverable amount
of GVT As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that the recoverable amount of GVT exceeded its carrying value as of June 30, 2012 As
from June 30, 2012, no triggenng event occurred that would require performing an impairment test regarding GVT as of December 31, 2012

Ouring the fourth quarter of 2012, Vivend) performed such test on each cash generating umit {CGU) or groups of CGL), except for GVT, on the
basis of an internal valuation of recoverable amounts, except in the case of Activision Blizzard, Universal Music Group (UMG), and SFR, for
which Vivench required the assistance of third-party appraisers As a result, Vivend Management concluded that, except 1 the case of
Canal+ France, the recoverable amount of each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value as of December 31, 2012

e Caral+ France as of December 31, 2011, Vivendi Management noted that Canal+ France's recoverable amount was below its
tarying value, and consequently recorded an ympawment loss of €380 million As of December 31, 2012, as for the goodwill
impairment test performed as of December 31, 2011, Canal+ France's recoverable amount was determined upon the basis of the
value n use based on the DCF method, using the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, as
well as financial assumptions consistent with previous years a discount rate of 9% and a perpetual growth rate of 150%
{unchanged compared to December 31, 2011) - please refer to the table below As a result, considening pnmanly the expected
impact on revenues in Metropolitan France of the increase in the VAT rate from 7% to 10% as of January 1, 2014 and, to a lesser
extent, the adverse changes in the macro-economic and competitive environment since the second half of 2012, Vivend
Management concluded that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2012, and
conseguently recorded an impairment loss of €665 million

s SFR as of December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2012, Vivend) had re-examined the value of SFR's goodwill and concluded that the
recoverable amount of SFR exceeded its carrying value at those dates As of December 31, 2012, Vivend) again examined the value
of SFR's goodwill At that date, and as of December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2012, SFR's recoverable amount was determired upon
the basis of the usual valuation methads, in particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash flow
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forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated in order to take into
account {1} the expected impact of the new tanff policies decided by SFR during the second half of 2012 and early 2013, following
the evolution of the competitive environment, (1)) the downward adjustment in the perpetual growth rate assumption (050%,
compared to 1% at the end of June 2012 and end of 2011} and {I1) the acceleration in very-high speed broadband investments As
a result, Vivendi's Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount, despite its decling, exceeded its carrying value as of
December 31, 2012 - please refer to tables below

Presentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU 1s determingd as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections consistent
with the 2013 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each operating segment
on the basis of the financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate, and EBITA s defined in
Note 123, capital expenditures, competitive environment, regulatory environment, technalogical development and level of commercial expenses
Except for Maroc Telecom, for which the recoverable amount 1s determined based on its stock market price, the recoverable amount for each CGU or
groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with the main key assumptians presented below

The Annual Report contains a detalled description of the 2013 operating performance projections for each operating segment of the group

Valpation Method Discount Rate (a} Perpetual Growth Rate
Operating segments CGU or groups of CEU testad 012 a1 an2 1 a2 201
OCF stok market prte & | DCF stock market price &
4
Aclson comparables ; ables model 10 50% 10 00% 0% 400%
DCF stock market price & | DCF stock market pece &
Actrasion Blizard Bluzard commparables model comparables model 10 50% 1006% 400% 4 00%
D OCF & comparables model | DCF & comparables model 13 50% 1300% 400% -4 00%
Universal Music Group Universal Musit Group DCF & comparatles model | DCF & comparables model 9 25% 9 25% 100% 100%
SFR SFR DCF & comparables model OCF 730% 700% 050% 100%
Maroc Telecom Stock market price Stock market pice na* na* na* na
Onatel OCF OCF 14 40% 1370% 300% 300%
Marot Telecom Group Gabon Telecom OcF DCF 12 10% 11 70% 310% 300%
Mauritel DCF oeCF 1740% 1800% 300% 300%
Sotelma DCF DCF 14 60% 13 50% A% 3 00%
GVT (b} GVT DCF DCF & comparables model 10N% 1154% 4 00% 4 00%
Canals Grou Canal+ France DCF DeF 300% 900% 150% 150%
i StgiaCanal oCF DCF 500% 900% 006% 000%

na* not applicable
DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate appled to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Regarding GVT, an annual impairment test on the value of goodwill was performed in the second quarter of each fiscal year
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December 31 212

Discountrate

Perpetual growth ate

Cash flows

Change in the discount rate wn order for

Change 0 the perpatual growth rate in

Changa 1 cash flows m order for the

Apphed the recoverable amount to be equal to Apphied arder far the recoverable amount to be recoverable amount to be equal to the
rate the carying amount rate equal to the carmying amount carrying amount
fin %) fin number of poents) {in %) lin number ot points) lin %)

Actrvision Blizzard
Actwvision 10 50% +9 18 pts 400% 2415 ots 8%
Blizzard 1050% +1019pts 400% 2520pts £8%
Universal Music Group 92%% +2 99 pts 100% 491 pts 5%
SFR 730% 168 pt 050% 121pt 10%
Maroc Telecom Group {a} fa {a a) (a)
GVT (b) 1091% +251 ptg 400% §25pts 36%

Cenal+ Group
Canal+ France (c) 900% {c) 150% {c) c)
StudioCanal 900% +3 23 pts 000% 555pts 28%
December 31 2011
Discount rate Parpetual growth rate Cash flows

Change in the discount rate in arder for Change in the perpetual growth rate in Change in cash flows in order for the
Agplied the recoverable amount to be equal to Appliad order for the recoverable amount ta be recoverahle amount 1 ba equal ta tha
rate the camrying amount rate equal to the carrying amount carrying amount
{in %) [in number of posnts) {in %) {in nurmbes of points) {in %}

Activision Bhizerd
Activision 1000% +14 16 pts 4 00% 5525 pts 68%
Blizzard 10 00% +1277 pis 400% -41 25 pts -%
Unrversal Music Group 925% +125pt 1 0% -186 pt 13%
SFR 700% +249 pts 1 00% 474 pts 32%
Maroc Telecom Group (2} {a) fal {al {a}
GVT (b) 11 54% +1 64 pt 400% 341 pts 25%

Canak+ Group

Canal+ France (c} 900% {c} 150% 4] fc)
StucioCanal 9 0% +1 89 pt 0 00% 331pts 17%

a  Asof December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, Maroc Telecom was valued based on its stock market price

b The goodwill impairment tests on GVT were undertaken on June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011

¢ Inrelation to the recognition of a goodwilll impairment loss on Canal+ France as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
please refer below for a sensitivity analysis , which presents {the increase)/decrease \n impairment generated by a change of
25 points in the discount rate and the perpetual growth rate assumptions, and a 2% change in the cash flow assumption with each of

these assumptions being taken separately for the goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by ‘Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in millions of euros) 25 pts 25 pts 25 pts 25 pts 2% 2%
December 31,2012 {133) 142 102 (38} n an
December 31, 2011 {149) 159 17 (109) 87 {87)
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Note 10

10.1 Content assets

{in millions of euros)

Intemally developed franchises and other games content assets
Games advances

Music catalogs and publishing nghts

Advances to artists and repertoire owners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and telewision ¢osts

Sports nghts (aj

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets

Non-current content assets

{in millions of evros)

Internally develaped franchises and other games content assets
Games advances

Music catalogs and pubfishing nghts

Advances to artists and repertoire owners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and television costs

Sports nghts {a)

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets

Non-current content assets

Content assets and commitments

Tuesday February 26, 2013

December 31 2012

Accumulated amortization

Content assets gross Content assets
and smpairment losses

493 (331} 162

13 - 133

7222 (4.871} 2351

618 - 518

25 (15) 10

5522 (4 756) 766

331 - 331

14,344 (9.973) amnm

(1,118) 74 {1 044)

13226 {9.899) 337

December 31, 2011
Accumulated amortization
Content assets ross Content assets
and impairment losses

4 {315} 156

91 - 94

6420 {4,743) 1677

515 - 515

25 {12) 13

51728 (4,409) 720

379 - 379

13,030 (9.479) 3,551
{1036} 30 (1,066}

11,534 19,449) 2,485

8 Primanly relates to the nights to broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded 'n 2011 to Canal+ Group for four seasons
{2012-2013 to 2015-2016), which are recognized as follows upon the start of the seasan or upon the itial payment, the rights for the
9012-2013 season were recorded n content assets for €427 million on August 1, 2012 (compared to €465 million on August 1, 2011)
The remaining three seasons (2013-2014 to 2015-2016) were recognized as given off batance sheet commitments (please refer to Nate
10 2 below)

Changes in main content assets

Year ended Oecember 31

{in mullions of euros} 2012 201
Opening balance 3551 3816
Amortization of content assets excluding thase acquired through business combinations (i72) (17)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations (324) (3201
Impairment Josses on conient assets acquired through business combinations {9} {a) n
Increase 2,585 2277
Decrease (2252 (2,251}
Busmess combinaticns 1,077 (b} 38
Changes 1 foreign currency translation adjustments and other {135) 115
Closing balance 43N 3,551

a  Relates to the impairment of certain UMG music catalogs

b Primarily relates to the music catalogs acquired from EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (please refer to Note 2 1)
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10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position' content liabilities

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Content liabilities are mamly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of "Other non-curent liabilities” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicable {please refer to Note 16}

Mimimum future payments as of December 31, 2012

Total minimum future

Total Quem payments as of

{in millions of euros) 2013 24 207 Atter 2017 December 31 2011
Games royalties 22 n - 28
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 1579 1477 102 1398
Film and television nghts {a) 189 189 - 235
Sports nghts 374 kvl - 438
Creative talent employment agreements and others 119 41 72 b 49
Content iabilities 2283 2,103 174 [ 2148

— ——

O balance sheet commitments given/{received)
Minimum future payments as of December 31 2012 Total mummum futisee
Total Due in payments as of

{tn millions of euros) 2013 2014-2017 After 2017 December 31, 2011
Film and telewision rights (a) 2590 1,138 1411 4 2143
Sponts nights {b) 115 612 1103 20652
Creative talent, employment agreements and others{c) 953 478 445 36 1009
Given commitments 5,264 2,228 2,959 77 5.204
Film and televisipn nghts (a) {114} {72) {42) {89}
Sports nghts 12} m (5} (15}
Creatwve talent employment agreements and others ic) not avallable
Other {199) (78) {121} - {63]
Received commtments {325) {157} {168} - {163}
Total net 4939 2071 2,19 77 5,041
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Mainly includes contracts valid aver several years tor the broadcast of fm and TV productians {mainly exclusiity cantracts with majer
US studios) and pre-purchase contracts in the French movie industry, StudioCanal film production and co-praduction commitments
{gwven and received) and broadcasting nights of CanalSat and Cyfra+/"n” multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast 1s available for initial release As of December 31, 2012, provisions recorded relating to these
commrtments amounted to €86 milhon, compared to €153 milion as of December 31, 2011

In addition, this amount does not include commitments geven in relation to channel night contracts for which Canal+ Group and GVT
{following the launch of 1ts pay-TV offer in October 2011) did not grant mimmum guarantees The vanable amount of these
commitments cannot be reliably determined and Is not reported 1n the Statement of Financial Position or 1n given commitments and s
instead recorded as an expense for the period 1n which it was incurred Based on the estimation of the future subscriber number at
Canal+ Group, comrmitments in elation to channel nght contracts would have mcreased by €288 million as of December 31, 2012,
compared to €143 million as of December 31, 2011

Moereover, according to the agreement entered into with cinema professionai organizations on December 18, 2009, Société d'Edition
de Canal Plus (SECP) 1s required to 1nvest, every year for a five-year perod {2010-2014), 12 5% of its annual revenues in the financing
of European films With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements with producers and authors’ organizations, Canal+
France 1s required to Invest a percentage of its revenues in the financing of hentage work every year

Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors™ organizations are not recorded as off bafance shest
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably ncludes the nights to broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded to Canal+ Group in 2011 The price paid by
Canal+ Group represents €427 milhon per season, of a total of €1,281 mithon as of December 31, 2012 for the 2013-2014 10 2015-201%
seasons, compared to €1,708 mullion as of December 31, 2011 These commitments will be recognized 1n the Statement of Financial
Pasttion either upon the start of every season or upon imtial payment

Primarily relates to UMG which routinely commuts to artists and other parties to pay agreed amounts upon delivery of content or ather
products {“Creative talent and employment agreements”) Until the artrst or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its abligation as an off balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
Is obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determined and, thus, 1s not reported in recerved commitments
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Note 11  Other intangible assets
December 31, 2012
Other intangible assets,  Accumulated amortuzation Other intangible assets
{in mitlions of euros) gross and impamment losses
Software 5,047 {4,035} 1412
Telecamn hicenses 2 960 {811) 2,149
Customer bases 962 {725 237
Trade names 462 (53) 409
Other 2,110 {1,127) 983
11,991 {6,751) 5,190
December 31 2011
Other intangible assets,  Accumulated amortization Other mtanaibie assets
{in milkons of euros} gross and impairment losses J
Software 5015 {3692} 1,363
Telecom licenses 1848 (705 1143
Customer bases 986 {616} 370
Trade names 481 {52} 429
Other 1,956 {932) 1,024
10,286 {5,957) 4329

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Software includes acquired software, net for €592 million as of December 31, 2012 (€636 million as of December 31, 2011}, amortized over

4-years as well as SFR's mtemally developed software

Trade names relate to trade names acquired from GVT in 2009 and Activision in 2008

Other intangible assets notably include indefeasible rights of use (IRU) and other long-term occupational rights, net for €296 million as of

December 31, 2012 {€328 mullion as of December 31, 2011)

Changes in other intangible assets

{in millions of euros)

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acqussitions (a)

Increase related to mternal developments
Divestitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustmenis
(Other

GClosing batance

Year ended December 34,

2012 20m

439 4,408
(979} (545)

1,548 981

294 276

(4 1

K} 14
{52) (1

19 17

5,190 4329

a Includes the acquisition by SFR of 4G spectrum (very-high-speed Internet - LTE) for £1,065 mnthon in 2012 and €150 mulion i 2011

Depreciation Is recognized as cost of revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses it mainly consists of SFR's telecom
licenses (-€73 million n 2012, compared to -€72 miflion 1n 2011), intemally developed software (-6221 million 1n 2012, compared to

-£199 million n 2011), and acquired software {-€244 million in 2012, compared to -€273 millien 1n 2011)
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Note 12

{in millions of evros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Canstruction-in progress
Other

{n millions of euras)

Land

Buidings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

Property, plant and equipment

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

December 31, 2012

Property plant and
equIpment gross

Accumulated
depreciation and
impaiment losses

Property, plart and equipment

242 {2) 240
3707 {2.143) 1564
13,839 (8,07 5868
375 - 375
4637 {2 758) 1879
22,500 l12,974! 9,926

December 31 2011

Property plant and
eQuipment, gross

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment

227 (2) 225
2,190 (1616 1174
13443 {7.770) 5673
323 - 323

4 380 (2 774) 1606
21,163 {12,162) 90

As of December 31, 2012, other property, plant and equipment, net, notably ncluded set-top boxes, for €974 million, compared to
€807 million as of December 31, 2011 in addition, property, plant and equipment financed pursuant 1o finance leases amounted to
€58 million, compared to €60 millien as of December 31, 2011

Changes in property, plant and equipment

{in milhons of euros)

Opening balance
Depreciation
Acquisiions/Increase
Divestitures/Decrease
Business combinations

Changes in foreign currency translatron adjustmants

Other
Closing balance

Year ended December 31,
2012 201

9,001 8217
(1,743) {1,662}
2769 2,604

(39) (29)

170 7

{232} {140)

4

9,926 9,00t

The depreciation 1s recognized as cost of revenues and n selling, general and admimistrative expenses It mainly consists of the depreciation
of buildings (-€15 million 1 2012, unchanged compared to 2011} and equipment and machinery (-€1,081 mifiion :n 2012, compared to

81,100 milion 1n 2011}
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Note 13 Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations

{in miihons of euros}

Dther intangible assets, net
Software

Telecom hcenses

Customer bases

Trade names

Other

Property, plant and equipment, net
Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in progress

Other

Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net

{in milhons of euros)

Otherntangible assets, net
Software

Telecom hicenses

Customer bases

Trade names

Other

Property, plant and equipment, net
Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction in-progress

Other

Intangible and tangible assets of telecem operations, net

Detember 31 2012

Maroc Telecom

SFR GVT Total
Group
1,112 182 56 1350
2,002 (al 147 . 2149
1582 i 72 228
- 1 17 118
816 50 13 879
4,082 382 258 41
97 131 228
1,182 315 16 1,613
2n? 1747 1885 5749
314 - . 314
758 97 334 1189
4,368 2,250 2,235 8,993
8,550 2672 2493 13,15
December 31 2011
SFR Marot Telecom VT Total
Group
1052 206 54 1312
963 (al 180 - 1143
218 2 135 355
1 129 130
885 39 18 940
3118 428 k<] 3830
83 13 214
855 264 15 1134
22n 1,730 1532 5533
285 - 285
750 115 167 1032
424 2240 1,14 8138
1,362 2,668 2,048 12,078

a  SFR holds licenses for its networks and for the supply of its telecommunications services in France, for a 15-year perod for GSM
{between March 2006 and March 2021) and a 20-year period for both UMTS (between August 2001 and August 2021) and LTE {between
January 2012 and January 2032), with the following financial conditions

o for the GSM hicense, an annual payment over 15 years compnsed of a () fixed portion 1n an amount of €25 million for each year
(capitalized over the perod based on a present value of €278 million 1n 2006} and (i) a variable portion equal to 1% of the yearly

revenues generated by this technology,

o for the UMTS license, the fixed amount paid n 2001 (€619 million) was recorded as an intangible asset and the vanable part of the
fee 1s equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this technology Moreover, as part of this license, SFR acquired new
spectrum for €300 million in June 2010, over a 20-year penod, and

e for the LTE licenses, the fixed amounts paid in October 2011 (€150 millien) and January 2012 {€1,065 mulion), respectively, were
recorded as intangble assets at the acquisition date of the spectrum band, and the variable portion of the fee 15 equal to 1% of

the yearly revenues generated by this technology

The vaniable portions of the fees that cannot be reliably determined are not recorded in the Statement of Financial Pesitrion They are

recorded as an expense, when incurred
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SFR’s network coverage comntitments related to telecommunication hicenses

o On November 30, 2009, the “Autorité de Régulation des Communications Electroniques et des Postes™ or "Arcep” (the French
Telecommunications Regulatory Agency) addressed a notice to SFR regarding its compliance n the UMTS network coverage of the
French metropolitan population 98% by December 31, 2011, and 99 3% by December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2011, with
984% of the French metropolitan population covered, SFR was in compliance with its coverage commitments As of
December 31, 2012, the network coverage was 39 0%

e Aspart of the grant of the first band of LTE spectrum in Gctober 2011, SFR has committed itself to ensure a specific coverage rate
for the French metropolitan population 25% by October 11, 2015, 60% by Dctober 11, 2019, and 75% by October 11, 2023

e Aspart of the grant of the second band of LTE spectrum in January 2012, SFR has commytted 1tself to camply with the following
obligations

{1

fn
)

{w}

Note 14

{in millions of euros)

N-Vision
Numergy
Other

na* not apphcable

SFR 1s required to provide the following very high-speed mobile network coverage

- coverage of 98% of the French metropalitan population by January 2024 and 99 6% by January 2027,

- coverage in the prorty zone {appreximately 18% of the French metropolitan population and 63% of the ternitory)
within this zone, SFR 1s required to cover 40% of the population by January 2017 and 90% of the population by
January 2022,

- coverage obligations at a departmental level SFR has to cover 90% of the population of each French department by
January 2024, and 95% of the population of each French department by January 2027,

SFR and Bouygues Telecom have a mutual network sharing or spectrum peoling obligation in the prionity zone,

SFR has an abligation to offer natienal roaming to Free Mobile within the grianty zane upon bullding of tts own 2 6 GHz
network covering at least 25% of the French population provided that 1t has not signed a national roaming agreement
with another operator, and

SFR has a joint coverage obligation with the other B0O MHz hcense holders to cover the hot-spats that have been
identified by the French administration within the framewaork of the “white zones” program (beyond 98% of the
population} within 15 years

Investments in equity affiliates

Voting interest Value of equity affil ates
Note  December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
2 40% - 162
2 47% - 104 -
na* na* 122 135
388 135
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Note 15 Financial assets

{in milhons of euros) Note

Cash management financial assets {a}

Other Inans and receivables (bj

Denvative financial nstruments

Available-for-sale securties (¢}

Cash deposits backing borrowings

Other financial assets

Financial assets 23
Deduction of current financial assets

Non-current financial assets

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

301 266
22 340
137 101
197 125

b 12

15 2
818 8
{364] [@7s)
514 394

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

a Primarily relates to US treasuries and government agency securiuies with a matunty exceeding three months held by Activision

Blizzard for $387 million as of December 31, 2012 {compared to $344 million as of December 31, 2011)

b As of December 31, 2011, other loans and recewvables notably included SFR's cash deposits relating to Qualfied Technological
Equipment {QTE} operations for €53 million as well as a €120 milhon loan granted by Canal+ Group to ITI in December 2011 in
connection with the strategic partnership 1nvolving Polish pay-TV This loan was redeemed at the closing of the transaction, on
November 30, 2012 (ptease refer to Note 2 3) Moreover, all of SFR's QTE contracts were early redeemed as of December 31, 2012

¢ As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, the available-for-sale secunties did not snclude significant publicly quated
securties and were not the subject of any significant iImpairment with respect to fiscal years 2012 and 2011

Note 16

Changes 1n net working capital

Net working capital

Changes in Changes in
December 31, operating working Business forewgn currency Other [b) December 31,
2011 combinations translation 2012

capital (a)
{in mullions of euras) adjustments
Inventories 805 {80) i (12} £y 738
Trade accounts receivable and other 6730 (291) 284 (84) {52) B 587
Working capital assets 1535 (3 n3 (96} (56) 1,325
Trade accounts payable and other 13987 1307} 579 (125) 62 14196
Qther non-current liabilibes 864 26 56 (19) 75 1002
Working capital habilrties 14,851 {281} 635 (144 137 15,198
Net working capital {1316} (90} (322} (1] (183) {2.873)

Changes Changes in

December 31, onerating workin Business foreign currency Other [b) December 31
2010 e ca |?a| (a} g combinations translation o

{in milhwons of euros} 0 adjustments
Inventones 750 53 1 5 4 805
Trade accounis recervable and other 6,711 95 24 (gl)_l_ {70} 6730
Working capital assets 7.861 148 5 (25) {74) 7,535
Trade accounts payable and other 14 451 {101) n 6 {440} (c} 13687
QOther non-current lsabilities 1074 {58) - 1] {145) 864
Working capital habiliies 15,525 {159) n 1) {585) 14,851
Net workng capital {8,064) 07 {46) {24) 511 (7316

a Excludes content investments made by Activision Blizzard, UMG, and Canal+ Group

o

Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments

¢ Notably includes the interim dividend due as of December 31, 2010 by SFR to Vodafong, paid in January 2011 (€440 million)
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Trade accounts receivable and other

{in millions af euros) December 31, 2012 December 31,2011
Trade accounts recevable 5,458 5,684
Trade accounts recewable wre-ofis {1.315) (1,202)
Trade accounts receivable, net 4,143 4,482
Other 2,444 2,248
Trade accounts receivable and other 6,587 6,730

Vivend: does not cansider there to be a significant nsk of non-recovery of non-impaired past due recevables Vivendi's trade recevables do
not represent a significant concentration of credit nisk due to its broad customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well
as the subscription-based business model of most of its business segments (Actvision Blizzard, SFR, GVT, and Canal+ Group) as well as the

geographic diversity of Its business operations (please refer to Note 3 2) Please also refer to Note 13510 for a description of the method
used to evaluate trade account receivable provisions

Trade accounts payable and other

{in millions of euros) Note December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Trade accounts payabie 6,578 6,684
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 102 1477 1375
Game deferred revenues (a} 1,251 1,139
Prepad telecommunication revenues {b) 817 900
QOther 4,073 3,889
Trade accounts payable and other 14,196 13,987

a  Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues at Activision Blizzard and related costs of sales associated with the sale
of boxes for certain games with significant online functionalty (please refer to Note 1.3 4 1)

b Mainly includes subscriptions that are not past due and prepa:d cards sold but not consumed, mobile phones held by distributors, roll-
over minutes of SFR’s mobile operations and the current partion of SFR's deferred revenues of fixed operations

Other non-current habihties

m rmithons of eures) Note  December 31, 2012 December 31 2011
Advance lease payments in respect of Qualified Technological Eguipment operations 15 53
Liabilities related to SFR GSM license (a) 13 154 172
Prepaid revenues from indefeasible nghts of use (IRU) and ather long-term

occupational nghts (by 340 385
Non-current content liabihities in2 1680 56
Other 328 () 218
Other non-current isbhihties 1,002 £64

a Relates to the discounted value of the liability The nominal value amounted to 206 million as of December 31, 2012, compared to
€231 million as of December 31, 2011

b Relates to deferred revenues associated with indefeasible right of use {IRU} agreements, leases or services contracts

¢ Naotably includes the long-term portian of capital (€63 rillion) subscribed by Numergy, not yet released (please refer to Note 2 4)
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Note 17  Cash and cash equivalents

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Cash 920 667
Cash equivalents (a) 2974 2837
af which UCITS 2,699 27265
certificates of deposit and term deposits 275 372
Cash and cash equsvalents 3.894 3.304

a  Cash equwvalents mamnly includes Activision Blizzard's cash and cash equivalents for £2,989 million as of December 31, 2012
{compared to €2,448 million as of December 31, 2011). nvested, If any. in money market funds with initial maturity dates not
exceeding 90 days

Note 18  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA
(in thousands) December 31 2012 December 31 2011
Common shares outstanding (nominal value €55 per share) 1,323,962 1,241,263
Treasury shares (1 461) {1329
Voting nghts 1,322,501 1,245,933

The increase in the number of commen shares outstanding 1n 2012 1s due to the grant of 416 million bonus shares to Vivend: SA
shareholders in May 2012 {please see below), the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels in exchange for 22 4 million shares in
September 2012 (please refer to Note 2 2) as well as the employee stock purchase plan (12 3 milion shares} of July 2012 {please refer to
Note 21)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend held 1,461 thousand treasury shares, or 011% of its share capital These shares are backed to the
hedging of performance share plans The carrying value of the portfolio amounted to €25 million as of December 31, 2012 and 1ts market
value amounted to £25 million as of December 31, 2012

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, approxmately 53 millian stock options were outstanding, representing @ maximum nominal share
capital increase of £294 million or 4 03% of the company’s share cap'tal

Non-controlling nterests

{in rillions of euros) December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Actwision Bhzzard 1183 1009
Maroc Telecom Group 1073 1,131
Canal+ Group 692 4
Other 23 12
Total 29N 2623

Distributions to shareowners of Vivends SA and its subsidiaries

Dwidend proposed by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2012

On February 18, 2013, the date of Vivendr's Management Board's meeting which approved its Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2012 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivend’'s Management Board decided to propose to
shareowners a dividend distribution of €1 per share, which would represent a total distribution of approximately €13 billon to be paid in
cash on May 17, 2013, following the coupon detachment on May 14, 2013, by withdrawal from the reserves This proposal was presented
to, and approved by Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 22, 2013 The additional contribution of 3% on dividends
will be recorded as a tax charge upon the payment of the dividend on May 17,2013

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2011

At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of Apnl 19, 2012, Vivendr's shareholders approved the Management Board's
recommendations relating to the aflocation of distributable earnings for fiscal year 2011 Asa result, the dvidend payment was set at €1 per
share, representing a total distribution of €1,245 million, paid in cash on May 9, 2012, following the coupon detachment an May 4, 2012
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Bonus shares granted to Vivend: SA shareowners

At)ts meeting held on February 29, 2012, follewing the Supervisory Board's recommendation, Vivendi's Management Board decided to grant
to 1ts shareowners one bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction resulted in the 1ssuance on May 8, 2012, by a €229 million
withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, of 416 million new shares with a nominal value of €55 each and entitlement as from
January 1, 2012

Dividend distributed by subsidiaries
On February 7, 2013, Activision Blizzard announced that its Board of Directors had declared a dividend of $0 19 per comman share to its
shareholders This dividend will be pard in cash on May 15, 2013

The Supervisory Board of Maroc Telecom group will propose to the Annual Shareholders' Meeting, to be held on April 24, 2013, the payment
of an ordinary dividend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds to 100% of distnbutable earnings from 2012 This dividend will be paid n
cash on May 31, 2013

In 2012, dwvidend payments to subsidiaries’ non-controlling interests amounted to €481 million (€721 milion in 2011) and mainly included
Maroc Telecom SA for €345 million in 2012 {compared to €384 million in 2011) and Activision Blizzard for €62 million 1n 2012 {compared to
€55 million in 2011} Moreover, on June 16, 2011, at the completion of the acquisition of its 44% nterest n SFR, a €200 million interim
dividend was paid to Vodafone

Actvision Blizzard

Stock repurchase program of Activision Blizzard

On February 2, 2012, Activision Blizzard announced that 11s Board of Directors had authonzed a stock repurchase program under which
Activision Blizzard can repurchase shares of its outstanding common stock up to an amount of $1 billion This program will end at the earlier
of March 31, 2013 or on the date of the Board of Directors’ decision to discontinue 1t In 2012, Activision Blizzard repurchased approximately
4 mifiion shares of its common stock in connection with this pragram, for a total amount of $54 million In addition, duning the first half of
2012, Activision Bhrzzard settled a $261 million purchase of 22 million shares of its common stock pursuant to the previous $1 5 billion stock
repurchase program In total, Activision Blizzard repurchased approximately 26 million shares of its common stock in 2012, for a total amount
of $315 millien, or €241 mulhon {compared to $692 million or €502 million in 2011}

Vivendi's ownership interest in Activision Bhzzard

As a reminder, an November 15, 2011, Vivend: sold 35 million Activision Blizzard shares into the market for $422 million (€314 mullion)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi held 684 million shares out of a total of 1,112 million Activision Blizzard shares, or a 61 5% interest
{compared to approximately 60% as of December 30, 2011) Moreaver, as of December 31, 2012, the outstanding Activision Blizzard stock
mstruments represented 77 millon new shares to be 1ssued in favor of their beneficiaries (52 million shares due to stock options and
25million restricted shares, compared to 53 miflion and 17 million shares, respectively, as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Note
2132}, and the stock repurchase program authorized in February 2012 not consumed for up to $346 million, representing approximately
86 million potential treasury shares (under the assumption of a stock price of $11 per share)

As part of its earnings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Activision Blizzard 1s considenng, or may consider dunng 2013,
substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course iransactions These potential transactions
could be financed by debt
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Note 19 Provisions

Divestitures changes in

Decernber 31 Business foraign currency Decermber 31
Note iR Addition Uulhzation Reversal combirations  tranglation adjustments 2012
{in millions of euros) and other
Employee benefits (a) 507 43 18} 19) 50 8 551
Restructunng costs 49 322 o) (154} 52 (19} 258
Ligations 27 474 1015 ic} (54) {62} 4 (5) 1357
Losses on onerous contracts 237 19 o4) {0 1 143
Contingent habilifies due 1¢ disposal {d) 264 L] 17} 24
Cost of dismantling and restoning sites (e} 0 1 [k} 15 83
Other () 73 748 4ol (a7 183 29 9 1389
Provisions 2,155 2148 1500} 1174} 145 n 3805
Deduction of current provisions (586) (316} g1 139 (12) (21) 711)
Non-current provisions 1569 1832 (408} {35) 133 4 3094
Dwvestitures changes in
Dacember 31 Busingss foregn currency December 31
Note 2010 Addition Unization Reversal combinations  translation adjustments 011
{in millions of euros) and other
Employee benefits (al 511 40 78 3 7 507
Restructuring costs 42 B7 (90 {6} 1 14 48
Liugations 27 443 262 193] (46} 12 6 479
Losses on onerous contracis 394 72 (165) (61) 2 5) 3
Contingent habilities due to disposat (d) 264 50 (3 {B) a1
Cost of cismanting and restoning sites {e} 63 @ g 70
Dther (f) 526 351 {64) (56 2 73
Provisions 2,Ilil 812 {600} HQ 15 [1] 2,155
Deduction of current provisians (552) {298) 290 48 - {73) {586)
Non-current provisions 1477 513 (B[] 1139) 15 ] 1569
a Includes employee deferred compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans {€499 million as of December
31, 2012 and €446 mullion as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Note 20 2), but excludes employee termination reserves recorded
under 1estructunng costs
b Includes restructuring provisions SFR (€170 million), Maroc Telecom (€72 million), and UMG {€79 million)
c Notably includes the €345 million reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Carporation litigation in the United States {please refer
to Note Z7)
d Certain commitments given i relation to dwestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the
amount 1s not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend)
e SFRand GVT are required to dismantle and restore each telephony antenna site following termination of a site lease
f Notably mcludes provisions for fiscal and legal litigations for which the amount 15 not detalled because such disclosure could be
prejudicial to Vivend
g Notably includes the reserve accruals related to the impacts of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 (€366 million), as

well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€208 million) {please refer to Note §)

Note20 Employee henefits

20.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The follewing table provides infermation abeut the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component The total cost of
defined benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 20 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{in miltions of euros} Note 2012 201

Employee defined contribution pians 57 55
Employee defined benefit plans 2022 16 16
Employee benefit plans 13 n
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20.2 Employee defined benefit plans

2021 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in comphiance with accounting policies presented in
Note 138 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
Increase} are company specific Financial assumptions {notably including the discount rate and the expected rate of return on investments)

are made as follows

« determiation by independent actuanies and other independent advisors of the discount rate for each country by reference to yields
on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunities 1denttcal to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices, and as reviewed by Vivendr's Finance Department, representing, at year-end, the best

estimate of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments, and

+ the expected return on plan assets 1s determined for each plan according to the portfolio composition and the expected

performance of each component

Pension henefits Past-retirement benefits
2012 201 2012 2011
Discount rate (a) 36% 46% 16% 4 3%
Expected retum on plan assets (b) 36% 37% na" na*
Rate of compensation increase 20% 19% 31% 30%
Expected average working life {in years) 103 98 48 53
Weighted average duration of the benefit obligation {in years) 142 146 105 101

na* not applicable

a A 50 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) in the 2012 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 million 1n pre-tax expense {or an increase of €2 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension

and post-retirement benefits of €65 million {or an increase of €71 million, respectively)

b A 50 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) in the expected return on plan assets for 2012 would have led to

a decrease of €1 million in pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in accounting for the pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 3 50% 425% 425% 500% 325% 450% 325% 450%
Expected return on plan assets 350% 425% 4 25% 336% 325% na* 325% 455%
Rate of compensation increase na® na* 4 50% 5 00% 200% 200% 341% 347%

na* not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 350% 425% 4 00% 475%
Rate of compensation increase 3 50% 350% na* na*

na* not applicable

Pension plan assets

Weighted-average range of investment allocation by asset category for each major plan

Minimum Maximum
Equity securities 6% 6%
Real estate 1% 1%
Debt securities 57% 57%
Dversified funds 16% 16%
Cash and other 20% 20%
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Allecation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Equity securities 6% 6%
Feal estate 1% 1%
Debt secunties 57% 67%
Dwversified funds 16% 17%
Cash and ather 20% 9%
Total 100% 100%

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a lim:ted exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivend nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement henefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivend assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for categories under 65 years old and 65 years old and over in 2012, to 45% n 2021 for these
categories In 2012, a one-percentage-point increase n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased postretirement benefit
ohligations by €12 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease (n the assumed cost evalution

rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by £10 million and the pre-tax expense by less than €1 million

2022  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Total

{in milhons of euros) 02 201 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current service cost 19 16 19 16
Amertization of actuanal {gains)/losses 8 7 8 7
Amortzation of past service cost 1 ] 1 "
Effect of curtaiiments/settlements (12} - (12} -
Adjustment related to asset ceiling - - - -
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 16 16 - 16 16
Interest cost 3 Yi 7 38 Kb
Expected return on plan assets {12) 9) (12) {9)
Impact on other financial charges and income 19 19 7 2% 26
Net benefit cost 35 35 7 7 42 42

In 2012, benefits paid amounted to {1} €29 million (compared to €27 milhion 1in 2011} with respect to pensions, of which €7 million {compared
to €5 million in 2011) was paid by pension funds, and {i1) €12 million {unchanged compared to 2011) was paid with respect to post-retirement

benefrts

2023 Analysis of net benefit obhigations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Benefit ahligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status over a five-year periad

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits
December 31 December 31,
{in millons of euros) 2012 2611 2010 2009 2008 2012 201 2009 2008
Benefit cbhigation 857 668 539 482 163 158 142 135
Fair value of plan assets 367 272 203 189 - - - -
Underfunded obligation {490) {396) {336) {293) (163} {158) {159) {142) {135)
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

{in millons of eurcs}

Benefit obligation
US companies

UK companies
German companies
French companies
Other

Fair value of plan assets
US companies

UK companies

German companies

French comparies

Other

Underfunded obhigation
US companies

UK companies

German companies

French companies

Other

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Pension bengfits Post retiwement benehts Total
December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011 12 2011
118 i21 144 133 262 260
225 205 225 205
183 108 183 108
216 17 216 m
115 83 19 19 134 82
857 668 163 158 1020 826
53 56 - - 53 6
188 154 - - 188 154
3 - - 3
67 51 - - 67 51
56 1 - - 56 1
367 272 . - 367 n2
[65) {65) {144) (1391 (209) (204)
{37) {51) - [37) (51}
{180} 108) - (180} {108)
{149) (120 [14%) 120
{59) {52) {19) _('Iﬁ {78) 1)
(490) {386) {163) (158} {653) {554}

In 2011, Vivend! took into account the impact of the change in the legislation in refation to the indexation of retirement plans in the United

Kingdom, which resulted in @ non-significant decrease of ts commitments

2024 Additional information on pensson benefits in France

Vivendi maintains ten pension plans in France, of which four make investments through insurance companies The allocation of assets by
category of the various plans was as follows

Corporate Supplementary Plan
Corporate Management Supplementary Plzn

SFR Supplementary Plan
Canal+ Group IDR* Plan

IDR (Indemnités de départ en retraite)* indemnities payable on retirement

Equity secunties Real estate Debt securities Cash Total
121% 6 4% 775% 40% 100%
150% 59% 754% 37% 100%
120% 60% 810% 10% 100%
99% 81% 820% - 100%

The asset allocation remarns fairly stable over ime Contributions to the four plans amounted to €17 million in 2012 (compared te €4 million

in 2011}, and are estimated to be €7 million n 2013

Payments to all ten pension plans m France amounted to €17 million 1in 2012 {compared to €5 milhon in 2011), and are estimated to be

€8 milhon 1in 2013

2025 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2013, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments to retirees by Vivendi are estimated at £45 million in respect of pensions, of which
€23 million to pension funds and €12 million to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to benefic:anes by the relevant pension funds or by Vivend: {in nominal value) are as follows

{in mllions of euros)

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Pension benefits

Post-retirement

benefits

3
42
25
24
R

190

12
11
"
1
"
57
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Note21  Share-based compensation plans

21.1 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in millions of euros) Year ended December 31,
Charge/{tncome) Note 2012 201
Stock options, perfarmance shares and bonus shares 32 28
Employee stack purchase pians 3 25
“Stock appreciation nghts” and “restricted stock urits” - {5)
Vivend: stock instruments 212 65 48
Activision Blizzard stock instruments 213 103 67
UMG employee equity unt plan 214 9 7
Subtetal {including Activision Blizzard's capitalized costs) 177 122
equity-settled instruments 168 120
cash-settled instrumeants g z2
{-} Activision Blizzard's captalized costs (a) {7) 7
Charge/(Income) related to share-hased compensation plans 3 170 129

a Share-based campensation costs directly attributable to games development are capitalized 1n compliance with the accounting
principles described in Note 1354 In 2012, €21 million were capitalized {compared to €19 million in 2011) and €14 miflion were
amartized {compared to €26 million in 2011}, representing a net impact of +£7 million {compared to -€7 million in 2011)

21.2 Plans granted by Vivendi
2121 Information on plans granted by Vivend

Vivend: has granted several share-based compensation plans to its employees During 2012 and 2011, Vivend: granted stack option and
performance share plans, wherever the fiscal residence of the beneficiaries, and banus share plan for employees of all the group's French
subsidiaries, as well as stock purchase plans for its employees and retirees (employee stock purchase plan and leveraged plan)

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are descnibed 1n Note 1310

More specifically, the votatility applied in valuing the plans granted by Vivend: :n 2012 and 2011 15 calculated as the weighted average of {a)
75% of the historical volatility of Vivend: shares computed on a 6 5-year period and (b} 25% of the implied volatility based on Vivend) put
and call options traded on a hquid market with a maturity of 6 months or more

The risk-free interest rate used Is the rate of French "Obligations Assimilables du Trésor” (OAT} with a matunity corresponding to the
expected term of the instrument at the valuation date

The expected dividend yield at grant date 1s based on Vivend!'s dividend distnbution policy, which 1s an expected dividend representing
approximately 45% to 55% of adjusted net income

Equity-settled instruments

The definitive grant of equity-settled instruments, excluding bonus share plan, 1s subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such
perfermance conditions include an external indicator, thus following AFEP and MEDEF recommendations The objectives underlying the
performance conditions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Hurnan Resources Committee

The value of the granted equity-settled instruments 1s estimated and set at grant date For the main stock option plans, performance share
plans and bonus share plans of 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

22 2011

Grant date July 16, [a) Apnil 17 April 13,
Data at grant date

Option strike price {in euros) (b} na* 1363 1993

Share price {in euros) 1575 1253 2056

Expected volatility na* 27% 5%

Expected dividend yield 635% 798% 730%
Performance conditions achievement rate [c) na* 100% 100%

na* not applicable

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivendi /108




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

a  Vivendi's Management Board decided to grant 50 bonus shares to the employees of all the group’s French subsidiaries

b Inaccordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock optrons, as well as the number of performance shares in
connection with outstanding plans, were adjusted to take into account the impact, for the beneficianes of the grant, of one bonus
share on May 9, 2012 to each shareowner per 30 shares held by a withdrawal from additional paid in capital This adjustment had no
impact on share-based compensation expense related to the relevant stock option and performance share plans

¢ Beginning 1n 2012, for both performance shares and stock options, the objectives underly:ng the performance conditions are assessed

once on a cumulative basis at the expiry of a two-year period {each year duning two years far plans granted 1n 2011} Their definitive

grant will be effective upon the satisfaction of the following new performance conditions

o internal ndicator {70%) EBITA margin rate which will be recorded as of December 31, 2013 an the basis of cumulative 2012 and
2013 fiscal years (compared to adjusted net income {45%) and cash flow from operatians (25%) for plans granted 1n 2011), and

e external indicators (30%) the performance of Vivend: share between January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2013, compared to two
stock ndices Europe Stoxx 600 Telecommunications (70%. compared to 60% for plans granted in 2011} and a range of Media
values {30%, compared to 40% for plans granted in 2011)

As the performance conditions related to the 2011 plan were satisfied at year-end 2012, the defimtive grant of stock options and
performance shares from Apnl 13, 2011 became effective as of December 31, 2012 The acquisition of these instruments 1s conditional upan
active employment at the vesting date

Stock option plans

Stock options granted in 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a three-year period and expire at the end of a ten-year pencd (with a B 5 year
expected term) and the compensation cost determined at grant date 1s recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

On Apnil 17, 2012, 2,514 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 2,527 thousand granted on April 13, 2011 After taking into
account a 2 35% risk-free interest rate (321% i 2011), the fair value of each aption granted was €0 96, compared to €2 16 per option an
Apnl 13, 2011, corresponding to a global fair value of €2 million {compared to €5 million in 2011}

Performance share plans

Performance shares granted in 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a two-year period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a
straight-fine basis over the vesting penod Performance shares are available at the end of a four-year pertod from the date of grant
However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares composing the share capital of Vivend: SA,
employee shareholders are entitled to dividends and voting nights attached to these shares at the end of the two-year vesting peniod The
compensation cost corresponds to the value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference between
the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dvidends that were not recerved over the vesting periad

On Apni 17, 2012, 1,818 thousand performance shares were granted, compared to 1,673 thousand granted on Apnl 13, 2011 After taking
nto account a discount for non-transferability of 7 10% of the share price on Apnl 17, 2012 {4 50% on Apnl 13, 2011}, the fair value of each
granted performance share was €9 80, compared to €16 84 per share on April 13, 2011 corresponding to a global fair value of €18 million
(compared to €28 million n 2011)

50 bonus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend: adopted a 50 bonus share plan per employee of all the group's French subsidianies These shares will be 1ssued at
the end of a two-year period, e, July 17, 2014, subject to the employee being in active employment at this date and without any
performance conditions The compensation cost was recognized on a straight-line basis over this period The shares will only be available
after another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share
capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders will be entitled to dwvidend and voting nights relating to all their shares from the end of the two
year vesting penod

On July 16, 2012, 729 thousand bonus shares were granted After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9 30% of the
share price on July 16, 2012, the fair value of each granted bonus share was €12 40, a total of €3 million

Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

Vivend: also maintains share purchase plans (stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allow substantially all of its employees and retirees
to purchase Vivendi shares through capital increases reserved to them These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer
restrictions, may be purchased by employees with a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivendr shares
during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board (purchase date) The
difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on the date of grant (corresponding to the subscription period
closing date) represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend: applies a discount for non-transferability in respect of
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the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which 1s deducted from the benefit granted to the employees
The value of the stock purchase plans granted 15 estimated and fixed at grant date

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 2011
Grant date June 25 June 23
Subscnption price (in euros} 03 1527
Data at grant date
Share prrce {in euros) 1357 1839
Discount to face value 24 02% 16 97%
Expected dwidend yield 731% 816%
Risk-free interest rate 137% 244%
5-year interest rate 651% 615%
Repo rate 036% 0 36%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,108 thousand shares were subscribed in 2012 {1,841 thousand shares subscribed in 2011)
After taking into account a 15 3% discount for non-transferability to the share price on the grant date {10 0% in 2011}, the fair value per
subscribed share was €1 2 on June 25, 2012, compared to €1 3 per subscribed share on July 23, 2011

Under the leveraged plans implemented in 2012 and 2011, virtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and its French and foreign
subsidiaries were entitled to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining & discounted
subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain (calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan) corresponding to
10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution mandated by Vivend hedges this transaction

In 2012, 9,845 thousand shares were subscribed under the leveraged plans {compared to 7,320 subscribed shares in 2011) After taking into
account a 1 5% discount for non-transferabihity measured after the leveraged impact (1 0% in 2011), the fasr value per subscribed share on
June 25, 2012 was €3 1, compared to €2 9 per subscribed share on June 23, 2011

Therefore, stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase totaling €127 millien on July 19, 2012 {icluding 1ssue
premium), compared to €143 milhion on July 21, 2011

Cash-settied instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific instruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settied 1n cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 15 initially estimated as of the grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date All the rights for these plans were
definitively vested as of Apnl 2010

Stock appreciation nght plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficianes thereof to receve the appreciation in the value of Vivendi share, they are known as "stack
appreciation nghts’ {SAR} which are the economic equivalent of stack options Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a cash
payment upon exercise of ther rights based on the Vivendr share price equal to the difference between the Vivendi share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expure at the end of a ten-year penod The following table presents
the value of outstanding stock appreciation nght plan measured as of December 31, 2012

2007 2006
Grant date Apnl 23 September 22, April 13,
Data at grant date
Stoke price {in US dollars) 4134 3458 3458
Number of instruments granted {in thousands) 1,281 24 1250
Data at the valuation date { December 31, 2012}
Expected term {in years) 21 18 16
Share price {in US dollars) 2249 2249 2249
Expected volatility 29% 29% 29%
Risk-free interest rate 007% 006% 005%
Expected dwvidend yield 587% 587% 587%
Fair value of the granted option as of December 31, 2012 {in US dollars) 0.20 04 03
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Restricted stock unrt plans

Under an RSU plan, the beneficianes received, at the end of a four-year period following the grant date, a cash payment based on the
Vivend: share pnce equal to the Vivend: share pnce at that date, plus the value of dwidends paid on Vivend: shares in respect of the two
fiscal periods subsequent to the two-year vesting period, and converted into the local currency st the prevailing exchange rate In 2011, the
beneficiaries of the RSU plan granted in 2007 recerved a cash payment for an aggregate consideration of €2 mill:on Conseguently, there are
no more RSU plans at Vivend

2122  Information on cutstanding Vivendi plans since January 1, 2011

Equity-settled instruments

Stock options Performance shares
Number of stock options Weighted average suike Nember of performance
price of stock options
outstanding shares outstanding
outstanding
{n thousands) {in euros) (in thousands}
Balance as of December 31, 2010 48,922 24 1,827
Granted 2 565 199 1768
Exercised {554} 139 (509
Cancelled {1026) 197 {125}
Balance as of December 31, 2011 49,907 ns 2,961
Granted 2,650 137 1918
Exercised (479) (a) 130 {981)
Cancelled {411} 184 {138)
Adusted 1,739 Ma 124
Balance as of December 31, 212 53.406 (h) 205 3884 (c)
Exercisghle as of December 31, 2012 2817 214 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2012 42 857 214 3

a  The weighted average share price for Vivend: shares at the dates of exercise for the options was €16 70 {compared to €19 99 for stock
options exercised in 2011}

b Thetotal intninsic value of outstanding stock options was €22 million
¢  The weighted-average rematning period before 1ssuing shares under performance shares was 1 2 years

Regarding the grant of 50 bonus shares, the remaining number of bonus shares was 697 thousand as of December 31, 2012 During 2012,
32 thousand shares were cancelled

Piease refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivend: SA of the outstanding stock options, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock opttons as of December 31, 2012 15 as follows

Qutstanding stock optians Vested stock options
Weighied average Werghted average Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number remaining Number
stnke price strike price
contractuat ife

{in thousands) {in euros) {in years} {in thousands} (in euros)
Under €18 1M1 194 59 3,160 133
£18-£20 17,019 185 43 14421 183
£20-€22 13% 2t3 23 73% 3
£22-624 629% 226 53 6296 26
£24-€26 5714 257 33 54 ni
€26 £28 58N 217 43 5,871 2717
£28 and mare - - - -
53,206 25 44 42,857 214

Cash-settled instruments

As of December 31, 2012, the remaining outstanding SAR amounted to 5,064 thousand {compared to 5057 thousand as of
December 31, 2011} In 2012, 35 thousand SAR were exercised and 123 thousand were forfeited All rights related to SAR were vested and
ther total intringic value amounted to $2 million As of December 31, 2012, the amount accrued for these instruments was €2 million
{compared to €2 million as of Decenber 31, 2011)
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21.3 Plans granted by Activision Blizzard
2131 Information on plans granted by Activision Blizzard

As part of the creation of Activision Blizzard on July 10, 2008, Vivend) assumed the outstanding plans of Activision

The accounting methods applied to value these granted plans are described in Note 13 10 More precisely, the volatility applied in valuing
the plans granted by Actwision Blizzard consists of the historical volatihity of Activision Blizzard shares and the imphed volatility based on
traded put and call options The risk-free interest rate used was a forward rate and the expected dividend yield assumption was based on
the company’s historical and expected future amount of dividend payouts

On July 28, 2008, the Board of Directors of Activision Blizzard adopted the Activision Blizzard Inc 2008 Incentive Plan, further amended and
restated by the Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee of this Board with stockholder approval {as so amended and restated,
the "2008 Plan”} The 2008 Plan authonzes the Compensat:.on Committee of the Board of Directars to provide Activision Blizzard's stock-
based compensation In the form of stock options, share apprectation nights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares,
performance units and other performance o value-based awards The stock-based compensation program of Activision Blizzard for the most
part currently utlizes a combination of options and restncted stock units Under the terms of the 2008 Plan, the exercise price for the
options, must be equal to or greater than the closing price per share of the common stock of Activision Blizzard on the date the award 15
granted, as reported on NASDAQ

For the main stock option plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans of 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 2011
Weighted-average data at grant date {a)
Option strike price {in US dollars) 1095 1254
Share price {in US dollars) 1095 1254
Expected volatility 4% 4%
Expected dividend yield 165% 134%
Performance conditions achievement rate na* na*

na* not applicable

a  Relates to the weighted-average by number of instruments far each grant per fiscal year

Stock option plans

Stock options have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting annually over a period of three to five years and the options expire at
the end of a ten-year penod

In 2012, 4,296 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 4,052 thousand stock options in 2011 The weighted-average fair values of
the granted options were $3 47 per option {with a 112% rnisk-free interest rate) compared to $4 17 in 2011 {with a 1 91% nisk-free interest
rate)

For stock options granted in 2012, the expected term was 7 (5 years, compared to 6 58 years for the options granted in 2011

Restricted steck plans

Restricted stocks esther have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting in their entirety on the third anniversary of the date of grant or
vesting annually over a pericd of three to five years, or vest only If certain performance measures are met Concerning the restricted stocks
granted in 2012 and 2011, the shares are vested at the end of a three-year period

In 2012, 15,498 thousand restncted stocks were granted, compared to 4,918 thousand restricted stocks 1n 2011 The weighted-average fair
values of the granted restricted stocks were $11 81 per instrument compared to $12 30 i 2011

In addition, in connection with the consummation of the Activision and Vivend: Games business combination on July 9, 2008, the Chief
Executive Officer of Activision Blizzard received a grant of 2,500,000 market performance-based restricted shares, which vested in 20%
increments on each of the first, second, third, and fourth anmiversares of the date of grant, with another 20% vestng on
December 31, 2012, the expiration date of the Chief Executive Officer's employment agreement with Activision Blizzard As of December 31,
2012, the market performance measure was not achieved and all of the market performance-based restricted shares granted to the Chief
Executive Officer were forferted
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Stock options Restricted stocks
Number of stock apions Weighted average strike Nurnber of restrictad stocks
ouistanding price of stock options gutstanding
outstanding
{in thousands) {in US daollars) {in thousands)
Balance as of Decembaer 31, 2010 61,175 105 16,572
Granted 4,082 125 4918
Exercised {9,605) 72 {3,125)
Forferted (119 11 {1228)
Expired (741) 151 -
Balance as of December 31, 2011 53,162 11 17,139
Granted 4798 1o 15,498
Exercised {4790} {a} 69 {3554}
Forferted {423} 124 {3.478)
Expired {497) 149 -
Balance as of December 31, 2012 51,748 (b} 15 25,605 (c)
Exercisable as of December 31, 2012 397.%' 14 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2012 39473 114 -

a  The weighted average share price for the shares of Activision Bhizzard on the date on which the options were exercised was $12 15

{compared ta $12 06 1n 2011)

b The total intnnsic value of outstanding stock options was $37 million

¢ Forrestrcted stocks, the weighted average remaining period before 1ssutng shares was 1 7 years

Please refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on Vivendi's ownership interest in Activision Blizzard of the outstanding stock options and

the restircted stock plans

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2012 1s as fallows

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock cptions
Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number Weighted average remaming Number Weighted average
strike price strike price
contractual life
fin thousands) {in US doftars) {in years) {in thousands) {in \US doHars)

Under $2 11 18 02 11 18
$2-34 488 28 09 488 28
$4-36 1607 55 22 1607 55
$6-38 4373 70 30 4373 70
$8-$10 5714 93 45 5680 93
$10-812 22,602 113 75 13150 13
12814 8663 130 66 6394 131
$14 §16 3540 i50 55 3127 150
$16-817 4590 165 54 4483 165
$17 and more 60 184 56 60 184
51,748 15 61 39473 14

214 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are awarded
phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation nghts whose value 1s intended to reflect the valve of UMG These units are simply
umits of account and do not represent an actual awnership interest in either UMG or Vivend: The equity units are notional grants of equity
that will be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under certan circumstances The stock appreciation nghts are
essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term The
SAR's are also settled in cash only no later than 2015 or earlser under certan circumstances There 1S a guaranteed mimimem payout of
$25 milhon

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment. but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ nights vest at the end of a fixed vesting penod,
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compensation expense is recognized over the vesting penod as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense 1s recognized based
on the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date model in
accordance with {FRS 2

As of December 31 2012, the amount accrued under these arrangements was €22 million (€14 million as of December 31, 2011} There have
been no payments made to date

Note 22 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Naote December 31,2012 December 31 2011
{in milhons of euros) Tota! Long-term Short-term Total Long term Short-term
Bands 221 10,888 10,188 700 9276 1676 1,600
Bank credit facilities (drawn confirmed) 222 2423 2326 97 4917 4558 359
Commercial paper 1ssued 222 3.2%5 3255 528 - 529
Bank overdrafts 192 192 163 163
Accrued interest to be paid 205 205 200 - 200
QOther 751 120 631 621 173 448
Nominai valus of borrowings 17,14 12634 5080 15,706 12407 3299
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting (1) 4 (5} {12} (8 {4
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interasts 8 8 - 1 10 1
Dervative financial instruments 23 36 21 15 5 - 5
Borrowings and other financial habilities 12,7571 12,667 5.090 1510 12,409 330
221 Bonds
Interest rate (%} December Maturing during the following periods December
Maturity k1] After n,
(in millions of euros} raminal - sffectve 2012 013 24 2005 06 007 2017 201
€700 million (December 2012) 2500%  Z65% Jan-2Q 700 - - 700
3550 melion {Apnl 2012} 2400%  250% Apr-15 420 (a) - 420 - -
$650 mullion (Apri 2012) 3450%  3156% Jan-18 491 - - 491
3890 mallion {Apnl 2012} 4750%  401% Apr 22 604 - 604 -
€1,250 million {January 2012} 4125%  431% Jul-1? 1250 - - 1,250 -
€500 million {November 2011} 3B79% 4 04% Nov-15 500 500 - 500
€500 mallion (Navember 2011) 487%%  500% Nov-18 500 - 500 500
€1 000 million {July 2011} 3500% 368% Jul-15 1,000 1000 - 1,000
€1,050 mitlion {July 2011} 4750%  467% Juk-21 1050 b - 1080 750
£750 mullion {March 2010} 4060% 415% Mar 17 750 - 750 750
€700 milhon {December 2009) 4875%  495% Dec-19 700 - - - 700 700
€500 millon (December 20069} 4250%  439% Dec-16 500 - - 500 - - 500
€300 million - SFR {July 2009) 5000%  505% Jul-14 300 - 300 - - 300
€1,120 eullion {January 2009} 7750%  76%% Jan 14 894 - 894 - 894
$700 million {Apnl 2008} 6620%  685% Apr-18 529 - - 529 54
€700 million {Qctober 2006) 4500%  547% Oct 13 700 700 - - - 700
€1 000 million  SFR {July 2005) 33179% 414% Jul 12 - - - - - 1,000
$700 million {Apnif 2008) 5750% 606% Apr-13 - {c - - 541
€600 mallon (February 2005} 3875%  394% Feb-12 - - - 800
Nominal value of bonds 10,888 700 1,194 1820 500 2000 4574 9276

a A USD/EUR foreign currency hedge {cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche denominated in US dollar and 1ssued in
Apnl 2012 with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value at matunty As of December 31, 2012, the counter value of this

bond converted at the closing rate amounted to €415 millign
b InApnl 2012, this bond was increased by €300 million
¢ InApnl/May 2012, this bond was early redeemed through a tender offer

The bonds denominated in euro are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The bonds dencminated in US dollar were converted into euro based on the closing rate, 1e, 1 3244 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2012 {compared
to 129290 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2011)
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Bonds rssued by the group contain customary provisions refated to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment (pari-passu ranking) In

addrton, bonds 1ssued by Vivend! SA contain an earfy redemption clause in case of a change in contro! tnigger if, as a result of any such event, the
long-term rating of Vivench SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status {Baa3/BBB-)

22.2 Bank credit facilities

Decamber Maturing during the following periods December
Maximum n Aftar N

{in mullton of eurcs) Matwrnity amount 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 017 017 20h
€1 5 ullion revohang facility (May 2012) May 17 1500 {a
E1 1 ilion revalving facility (January 2012) Jan 17 1100 b}
€40 million revolving facility {January 2012) Jan 15 40
€5 0 brllion revohang facility {May 2011}

tranche B €1 5 billion May 14 1500 725 725 - 125

tranche C €2 0 billion May 16 200 819 819 10
€1 0 bulhon revolving facility {September 2010} Sep-15 1000 350 350 -
E1 2 mllion revohng facility - SFR {June 2010} Jun-15 1200 -
€2 bullion révobang facility {February 2008) fa) - 8%
€2 billion revolving facility {August 2006) (8} 2000
Secuntization program  SFR {March 2011) fc) 472
GVT BNDES 570 406 0 45 76 76 57 122 99
Maroc Telecom  MAD 3 tillion loan Jul 14 94 94 54 40 145
Canak Group VSTV Fetr14 3 ya:l 13 18 - n
Orawn confirmed bank credit facilihes 2413 9 826 426 [5] 57 122 4917
Undrawn confirmsd bank ¢redit facilities 6B16 i T84 15918 1209 2628 n 7164
Total of group’s bank credit facilimes — om9 103 1610 2,304 2104 2585 18 12081
Commercial paper issued {d} 3255 3255 529

a InMay 2012, Vivend: set up a €1 5 bulhon syndicated bank credit facility matuning in May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of
two credit facilities for a total amount of €3 billion {the €2 billion credit faciity of August 2006 maturing 1n August 2013 for €1 7 billion
and in August 2012 for €0 3 billion as well as the €1 bullion credit facihity of February 2008, maturing in February 2013}

b In January 2012, Vivend: set up a €1 1 bllion bank credit facility with a 5-year maturity, which permitted the early refinancing of the
€1 5 billion credit facility imitiatly matuning in December 2012 and SFR's €0 & billion syndicated loan initially maturing in March 2012

¢ SFR's secuntization program was terminated in June 2012

d  The commercial paper 1s backed to confirmed bank credit facilities It 1s recorded as short-term borrowing on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position Moreover, in June 2012, Vivend: increased the maximum amount authonized by the Banque de France
regarding Vivend SA’s commercial paper program from €3 billion to €4 bdlion

Vivendi SA and SFR bank credit facihities, when drawn, bear interest at floating rates

Moreover, (n cannection with its appeal of the verdict rendered m the Liberty Media Corporation litigation, Vivend will shortly deliver a
tetter of credit 1ssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €375 million {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs} This off-balance sheet financial commitment will have no tmpact on Vivendi’s net debt (please refer to Note 23 2 3)

Vivend SA’s syndicated bank credit facilities (€7 1 illion as of December 31, 2012) contain customary provisions related to events of default
and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivendi SA s
required to comply with a financial covenant of Proportionate Financial Net Debt' to Proportionate EBITDA? aver a twelve-month rolling
period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loans Non-compliance with this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facilities
if they were drawn, or their cancellation As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi SA was tn compliance with these financial covenants

SFR's bank credit facility (€12 billion as of December 31, 2012) contans customary default, negative pledge, and merger and divestiture
covenants In addition, the facility 1s subject to a change in SFR's cantrol provision Moregver, at the end of each half year, SFR must comply
with the following two financial covenants (1) a ratio of Financial Net Debt to conschdated EBITDA over a twelve-month rolling penod not
excesding 3 5, and (1} a ratio of consolidated earnings from operations {consolidated EFO) to consolidated net financing costs {interest) equal
to or greater than 3 Non-compliance with these financial covenants could result in the early redemption of the loan As of
December 31, 2012, SFR was in compliance with these financial covenants

! Defined as the difference between Vivents s Financial Nat Debt and the share of Financial Nt Debt attibutable to non-controling interasts of Activision Blizzard and Maroc
Telecom group

? Defined as the difference between Yiventh s modified EBITDA and modified EBITOA attnibutable to non-controliing mterests of Actmision Bhzzard and Maroc Telecom group,
plus dividends received from entities that are not consolidated
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The renewal of Vivend SA’s and SFR’s confirmed bank credit facilities when they are drawn 1 contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain
representations regarding 1ts ability to comply with its financial obligations with respect to loan contracts

The credit facihties granted to GVT by the BNDES {approximately BRL 1 5 bilion as of December 31, 2012} contain a change 1n contro! trigger
and are subject to certain financial covenants pursuant to which GVT Is required to comply at the end of each half year with at least three of
the following financial covenants {1) a ratio of equity to total asset equal to or hugher than 040 (0 35 for the credit facilities granted in
November 2011}, {1} a ratio of Financial Net Debt to EBITDA not exceeding 2 50, [} 2 ratio of current financial habilies to EBTDA not
exceeding 0 45, and (v} a ratio of EBITDA to net financial expenses of at least 4 00 (3 50 for the credit facilities granted in November 2011)
As of December 31, 2012, GVT was in compliance with its covenants

223 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency

Breakdown by maturity

(in mullions of euros) December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Maturity
< 1 year(a} 5080 23% 3,299 21%
Between 1 and 2 years 2057 12% 4017 26%
Between 2 and 3 years 2,380 13% 2,037 13%
Between 3 and 4 years 1406 8% 1603 10%
Between 4 and 5 years 2073 12% 139 9%
> 5 years 4718 26% 3359 21%

Noming! value of borrowings 17,114 160% 15,706 106%

a  Short-term borrowings {with a matunity of less than one year) included mn particular the commercial paper for €3,255 million as of
December 31, 2012 {compared to €529 million as of December 31, 2011}, with a 30-day weighted-average remaining penod at year-end 2012
In additron, they included the €700 million bond 1ssued in October 2006 and maturing in October 2013

As of Decemnber 31, 2012, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which alf undrawn amounts on available medium-
term credit ines may be used to redeem group borrowings wath the shortest term was of 4 4 years (compared to 4 0 years at year-end 2011)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millions of euros) Note December 31, 2012 December 31 2011
Fixed interest rate 11,666 66% 9993 §4%
Floating interest rate 6048 34% 5713 36%

Nommal vatue of borrowngs before hedging 17,114 100% 15,706 100%

——— ——

Pay-fixed mterest rate swaps 450 1.000

Fay-floating imterest rate swaps {1,450) {1,750}

Net position at fixed interest rate 232 (1,000} {750}

Frxed interest rate 10,666 60% 9,243 59%
Floaung interestrate 7048 40% 6 463 41%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 17,114 100% 15,706 100%

Please refer to Note 23 2 1 for a description of the group’s interest rate risk management instruments

Breakdown by currency

{in millions of euros) Note Oecember 31 2012 Decernber 31 2011
Euro EUR 14 420 81% 13751 85%
US dollar - USD 2046 12% 1084 7%
Gther {of which MAD BRL PLN and FCFA) 1248 7% 87 5%

Nomemal value of borrowings before hedging 17,114 100% 15,706 100%

— —— —§

Currency swaps USD 1,303 563

Other currenty swaps {813} fa) {78}

Net total of hedging instruments 232 490 485
Euro - EUR 14910 84% 14 236 9%
US dollar - USD 743 4% 521 3%
Other {of which MAD BRL, PLN and FCFA} 2061 12% 949 5%

Nommal value of horrowings after hedging 17,14 100% 15.706 100%
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a  Notably included a forward GBP/EUR contract for a nominal amount of £430 milhion, put into place in order to cover the proceeds from the

forthcoming sale of certain assets of EMI Becorded Music Please refer to Note 232 2 for a deseription of the group’s foreign currency nisk
management

224 Credit ratings

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2012, the credit ratings of Vivend: were as follows

Rating agency Rating date Type of debt Ratings Qutlook
Standard & Poor's July 27, 2005 (a) Long-term corporate debt BBB
Short-term corporate debt A2 Negative (a)
Senior unsecured debt BBB
Moody's September 13, 2005 Long-term senior unsecured debt Baaz Stable
Fitch Ratings December 10, 2004 Long-term semor unsecured debt BBB Stable

a  On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negative that it had placed in Vivend:'s debt on July 4, 2012 and confirmed
Vivend!'s rating, with a negative outlook, of the BEB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating

Note 23  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
23.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments classified as habiiies under Vivendr's Statement of Financial Position include bonds and bank credit faciliies, other
financial habtlittes {(including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and other non-current
liabilities As assets under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position, they include financial assets measured at fair value and at historical
cost, trade accounts recewable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents In addition, financial instruments include dervative
instruments {assets or labilities) and assets available for sale

Accounting category and fair value of financial instruments

December 31, 2012 December 31 2011
Carryng Fair value Larrying Fair value

{in miiions of euros) Note value value
Assets

Cash management financial assets 301 3 266 266

Available-for-sale securties 197 197 125 125

Derivative financial instruments 137 137 101 1at

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 15 28 28

Financial assets at amortized cost 228 228 352 352
Financial assets 15 878 878 872 872
Trade accounts recevable and other, at amoruzed cost 16 6,587 6 587 6730 6730
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3,894 3594 3304 3304
Liabihties

Borrowngs, at amortized cost 17713 18,637 15694 16,079

Darwvative financial instruments 36 36 5 5

Commtments to purchase non-controtling interests, at fair value

thraugh profit or loss 8 8 i1 ki
Borrowings and other finantial raitities 2 17757 18681 1510 16095
Other non-current habilities at amortized cost 16 1,002 1,002 864 864
Trade accounis payable and other at amortized cost 16 14,196 14,196 13,987 13987

The carrying value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable 1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short matunty of these instruments
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Valvation method for financial instruments at fair valse

The following tables present the fair value method of financial instrements according to the three following levels
- level 1 fair valve measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for Identical assets or labifities,
- level 2 farr value measurement based on observable market data (other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
- Level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included m the following tables
December 31, 2012

{in millions of euros} Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets i5 30 m - -
Available-for-sale securities 15 197 . 154 43
Dervative financial instruments 232 137 - 137

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 9 - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3.894 3,894 -
Liahihties

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 8 - 8
Derivative financial instruments 232 36 - 36 -

December 31, 2011

in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 15 266 266 - -
Available-for-sale secunities 15 125 1 7 47
Dernvative financial instruments 232 101 - 101 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 28 15 - 13
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3304 3,304 - -
Liabilities

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests ! - 2 9
Derivative financiat instruments 232 9 - b -

In 2012 and 2017, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, financial instruments measured at level 3 fair value did not include any significant amount

23.2 Management of financial risks and derivative financial instruments

As part of 1ts business, Vivends is exposed to several types of financial nsks market nisk, credit (or counterparty) nsk, as well as liquidity nisk
Market rnisks are defined as the risks of fluctuation n future cash flows of financial instruments {receivables and payables, as described in
Note 23 1 above) that depend on the evolution of financial markets For Vivend, market nsks may therefore primanly impact interest rates
and foreign currency exchange positions, in the absence of significant investments in the markets for stocks and bonds Vivend:'s Financing
and Treasury Department centrally manages significant market risks, as well as 1ts liquidity nsk within the group, reporting directly to
Vivendi’s chief financial officer, a member of the Management Board The Department has the necessary expertise, resources [notably
technica! resources), and information systems for this purpose However, the cash and exposure to financial nisks of Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard are managed ndependently The Finance Committee monitors the qudity positions in all business urts and the
exposure to Interest rate nsk and foreign currency exchange rate nsk on a bi-monthly basis Short- and long-term financing activities are
mamly perfermed at the group’s headguarters and are subject to the prior agreement of the Management and Supervisory Board, in
accordance with the Internal Regulations However, in terms of optimizing financing operations within the group's debt management
framework within the hmits already approved by the Supervisory Board, a simple notification 15 required

Vivend: uses vanous derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either Listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties Al
dertvative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes and speculative hedging 1s forbidden
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Denvative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2012 December 31 2011
{in millions of euros} Note  Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
{nterest rate nsk management 2321 104 {10} 60 -

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps - 110 -

Pay-floating interest rate swaps 104 - 60 -
Foreign currency risk management 2322 13 {26} ! (5)
Other 234 20 - - -
Denvative financial mstruments 137 (36) 10 {5)
Deduction of current denvative financial tnstruments {12} 15 {39) 5
Non-current denivative financial instruments 125 A 62 -

2321  Interest rate nsk management

Interest rate nisk management instruments are used by Vivend: to reduce net exposure to Interest rate fluctuations, to adjust the respective
proportion of fixed or floating interest rates in the total debt and to optimize average net financing costs In addition, Vivend:'s internal
procedures prohibit all speculative transactions

Average gross borrowings and average cost of horrowings

In 2012, average gross borrowings amounted to €17 1 bilhion {compared to €13 7 billion in 2011}, of which €10 2 billion was at fixed-rates
and €6 9 billion at floating rates {compared to €7 2 and €6 5 billion 1n 2011, respectively) After management, the average cost of borrowings
was 3 50%, with a fixed rate ratio of 60% {compared to 3 87%. with a fixed-rate ratio of 53% in 2011}

interest rate hedges

Interest rate nsk management instruments used by Vivendi include pay-floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps Pay-floating swaps
effectively convert fixed rate borrowings to LIBOR and EURIBOR indexed ones Pay-fixed interest rate swaps convert floating rate borrowings
into fixed rate borrowings These instruments enable the group to manage and reduce volatility m future cash flows required for interest
payments on borrowings

In 2012, Vivend: SA early termunated swaps (noticnal amount of €300 aullien) belonging to the pay-floating interest rate swap portfolio
{aggregate notional amount of €750 million), maturing in 2017, thus generating an unrealized gain of €19 million Simultaneously, the
balance of this portfolio (notional amount of €450 million) was reclassified as an economic hedge and Vivend: set up a pay-fixed interest
rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million, generating an unrealized gain of €37 million These unrealized gains were recorded in
charges and tncome, directly recognized in equity, and recycled in financial income over the remaining term of the borrowing hedged

The tables below show the notional amounts of interest rate nsk management instruments used by Vivendi

December 31 2012

Nouonal amounts Fair vatue
After

ttn millions of euros) Total 203 204 2015 2018 2007 2017 Assets Liabihities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - (10)
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 450) {1 000) (450) 104 .
Net position at fixed interest rate g1,om1 ]1.0('.0! - la) 104 {10}
Breakdgwn by accounting category of rate hedaing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - i i

Fair Value Hedge {1,000} {1,000) 55 -

Economic Hedging (b} - (al 49 {10}
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December 31, 2011

Notional amounts Fair value
After

(in milions of euros| Total 2012 2013 2014 2015 2086 2016 Assets Liabilives
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 1000 1000 -
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 750} {1000} {750} 60 -
Net positton at fixed interest rate (750} 1,000 {1,000) {750} 60 -
Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - -

Fair Value Hedge {1 750} {1,000} (750) (c} 60

Economic Hedging (b} 1,000 1,000

a includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed swaps for a notignal amount of
€450 mulhon, matunng 1n 2017, both of which qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedg:ng instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

c In 2012, Vivend SA early redeemed €300 milhon swaps from the €750 million pay-fleating interest rate swap portfolio maturing in
207

Qutstanding and average income from investments

In 2012, average cash and cash equivalents amounted to €3 4 billion {compared to €4 1 billion 1n 2011), bearing interest at floating rates The
average interest income rate amounted to 0 91% in 2012 (compared to 1 16% i 2011} They mainly sncluded Activision Blizzard's cash and
cash equivalents, invested 1n money market funds with initial maturity dates not exceeding 90 days

Sensitivity to changes 1n interest rates

As of December 31, 2012, given the relative weighting of the group’s fixed-rate and fleating-rate positions, an increase of 100 basis points
in short-term interest rates {or a decrease of 100 basis points) would have resulted 1n a €29 million 1ncrease (n interest expense {or a
decrease of €29 million}, unchanged compared to 2011

2322 Forewgn currency nsk management

Excluding Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard, the group’s foreign currency risk management is centrahzed by Vivendi SA's
Financing Department and primarly seeks to hedge budget exposures (80%) resulting from monetary flows generated by actvites
performed 1n currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm cornnitments {100%), pnmanly relating to the acquisition of
editorial content {including sports, audiovisual and film nghts) and certain capital expenditures {set-top boxes for exampte), realzed n
currencies other than the euro Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunty of less
than one year Considering the foreign currency hedge put into place, an unfavorabte and umform euro change of 1% against all foreign
currencies 1n position as of December 31, 2012, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings {below €1 milion as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011} In addition, the group may also hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities Nevertheless, due to therr non-significant nature, net exposures to subsidianes net
working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not hedged The relevant nsks are realized at the end
of each month by translating the sum into the functional currency of the relevant operating entities

The principal currency hedged by the group is the US dollar In particular, Vivend converted in euros the $550 mrdlion bond 1ssued in April
2012, by setting up a USD-EUR foreign currency hedge {cross-currency swaph with a 13082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 millien counter value
maturing in April 2015

In addrtion, as part of the acquisitron of EMI Recorded Music for £1,130 million, which was completed on September 28, 2012 {please refer
toNote 2 1)

+ Vivend had partially hedged the acquisition price through forward purchase contracts denominated i GBP for & notional amount
of £600 mullion, with a 0 8144 EUR/GBP rate From an accounting perspective, these GBP purchases were considered as cash flow
hedges On October 1, 2012, this hedge was unwound for €737 millian at the completion in the acquisition

e  Simultaneously Vivend) partially hedged the expected incoms from the sale of certain EMI Recorded Music assets, in accordance
with commitments made by Vivend to the European Comnussion, through forward sale contracts denominated in GBP for a
notional amount of £430 millron, with an average rate of 0 7965 EUR/GBP From an accounting perspective, these GBP sales were
considered as net investment hedges and wil! be unwound once the effective sale of Parlophone to Warner Music group (please
refer to Note 2 1)
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Finally, the intercompany loan granted by Vivendi to GVT under market terms for a total amount of €1,001 million {drawn for €817 million as
of December 31, 2012] 15 not subject to any foreign currency hedging i GVT's Statement of Financial Position Incurred foreign exchange
losses amounted to €76 million 1n 2012 and £24 million in 2011 Thrs mtercompany loan 15 mainly aimed at financing the significant increase
In GVT's capital expenditures program related to the geographic expansion of its telecommunication network

As a reminder, from December 2009 to January 2011, following the agreement to sell the 20% interest in NBC Universal to GE for a total
amount of $5,800 mullon, Vivend: gradually hedged ts tnvestrnent (n NBC Universal using currency forward sales contracts denomenated 1o
US dollar, at an average exchange rate of 133 EUR/AUSD From an accounting perspective, these forward contracts were qualified as net
vestment hedges in NBC Universal

The following tables present the notional amount of fareign currency nsk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts
relate to currencies to be recetved, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delwered

December 31 2012

Notanal amounts Fair valug
(in mulhons of euros) Total UsSD PLN GBP QOther Assets Liabihties
Sales agamnst the ewo {931} {59} {162} {586} {124} 12 13
Purchases aganst the euro 1421 1257 37 15 1z 1 {20)
Other 105 197} (8) - (3)
490 1,303 (222) {579} {12) 13 {26)
Breakd by accounting cate of foreian currency hedging mstrument
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro 87) {6} (58} [B) 15} 1 1
Purchases against the euro 446 446 (a) . . 1 1y
Qther 92 {92) - - (3)
359 §32 {150) (8) {15) 2 s
Fair Value Hedge
Sales aganst the euro (154} {53) (98} 3 - 1 2)
Purchases against the eura 456 441 - 15 - [6)
Other 20 {12) (8 - - -
302 408 {110) 4 - 1 {8
Net Investmant Hadge
Sales against the euro {575) - - {575} (b} - 0 -
Purchases against the suro - - - -
Other - - - -
{575} - {575) - 10
Economic Hedging (c)
Sales against the euro {115) - 16 - {108} - -
Purchases agarnst the eurg 519 370 37 12 (3)
Other - {7) 7 - -
404 383 34 3 {3)
December 31 2011
Notional amounts Fair value
(in millions of euros) Total UsD PLN GBP Qther Assets  Liahilities
Sales against the euro {338) {53) (112) (80) {93 5 5}
Purchases against the euro 823 606 a0 7 170 3 -
Other - 10 - {10} - - -
485 563 {72} (83) n [1] {5)
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales agamst the euro (97} - {65 (9) (23} - {2)
Purchasas against the euro 0 69 i 5 -
Other - - - -
(27} 69 (63) (8} {23) 5 {2
Faw Value Hedge
Sales agatnst the euro (54} {6} {47) {n )
Purchases against the euro 476 476 - - i}
Qther - il 1 {10} - - -
422 491 {58} {11} - 13 -
Economic Hedging [c)
Sales against the euro {187) {47 - {70 {70) {3
Purchases agatnst the eurg m 61 40 6 170 K} -
Oiher - 11 " - . - -
90 3 51 {64} 100 3 (3}
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a  Notably includes the hedge associated with the $550 million hond issued @ Apnil 2012, with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a counter-
value of €420 million at maturity in April 2015

b Marmly includes the hedge associated with the forthcoming sale of EM! Recorded Music assets as of December 31, 2012 {please refer
to Note Z 1), with an average rate of 0 7965 EUR/GBP, for a notional amount of £430 million, or a counter value at matunty of

€ 533 million

¢ The economic hedging instruments relate to denvative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

IAS 39

2323 Liquidity risk management

Contractual matunity of the group’s Financial Net Debt future cash flows

The table below presents the carrying value and the future undiscounted cash flows, as defined in the contractual matunty schedules, of

assets and liab/lities that constitute Vivend:'s Financial Net Debt

December 31 2012

Camying Contractua! matunty of cash outflows / {imflows)

{(in mullions of euros) value Total 2013 204 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
Nommnal value of borrowings (a) 17714 17714 5080 2,057 2,380 1,406 2073 4718
Curnulative effect of amortized cost and resvaluation due to
hedge accounting in
interest to ba pand (b) 2,586 534 502 402 331 302 515

Barrgwings 17,713 20 300 5614 2558 2782 1,737 2375 5233

Commitments to purchase non controlling interests B 8 4 4

Denvative financial tnstruments 36 30 18 3 3 3 3

Borrowings and other financial habilibes 17,757 20,338 5632 2,562 Z,185 1,740 2382 5237

(Cash management financial assets {301} {301) {301}

Dervative financial instruments {137} {156} {40) {29) (28) {28) 1 {20

Cash deposits backing borrowings {6} {6 {6}

Cash and cash equivalents {c) {3 B34} {3,894} (3,894)

Financial Net Debt 13.419 15,981 139 2533 2,157 1.12 23N 527

Undrawn confirmed bank credit facilmes {(d) 6,616 6 T84 1918 1.209 2628 n

December 31, 2011
Carrying Contractual matunty of cash outflows / {inflows)

{in milhons of euras) value Total 2012 2013 2004 2015 2016 After 20t6
Nominal value of borrowings {a) 15 706 15706 3299 4017 2,037 1603 1.391 3358
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hadge accounting {12)

Interest to be pard (b} - 2230 544 436 380 266 196 428
Borrowangs 15694 17,936 3843 4453 2397 1669 15687 iy
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests " 1 1 4 [
Dervative financial struments 5 5 5
Borrowings and ather financial habihities 15,10 17,952 3849 4,453 2397 1869 15N 3,793
Cash management financial assets {266) {266) {266)

Dernivative financial instruments {101} {142 {54) {16) {16} {15) {16) {25)

Cash deposits backing borrowings {12} {12) (12)

Cash and cash equivalents (c) {3,304} {3 304} (3304)

Financial Net Debt 12,027 14,228 213 4,437 2381 1.854 1575 3,768

Undrawn confirmed bank credit faciliias 1,164 204 110 fp: ] 2261 1,730 220

a  Future contractual undiscounted cash flows related to the nominal value of currency borrowings are estimated based on the applicable
exchange rate as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively

b Interest to be paid on floating rate borrowings i1s estmated based on floating rates as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively

c Cash and cash equivalents include cash held outside the United States by the Activision Blizzard's non-American subsidiaries for
£1,936 milion (compared to €1,266 million as of December 31, 2011) 1f these funds are needed in the future to finance American
transactions, Activision Blizzard would accrue and pay the required US taxes to repatriate these funds However, Actvision Blizzard's
mtent 15 to permanently reinvest these funds outside of the United States and their current business plans do not demonstrate a need
to repatriate them to fund their activities in the United States
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In connection with rts appeal of the verdict rendered 1n the Liberty Media Corporation htigation, Viverdi wilt shortly deliver a letter of
credit 1ssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 million {damages and interest, as well as legal
costs) This off-balance sheet financial commitment will have no impact on Vivend:'s net debt (please refer below)

Group financing policy

Vivendi's financing policy consists of incurring long-term debt, mainly in bond and banking markets, at a vanable or fixed rate, in euros or In
US dollars, depending on general corporate needs and market conditions

Non-current fmancial debts are pnmanty raised by Vivend: SA, which centralizes the group's financing management, except for Actvision
Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, 1n 2012, Vivendi pursued its palicy of disintermediation, having recourse in
pronty to the bond market Vivend: also sought to diversify its investor base by 1ssuing on the American bond market and pursued
its pokcy of maintaining the “economic” average term of the group’s deht above 4 years In additian, Vivendi has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which 1s renewed each year, in order to take advantage of every euro
bond market opportumity Vivendi's bank counterparties must meet certain cniteria of financral soundness, reflected in therr credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreaver, to comply with the rating agencies’ prudential regulations regarding liquidity
management, Vivend: arranges to the extent possible, the refinancing of all expiring bank credit facilities or bonds ane year in
advance As a result, n 2012, Vivendi made three bond issuances in euro for a tota! amount of £2,250 million {January, Apnl and
December 2012}, and one 1ssuance in US doltars for $2,000 mullion {Apri 2012)

Contractual agreements for credit facilities granted to Vivendi SA do not include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivend: SA 1s notably required to comply with a financial covenant (please refer to Note 22 2) The credit facilities granted to
group companies other than Vivendi SA are intended to finance erther the general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or specific projects

In 2012, wvestments, working capital, debt service (including the redemption of borrowngs), and the payment of income taxes and
the dividend distribution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset disposals, and borrowing or share 'ssuances
{Direct 8 and Direct Star) For the foreseeable future and based an the current financial conditions on the financial market, sutyect
to potential transactrons which may be implemented 0 connection with the group’s change in scope, Yivend: intends to maintain
this financing policy for its Investments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

The group’s bond debt amounted to €10,888 million {compared to £9,276 million as of December 31, 2011 In 2012, Vivend) 1ssued
bonds 1n euros and in US dollars for a total amount of €3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of £2,048 llion (of
which $700 million {or €448 million) were early redeemed in April/May 2012} The group’s bond debt represented 61% of the
borrowings m the Statement of Financial Position {compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011)

The total amount of the group’s confirmed credit faciities amounted to €9,039 million (compared to €12,083 million as of
December 31, 2011) The group's aggregate amount of credit facilities nesther drawn nor backed by commercral paper amounted to
£3.361 million {compared to €6,635 mullion as of December 31, 2011) The decrease n the amount of credit facilbes neither drawn
nor backed by commercial paper was notably due to the disintermediation policy, the increase in the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by drawing on credit facilities

Vivend: SA’s and SFR's total confirmed credit facilines amounted to €8,340 milhon as of December 31, 2012 {including €2 bilhon m
available swinglines), compared to €11,242 million as of December 31, 2011 Al these credit facilities have a matunity greater than
one year These credit facilities were drawn for £€1,894 million as of December 31, 2012 Considering the €3.255million
commercial paper issued at that date and backed to bank credit facihities, these facilities were available up to @ maximum amount
of €3,191 million

In connection with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Carporation litigatian, Vivend: will shartly delwer a letter
of credit issued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 million {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivendi has signed a
Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
letter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contained 1n Vivendi’s credit facilities In certain circumstances, these prowisions could cavse Vivendi to have to post cash
collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, If one of the 15 banks defaults In respect of its obhgations and was not
able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of Amenca, Vivend: could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a last resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank's participation in the
letter of credit

The short-term borrowings mamly ncluded 1ssued commercial paper The “economic” average term of the group's debt was
4 4 years {compared to 4 0 years as of December 31, 2011)
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o Finally, there 1s no restriction on the use of the financial resources which the group’s companies benefit {including Vivendi SA) that
may materially affect, directly or indirectly, the group’s activiies

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negatwe that 1t had placed on Vivendi's debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, whnich 1s used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivends reaffirmed its commitment to maintaining such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financral Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivendi SA and SFR had available confirmed credit facilities amounting to €8,340 millson, of which €500 mithon were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper issued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilities for €3,991 million, these
facilities were available for an aggregate amount of €3,849 mition Moreover, the sale of Parlophone, announced on February 7, 2013, for
£487 milhon {please refer to Note 2 1), should be finalized during the second haf of 2313

Group financing organization

Exctuding pnmanly Actrvision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling) of all controlted
entities (a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or (b} that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to a 100% ownership nterest in SFR on June 16, 2011, has enabled Vivend SA to centralize all of
SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis from July 1, 2011 through a cash pooling account

Alternatively, in particular at Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not pooled by Vivend SA but rather, as the case
may be, distributed as dividends when they are not used to finance investments of the relevant subsidiaries, as common stock repurchases
or to redeem borrowings used ta finance their investments Regarding Actiwviston Blizzard, up unt! July 8, 2013, the distnibution of any
dvidend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmatwe vote of a majority of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds $400 million

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit faciities will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service 1ts debt (including the redemption of borrowings), pay its income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
investment projects, if any, for the next twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change n scope In addition, Vivend: considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place 1n connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation htigation will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Corporation until the appeal 1s resolved

23.3 Credit and investment concentration risk and counterparty risk management

Vivendi's sk management policy aims at minimizing the concentration of its credit (bank credit facilities, bonds, dervatives} and investment
nisks as well as counterparty nisk, as regards tha setting-up of bank credit facil:ties, denvatives or investments, by entering into transactions
with highly rated commercial banks only Moreover, regarding bond ssues, Vivend: distributes 1ts transactions among selected financial
Investors

In addition, Vivendr’s trade receivables do not represent a significant cencentration of credit nisk due to its broad customer base, the broad
variety of customers and markets, and the geographic diversity of its business operations

234 Equity market risk management

As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, Vivendi's exposure to equity market risk was non-significant

In additien, as of Decerber 31, 2012, Vivend: holds call aptions and has granted put options on Iisted or unlisted shares Vivend 15 thus
exposed to the nsk of fluctuation n therr values As of December 31, 2012, Vivend''s net exposure was not significant, given that the
unrealized losses on the put granted to ITl group on a 9% interest in N-Vision (-€19 mullion, please refer to Note 2 3) were offset by the
unrealized gain on Deezer warrants (€20 million)
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Note24 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

24.1 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,

{in milhans of euros) Note 2012 201
Items related to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortizatien and depreciation of mtangible and tangible assets 4 3929 3441
Change in provision net 102 {130
Other non-cash tems from EBIT 1 .
Other
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation liigation in the United States 27 945 -
Other income from EBIT 4 {22) {1385}
Other charges from EBIT 4 235 656
Proceeds from sales of property plant, equipment and (ntangible assets 3 9 8
Adjustments 5,199 259

242 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2012, investing and financing activities with no cash impact amounted to €596 millon {of which €336 milion due to the share capital
increase and €260 million due to the group'’s retained earmings increase) and were mainly related to

- the grant of bonus shares to Vivend) SA shareowners by a £229 million withdrawat from addrtional paid-in capital {please refer to
Note 18},

- Vivendi SA’s share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid in consideratior for the contnibution made by Balloré
Media, (the free-to-air channels Direct 8 and Direct Star), representing an enterprise value of €336 million {please refer to Note 2 2),
and
The strategic partnership in Peland, finalized on November 30, 2012 Thss transaction, described in Note 2 3, generated an increase
In consclidated retained earnings from equity of €260 million (EYt4 million reiated to the gain on the dilution of Cyfra+ and
£1231 milhon related to the recognition of ITI Neovision non-controlling nterests at fair value)

In 2011, there were no significant investing and financing activities with no cash impact

Note25 Transactions with related parties

25.1 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

At a meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy's term of office as Chairman of the
Management Board The Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following members of the Management Board Mr
Abdeslam Ahizoune, Mr Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Meheut It also appointed Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman
of the Management Board The Management Board 15 currently composed of Mr Jean-Frango:s Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

In addition, as a reminder, on March 26, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as member of Vivendi's Management Board and as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) of SFR

Compensation of corporate officers

The total gross compensation, Including benefits In kind, that the group paid to the members of the Management Board, amounted to
€25 million 1n 2012 {compared to €18 million 1n 2011} This amount mainly included the fixed compensation component of the members of
the Management Board for the duration of their mandate (€S million in 2012, compared to €9 mullion in 2011}, the vanable compensation
companent with respect to the previous year (€12 million paid 1n 2012 with respect to 2011, compared to €8 million paid in 2011 with
respect to 2010}, as well as Mr Jean-Bernard Levy and Mr Frank Esser's severance payments (€6 million}

After having considered the recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Commuttee and the Chairman of the Human
Resources Commuttee, the Supenvisery Board determined on June 28, 2012, that in accordance with the provisiens approved by the General
Shareholders” Meeting of Apnt 30, 2009, the conditions for M Jean-Bemard Lévy to receive severance pay had been satisfied This
severance pay amounts to sixteen months of fixed and vaniable compensation {based on six months’ payment plus one additional month's
payment for each year of service within the group after 2002), which totals €3 9 million Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy, in accardance with the
provisions approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting of Apnil 30, 2009, retains the rights to all of his stock options and performance
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shares, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions attached thereto Moreover, in March 2013, he will recaive the
vanable compensation component with respect to 2012 prorated, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 22, 2013

In accordance with his employment contract, Mr Frank Esser’s severance pay amounted to €3 9 million {of which €2 3 million was paid in
2012 and the balance 1n January 2013}, corresponding to his contractual severance payments {twenty-four months of fixed compensation +
target bonus) and conventional compensation

The members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2012 are entitled to receive severance payments upon termination,
corresponding to a contractual termination payment As of December 31, 2012, the total estmated amount of these severance payments to
be paid to Management Board members was approximately €0 8 miliion At the General Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 30, 2013,
it will be proposed that Mr Philippe Capron be entitled to receive a contractua! severance payment of a gross amount of eighteen months’
compensation {fixed compensation + target bonus}

The total charge recorded by the group with respect to share-based compensation plans {stock options, performance shares, and employee
stock purchase) granted to members of the Management Board, in office or no fonger in office, amounted to €6 milfion in 2012

The total amount of net pension plan obligations to members of the Management Beard in office as of December 31, 2012, amounted to
€5 million as of that date (compared to €30 milhion and €13 millon of provisions for members of the Management Board in office as of
December 31, 2011} Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy and Mr Franck Esser lost their pension rights, which were under the supplemental pension
plan

The fixed compensation paid te the Chairman cf the Supervisory Board amounted to €700,000 in 2012 (unchanged compared to 2011} and
the total amount of fees paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board amounted to €1 2 million with respect te 2012 {unchanged
compared to 2011)

A detailed description of the compensation and benefits of corporate officers of the group 1s presented in the Annual Report
25.2 Other related parties
As a reminder, duning 2011, Vivendi acquired Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR and completed the sale of its 20% interest in NBC Universal

as from Januvary 1, 2011, Vodafone and NBC Universal are nc longer considered as related parties

Therefore, excluding corporate officers, Vivendi’s main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive ar
joint control, and companies over which Vivend exercises a significant influence (please refer to Note 28 for a hst of its main subsidiaries,
fully consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise sigmficant nfluence on group
affiliates 1 e , the Kingdom of Morocco, which owns 30% of Marog Telecom group, Lagardére, which owns 20% of Canal+ France, and since
November 30, 2012, TVN, which owns 32% of Canal+ Cyfrowy {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group)

Agreements entered into 1n 2006 with Lagardére that give Canal+ France the night to broadcast their theme channels on its multi-channel
offer for a penod of five years have been extended through June 30, 2013
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Note26 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend's matenal contractual obligations and contingent assets and habilities include

= contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 10 2},
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases

{please refer to Note 12}, off-halance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as

long-term service contracts and purchase or investment commitments,

s commitments related to the group’s scope contracted through acguisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or sale
commutments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or recewved commmitments related o the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivendi's
assets,

e commitments related to the group’s financing borrowings issued and undrawn confirmed bank credit faciities as well as
management of interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity nisks {please refer to Notes 22 and 23), and

» contingent assets and liabilities related to Iitigations in which Vivend) and/or its subsidianes are either plaintiff or defendant [please
refer to Note 27)

26.1 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

As of December 31 2012 Total as of
Tota! Payments due in December 31
{in millions of euros) Note 2013 2014 2017 After 2017 011
Borrawangs and other financial liabihtes 373 20338 5632 9469 5237 17952
Content liabilives 0z 2183 2103 174 ] 2148
Future minimum payments related to the consolvdated statement of financial position rems 22,621 7,735 9,543 520 20,100
Centractual content commiiments 102 4939 2an 2791 17 5041
Commercial commitments 611 29 1417 542 552 3568
Operating leases and subleases %12 273 495 1387 B53 2585
Items nat dad in the lidated statement of financial posttion 10,585 358 5120 1482 11,158
Contractual cbligations and commercial commitments 1,206 1,18 14,763 6,125 31,298
2611 O balance sheet commercial commitments
Mimimum future payments as of December 31 2012 Total minimum futire
Total Payments due in payments as of
{in millions of euros) 2013 2014 2M7 Alter 2017 December 31 2011
Satellite transponders 846 119 382 345 677
Investment commitments {a} 1487 1,093 237 157 2522
QOther 786 294 442 50 614
Given commitments 39 1,506 1,061 552 3813
Satellite transponders {201} {82 {119) - {144
Other {b) {7 {7) - - {101)
Recewed commitments {208) {89) {119) - {245)
Net total 2911 1,417 942 552 3,568

a  Mainly relates to SFR and Maroc Telecom group

o SFR the total amount included €262 million as of December 31, 2012 {compared to €337 million as of December 31, 2011}
related to public service delegations Businesses related to these delegations of public service consist of setting up and
operating telecommunication facilities in certain areas of France for local or regional authonties, as delegates As of December
31, 2011, investment commutments also included €1,065 million related to the 4G license {very-htgh-speed Internet - LTE) which
was granted by the Arcep on December 22, 2011, and paid in January 2012 {please refer to Note 13)

» Maroc Telecom SA and ts capital expenditure program at the end of 2011, the third capital expenditure agreement entered
Into, between Maroc Telecom and the Maraccan State 1n 2009, pursuant to which Marac Telecom had commuitted to carrying
out a capital expenditure program for a tetal amount of MAD 105 billion {approximately €930 million) expired On January 18,
2013, Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement pursuant to which Maroc
Telecom has committed to carrying out a capital expenditure program for a total amount of more than MAD 10 billion
(approximately €908 millton} between 2013 and 2015, which moreover should create 500 direct jobs This program aims to
madernize and expand the infrastructure to meet the growing needs of mobile traffic and broadband Internet as well as the
deployment of a fiber optic network for very-high speed broadband access
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Mainly related, as of December 31, 2011, to commitments received from Bouygues Telecom to SFR in connection with the agreement
to share their investments and fiber-optic herizontal netwarks in very high density areas

2612 Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Mimmum future leases as of December 31 2012 Total - mimmum future
Total Duemn leases as of December
{in mihons of euros} 2013 2014 - 2007 After 2017 31,201
Buildings {a) 2633 470 1,329 834 2409
Other 212 64 103 45 221
Leases 2845 534 1,432 8m 2630
Buildings (a) {110) {38} {45) {28) {41)
Subleases {110) (38} {45} (26) {a1)
Net total 2.735 495 1,387 853 2589

a Marnly relates to offices and technical premises

As of December 31, 2012, provisions of £15 million were recorded in the Statement of Financial Position with respect to operating leases

{compared to €17 million as of December 31, 2011} These provisions maly related to unoccupied buildings

26.2 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref _|Context |Charactenstics  (nature and amount} | Expiry

{ :Given commitments : ]

{a}  {Obligations related to the perrmssion to use the Consolidated Global Profit {Balance of €3 mullion to be paid
System
Indriidual nghts to trazning for French employeas Approx:mately 1 6 million hours [approximatety 1 5 million hours as of December 31,
2011)
SFR s network coverage commitments refated to telecom licenses Please refer to Note 13
(b}  GSM-R commitments Bank guarantee joint and several guarantees with Synérail for a total amount of €32
milhon {compared to €66 million as of December 31 2011)
Obligations in connection with pension pkans and post retirement benefits iPlease refer ta Note 20 -
Commutment to contribute to the VUPS pension fund Guarantee expired in January 2011 201
{¢) |Other guarantees given Cumulated amount of €190 million (E216 million as of December 31 2011} -
iReceived commitments ]
{d) {Agreements on the digital distribution of music nghts Minimum guarantees
Other guarantees receved Cumulated amount of £191 million (€241 million as of December 31, 2011)

a By an order dated March 13, 2009, an authorization to use the Consoldated Global Profit Tax System under Article 209 quinguies of
the French Tax Code was renewed for the period beginning on January 1, 2009 and ending on December 31, 2011 Under the terms of
the permission to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, Vivendi undertook to continue to perform its prewious years'
commitments, In particular with regard to jab creation

b On February 18, 2010, a group compnised of SFR, Vinci and AXA (30% each) and TOF (10%]} entered into a contract with Réseau Ferré
de France regarding the public-private partnership GSM-R This 15-year contract, valued at approximately €1 billion, covers the
financing, building, operation and maintenance of the digital telecommunications network that enables conference mode
communications {voice and data) between train drivers and teams on the ground It will be rolled out gradually until 2015 over
14,000 km of conventional and high-speed railway lines in France

¢ Vivend grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of their operations

d  Manly relates to commitments received by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to mimimum guarantees on
the digital distribution of music nights

26.3 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend: has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
secunties Vivend has notably committed to sell certain EMI Recorded Music assets [please refer to Note 2 1)

In addition, the hquidity nghts regarding the strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN are detailed in Note 23 and the
lquidity nght regarding Lagardére’s 20% interest in Canal+ France 15 detailed in Note 26 5 below

Furthermore, Vivend: and (ts subsidiaries have granted or received purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and
unconsolidated investments, which inclode Numergy, Vevo, Beats, and Spotify
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26.4 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

Ref Ehamctemuc: {nature and amount} Expuy
TR ConngeRt Labrds; T < g7 Y™ TS T T N TSN T URET VAL .., - |
{a)  INBC Yniversal vansacunn {hhay 2004) and subsequem amendrents (2005 Bieaches of 1ax representations
2010} Qblrgation to caver the Most Favared Nation prowvisions and
Remedial actions 2014
Creation of Actsion Blizzard (July 2009) Tax shanng and indemnity agreements
Divestiture of UMG manufacturning and distribution operatians {May 2005) Various commitments for manufacturing and cistribution services 2015
id)  NTakeover of Neuf Cegetel jApri 2008) Commitments undertaken i connection with the authonization of the 1ake aver by the French Mintster of 013
the Economy Industry and Empfayment
| Actuisiuon of Bollord Group 5 ¢hannels (September 2012) Cammutments undertaken in connection with the authonzenon of the acquisiuon {please refer to Nota
22) with
the French Competsuan Autharity 017
- the French Broadcasting Autherity s
Merger of Cyfra+ and o platforms (November 2012) Reiprocal guarantees in favor of TYN
PLN 1 tulhion in the event of a breach of any representanoa or warranty or covenants and ms
PLN 300 millan in the event of a breach of specihic representation o warranty
{c)  [Canal+ Group's pay TV activities n France (January 2007 July 2012) New approval of the acguisiion of TPS and CanalSatetite subject 1o complignce with injunctions 2017
inrdered by the French Campetitan Authaty
Tax and social guarantees wath 2 €162 milhon cap expred on January 4 2011 an
{d)  !Dwestiture of Canal+ Nordic {October 2003 Distnbution guarantees given in favor of Canal Digitat and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former
subsidiary
{e}  [Dwesuture of NC Numéncable (March 2008) Specific guarantees capped at €241 million (including tax and socias nisks) 014
Owestiture af PSG (June 2006} Unhmited epecilic guarantees Fuits
) |Dwestiture of Sithe {December 2000) Specific guarantees capped at $480 milhon
{gt  §Sale of real estate assets lJune 2002} Autonomous first demand guarantees capped at €150 milhon i total {tax and degennial guarantees) 2617
{h)  Early settlement of rental guarantees related to the last three buildings n Cancellauon in Qctober 2012 of guarantees of rental payments obligations following the sale of the 012
Germany [November 2007} companies [€277 mullign as of Degember 31 2011)
{it  |Cvestiture of FTC shares {December 2610) iCommitments undestaken 1 order to end hiigation aver the share ownership of PTC in Paland

1]

(o)
{h}

{k)

divestiture or acquisition of shares

[context

Cther contingent habilities Cumulated amount of €10 milhan (€30 million as of Decembar 31 2011)

Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {September 2012}

Commitments recewved 1n connection with the acquisition ipfease refer to Note 2 1)

Acquisiion of Tele2 France by SFR (July 2007) Cormmitments an the handling and distibution of audip visual content expired in July 2012 2012
Acquishion of Bolloré Sroup s channe!s {September 2012} Guarantees capped at €120 millon iplease refer 1o Note 2 2) 017
Acqusition of 40% of N Vision {Ngvember 2032} Guarantees made by IT) capped at approximately
£28 milhon for general guarantees and 2014
£277 million for specific guarantees {including tax matters free and full ownerstup of shares sold
autharizations / approvals for the exercise of the actmiy)
Merger of Cyfra+ and TVN s n platform [November 2012) FReciprocal guarantees in favar of TVN
PLN 1 biilion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or cavenants 2015
PLN 200 miflion in the event of a breach of specific representatien or wananty and
PLN 145 millron related o Neowision s unutihzed tax lesses camed forward
Acquisition of Kinowelt [Apal 2008} General and specifac guaraniees regarding mowie nights praperty given by the sellers to EuroMedien 014
Babelsheny GmbH expited and
Specific guarantees netably on film nghts were granted by the sellers
Drvestiture of NC Numéncabl (March 2005} £151 mithon counter-guaranteed by France Tefecom 7014
Early settlement of rental guarantees related to the last three buldings in Comraitments expired in October 2012 0z

Germany (November 2007) Pledge over the cash of the dwvested companies sald (€40 mulkon as of December 31 2011} and
Counter-guatanee prowded by she purchaser in the zmoum ot €200 mikon canceited in Octeber 2012
Guarantees amount to €71 milhon

Cumulated amgunt of €58 million {€47 miMion as of December 31 2011)

Dwvestiture of Xfera (2003}
Other pantingent assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabifities described above

d
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As part of the NBC Universal transaction which occurred 1in May 2004, Vivend and General Electric {GE) gave certain reciprocat
commitments customary for this type of transactron, and Vivend retained certain liabilities refating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertook to indemnify each other against losses resulting from, amaong other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants

Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses anising as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
(1} for any indwidual item where the loss 1s less than $10 milhion and {11} in respect of each indvidual item where the loss s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be
required 10 pay the amount of fosses which exceeds $325 mithon, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2,088 million

In addition, Vivendi will have indemnification obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up to $50 million and for all losses in
excess of $50 million relating to habilities ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of 1ACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivend:'s liability 1s now subject to a de minimis exception of $10 million and & payment basket of $325 miliion

Vivend: /129




Tuesday February 26 2013

The representations and warranues given as part of the NBC Umiversal transaction other than those regarding authonzation,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation must be
brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those refated to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of limitations

The sale of Vivendr's interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

b As part of the takeover of Neuf Cegetel, the approval fram the Ministry of Ecanomy, Industry and Employment, dated April 15, 2008,
resulted in additional commitments from Vivend and i1ts subsidianies They address competitor access and new market entrants to
wholesale markets on SFR's fixed and mobiie networks, acceptance on the fixed network of an independent tefevision distributor if
such a player appears, as well as the avallability, on a non-exclusive basis, of ADSL on eight new channels which are |eaders in ther
particular field {Pans Premigre, Teva, Jimmy, Ciné Cinéma Famiz, three M6 Music channels and Fun TV) Most of these commitments
have expired, excluding those related to pay-TV, which will expire in April 2013

¢ On August 30, 2006, the TPS/Canal+ Group merger was authorized, in accordance with the merger control regulations, pursuant to a
decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group complying with certain
undertakings for a maximum penod of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels and
V0D, which could not exceed five years
On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry regarding the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS
For more information on the enquiry inta compliance with certain undertakings given in connection with the merger of Canal Satellite
and TPS, please refer to Note 27, below
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivench and Canal + Group's filed motions requesting the annuiment of
the French Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 million Under the second metion, the transaction was cleared once agam, subject ta
comphance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, which have been by, for some since July 23, 2012 and others since
October 23, 2012, mainly focusing on
s Acquisition of movie rights

by limiting the duration of output deals to three years, requinng separate agreements for different types of rights (1% pay-TV
window, 2 pay-TV window, senes, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- by divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senes — 0CS SNC or by adopting measures limiting 1ts influence on Orange Cinema
Senes — 0CS SNC
* [Distnbution of pay-TV channels
- by the distribution of a mimmum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium nghts, and
by drafting a model distribution deal relating to independent channels mncluded in the CanalSat offer,
by the obligation to promote, in a transparent and separate mannes, the distribution of exclusve independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all (ts own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group {Cine+ channels) available to third-party distnibutors
{unbundling)
» Video on demand (VOD) and subscription video on demand {SVOD)
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of V0D and SVOD nghts on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with nghts purchased for linear distnbution on pay-TV,
- by offenng StudioCanal's VOO and SVOD nights to any interested operator, and
- by foridding exclusive distnbution deals for the benefit of Canak+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are imposed for a penod of five years, renewable once At the end of the five-year penod, the French Competition
Authonty will review the competition situation in order to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these imunctions be waived or partially or totally
revised An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competitron Authority on September 25, 2012,
will be respansible for monitoring the injunctions implementation

In addition, as part of the sale of a 20% interest in Canal+ France to Lagardére Active on January 4, 2007, Canak+ Group made tax and
social representations and warranties to Lagardére Active with a €162 million cap on the entities held by Canal+ France, excluding
CanalSatellite, Muluthématiques and the TPS entities The tax and social guasantees expired on January 4, 201

Moreover, Vivend: granted a counter-guarantee, in favor of TF1 and M6 to assume commitments and guarantees made by TF1 and M6
in connection with some of the contractual content commitments and other long term obligations of TPS and cther cbligations
recognized n the Statement of Financial Position of TPS As of December 31, 2012, the remaining amount of these commitments was
not significant and the counter-guarantee expired on January 4, 2013
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d  Inconnection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group has retained distnbution quarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary, which guarantees are covered by a counter-guarantee given by
the buyers

¢  Aspart of the divestiture of NC Numéncable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap {including tax and social risks) Specific nsks relating to cable networks used by NC Numéncable are included in this maximum
amount and are counter-guaranteed by France Telecom up to €151 mithon

f In connect:on with the sale of 1ts 49 9% interest in Sithe to Exelon in Decernber 2000, Vivend! granied customary representations and
guarantees Claims, other than those made n relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 mithon In addition,
claims must exceed $15 million, except if they relate to foreign subsidiaries or the divestiture of certain electncal stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these guarantees expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments still exist and any
potential liabilities refated to contamimation risks will survive for an indefinite penod of time

g In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several substdianies of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30,2017

h  After having sold the companies carrying credit lease commitments in relation to the Berlin buildings Lindencorso, Anthropalis and
Dianapark (the "Compames”), tn November 2007 Vivend) continued to guarantee certain lease payment obligations As a result of the
early exercise by the Companies of their call options on the buildings, Vivend's guarantees were terminated on October 5, 2012, for
an amount of €277 mullion as of December 31, 2011 In return, the counter-guarantee provided by the acauirors of the Companies to
Vivendi (€200 million} was cancelled, as well as the pledge over the cash of the dvested companies to the benefit of Vivend: (€40
million as of December 31, 2011} Vivend: has retained tax guarantees given at the time of the disposal of the Companies

I On December 14, 2010, Vivend:, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak (Elektrim’s main shareholder) and Elektrim’s creditors, including
the Polish State and Elektnm's bondholders, entered into various agreements to put an end to the htigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC), a mobile telecommurication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend:
notably entered into the following commitments

s VYivend granted to Deutsche Telekom & guarantee over Carcom that capped at €600 million and maturing 1n August 2013,

e Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm SA (Elektnm} for the tax consequences of the transaction, with a cap at
€20 milhon This commitment expired in July 2011 and the claims have been settled in June 2012,

s  Vivend committed to compensate Law Debenture Trust Company (LOTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought agamnst LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an armount up to 18 4% for the first €125 milhion,
46% between €125 milion and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

e Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm’'s administrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the degisions that were taken to end certain procedures

| The Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 between Tele2 Europs SA and SFR contains representations and
warranties which expired on January 20, 2009 and warrantigs relating to claims ansing with respect to tax and social matters, which
expired end of March 2012 On July 18, 2007, by way of implementation of the European Union ant:trust requlation, the European
Commssion approved the purchase of the fixed and internet activities of Tele2 France by SFR, subject to commitments on the handling
and distribution of audio-visual content for a five-year penod All these commitments expired on July 18, 2012

k Vivend received guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (€71 miilion}, in the event of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax itgation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 million

Several guarantees given in 2012 and duning prior years tn connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the ime
perods or statute of hmitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabihities, n
consideration of share ownership, or given 1n connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivend:'s knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivends regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and hitigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactians
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26.5 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements {pnimanly those relating to Actwision Blizzard, Maroc Telecom group, Canal+ France,
as well as "nc+"), Vivendi holds certain nights {such as pre-emptive nights, priority nghts} which give 1t control over the capital structure of
consalidated companies partialty owned by minority shareholders Conversely, Vivend has granted similar nights to these other shareholders
in the event that 1t sells its interests to thurd parties

In addition, pursuant te other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivend:
and its subsidianes have given or receved certain nghts (pre-emptive and other nights) entitiing them to maintain their shareholder's nghts

Strategic agreements among Vivendi, Canal+ Group, Lagardére, and Lagardére Holding TV

Pursuant to the Canal+ France strategic agreements entered into on January 4, 2007, Lagardére was granted nghts to maintain (ts econormic
interest in Canal+ France, with varsng nghts according to the level of its participation n Canal+ France Under no circumstances will
Lagardére have any joint control of Canal+ France The main provisions of these strategic agreements are as follows

e  The Chawman and all the members of the Management Board of Canal+ France are appointed by Canal+ Group Lagardére 1s
represented by two members out of the ten members of the supervisory board

e lagardére has certain veto nghts over Canal+ France and, in certain cases, over its major subsidiaries ncluding 1n the event of a
change in the by-laws, a major permanent change in the business, 1ts transformation into a company n which the partners would
have unhimited liabality, a single nvestment representing mare than a third of consolidated revenues, a tender offer for the
company’s shares, In certain circumstances the entry of a third party as a shareholder, and certain other nghts {including a tag-
along right, an anti-dilution night, and certain bidding nights in the event of the sale of Canal+ France} intended to protect its
economic interest Vivend: has a pre-emptive night in the event of a sale of Lagardére’s equity interest

s  Between 2008 and 2014, Lagardére will have a hquidity night exercisable between March 15 and Apnl 15 of each calendar year,
provided, however, that Lagardére owns at least 10% but no more than 20% of the share capital and voting nghts of Canal+
France, {and taking into account the fact that Lagardére did not exercise 1ts night to exercise its call option enabling 1t to own 34%
of the capital of Canal+ France} Pursuant to this liquidity nght, Lagardre is entitled to request a public offering of Canal+ France
shares Similarly, as 1n 2010 and 2011, on March, 26, 2012, Lagardére exercised its liquidity nght for 2012 On May 30, 2012,
Lagardere confirmed the exercise of its liquidity nght On June 27, 2012, Vivend: notified Lagardére of 1ts intention not to acquire
its 20% interest at the proposed price A new Initial Public Offering {IPQ) process was launched on July 12, 2012, which has not
been successful to date

e  The financing of Canal+ France has been structured through a mechanism which includes shareholders” loans and the delivery of
quarantees with respect to Canal+ France’s obligations Pursuant to this mechanism, Lagardére has the option to participate in
such financing and guarantee arrangements pro rata its leve! of ownership in the share capital of the company

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

For a detalied description of the key Liquidity nights under the strategic partnership regarding pay-TV in Poland, please refer to Note 2 3

In addition, in comphiance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it 1s stated that some rights and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements {Maroc Telecom group, and Canal+ Cyfrowy) may be amended or termnated in the event of a
change In control of Vivendi or a tender offer being made for Vivendl These shareholders” agreements are subject to confidentiality
provisions

26.6 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2012, the amount of the group’s assets that were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties was €209 millon
{compared to €203 million as of December 31, 2011) This amount pnmanly includes GVT's pledged assets with respect to judicial
guarantees for various htigations

{in mMions of euros) December 31 2012 December 31 2011

On intangible assets 8 12
On tangible assets 437 52
On financial assets 146 131
On cash 8 8
Total 209 203

Moreaver, Vivend! does not hold any third-party guarantees in respect of any of its receivables outstanding as of December 31, 2012 nor did
it have any as of December 31, 2011

Financiat Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivends /132




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Note 27 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceed.ngs (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivend's best estimate of the
nisk, provided that Vivend) may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events occur duning such proceedings As of December 31, 2012, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all claims and litigations amounted to €1,357 million, compared to €479 mithon at December 31, 2011 (please refer
to Note 19)

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature including, te the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, business and praperty, other than those described herain

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivend!'s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Tnal of Vivendi's farmer officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office (Parquet de Pars) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading infermation regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought n this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The tnal took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11% Chamber of the Pars Trbunal of Fist Instance {Tnbunal de Grande
Instance de Pans), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants

On January 21, 2011, the Court rendered 1ts judgment, 1n which it confirmed the previous recogmition of Vivendi as a cvil party Messrs
Jean Mane Messier, Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys recewved suspended sentences and fimes Messis Messier and
Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend: officers as
well as some civil parties appealed the decision The tnial before the Court of appeals 1s scheduled to take place from October 28 to
November 26, 2013

On January 7, 2010, Philippe Foiret summoned Vivend: and Veolia to appear before a Cnminal Court in an attempt to hold them liable for the
offences committed by their former managers On January 27, 2012, the Cniminal Court dismissed Mr Fouret's application

Securities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed agamst Vivend), Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the Un:ted States Distnict Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New York
court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled in re Vivend: Universal S A Secunties Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants wiolated certain provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consohidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potentiat claimants as a class {“class certification™,
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amenican Depositary
Receipts (ADRs} of Vivend: {formerly Vivend Uriversal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included m the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the securities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court issued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned its verdict 1t found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10(b} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they falled to disclose the existence of an alleged “hquidity nsk™ which
reached 1ts peak in December 2001 However, the |ury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Manie Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class perod in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
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The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets {12 days} during the class perod

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, i a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrson v National Australia Bank case, that American
secunties law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a security listed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunty in the United States ”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applymg the "Momson™ decsion, confirmed Vivendr's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Panis stock exchange and mited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendi's post-trial
motions challenging the jury’s verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 201, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the clarm of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Paris stock exchange

In & dectsion dated January 27, 2012 and rssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Mornison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the indvidual plaintffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice have 150 days from that date to provide information and documentation evidencing the validity of therr claim
Vivendi will then have the right to challenge the ments of these claims At the end of this process, which should be completed duning the
second quarter of 2013, the judge will be able to determine the total amount of damages and enter a final judgment, thereby enabling
Vivendi to commence 1ts appeal

Vivendi believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal at the appropnate times Vivend: intends to challenge, among other issues, the
plantiffs’ theories of causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial
Severa! aspects of the verdict wil! also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described 1n Notes 131 {Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Provisions) Vivend made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 milhon in respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay 1o plaintiffs Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York gn
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s dectsion on June 24, 2010 in the Morrison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve and set 1t at £100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, if any, that Vivend: might have to pay sclely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Caonsequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recogmzed a €450 million reversal of reserve, compared to an accrual of
€550 million as of December 31, 2009

Vivend considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi rmight have ta pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estimate As s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at thes stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivendi

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Mane Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend) and
Liberty Media relating to the format:on of Vivend: Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain prowisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the securities class action for pre-tnal purpeses but was subseguently deconsolidated on March 2 2009 for purposes of
tnal The judge granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the secunities class
action jury with respect to Vivendi's hability (theory of “collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned 1ts verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend hiable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Med:a in the amount of €765 million Vivend: has filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury's verdict, including motions requesting
that the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for fack of evidence and order a new trial

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend: /134




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

On January 8, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year U S Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-trial motrons, which were denied on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of
Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t beligves 1t has strong arguments

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and following the entry of the final judgment by the Court, at December 31, 2012,
Vivend: recognized a provision in the amount of €945 milhion

LBBW et al against Vivend)

{Jn March 4, 2011, twenty-six institutional westars fram Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, lreland, Italy, Sweden, Belguum and Austna filed a
complaint against Vivendi with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications rssued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Then on Aprd 10 and on Apnl
23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Yivend: the first one by a US pensien fund, the Public Employee Retirement System of
Idaho and the other by six German and British nstitutional investors Finally, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend: on the same basis

Califormia State Teachers Retirement System et al agarnst Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier

On Aprl 27, 2012, sixty-seven institutional foreign investors filed a complaint aganst Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier before the Paris
Commercial Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and its
former leader, between 2000 and 2002 On September 6, 2012, twenty-four new plaintiffs joined these proceedings, however, in November
2012, two plaintiffs withdrew from the proceedings

Lagardére against Vivendi, Canal+ Group and Canal + France

On February 12, 2013, Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% sharehotder of Canal + France, filed a complaint against Vivend), Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Pans Commercial Court The Lagardere group 1s seeking nullification of the cash management agreement entered
into between Canal + France and Canal+ Group on the grounds that 1t constitutes a related party agreement and hence, i1s seeking
restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group. of the entire cash surplus given aver by Canal+ France under the agreement, 1 e, the sum of
€16 bilhon Vivend: formally denies the allegations of the Lagardere Group as to the nature of this agreement, which should be considered
ordinary course, and intends to vigorously defend its rights

Vivend) Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM {a subsidiary of Vivendi) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due pursuant
to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal,
which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay damages
Yiventh delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008, CGIS BIM
challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court issued a degision setting aside the
judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010, the Berlin
Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in April 2009, which decided 1 CGIS's favor
and confirmed the invalicity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase the building and
pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG f:led a second claim for additional damages in the Berhin Regional Court
which was sesved on CGIS on March 3, 2003 The Court, which had previously suspended this proceeding, must now rule on the validity of
this claim

Free against SFR

On May 21, 2012, Free filed a complaint against SFR with the Paris Commercial Court Free is challenging SFR's model of subsidizing mobile
phone purchases through what Free calls “concealed” consumer loans and claims this constitutes an unfair and deceptive trade practice On
January 15, 2013, the Court dismissed Free’s claims and ordered 1t to pay to SFR €300,000 in damages for defamation and €100.000 for
costs Fres appealed this decision

Vivendi's complaint against France Télécom before the European Commission for abuse of a dominant position

On March 2, 2009, Vivend: and Free jointly filed a complaint against France Télécom before the European Commussion (the “Comemissian”),
for abuse of a dominant position Vivend and Free allege that France Télécom imposes excessive tanffs on offers for access to its fixed
network and on telephone subscriptions [n July 2009, Bouygues Telecom joined in this complaint In a letter dated February 2, 2010, the
Commussion mformed the partres of its intention to dismiss the complamt On September 17, 2010, Vivend: filed an appeal before the Court
of First Instance of the European Umion in Luxemburg
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Complaint aganst France Télécom and Qrange before the French Competition Authority

On August 8, 2010, SFR filed a complaint before the French Competition Authonity against France Télécom and Orange for anti-competitive
practices on the professional mobite market This case 15 under investigation

Complaint lodged with the French Competition Authority by Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte and Outre Mer Telecom against
Société Réunionnaise du Radiotéléphone (SRR}

Orange Réunion and Orange Mayotte filed a complaint against SRR (an SFR subsidiary} for alleged discnminatary practices On September
15, 2009, the French Competition Authority imposed temporary protective measures en SRR, requining 1t to propose to its subscrberss offers
which do not discriminate based on the network used, except where they reflect the differences in costs amongst the network operators On
August 18, 2011, the French Competition Authonity provided SRR with a report stating that SRR had not complied with the order and, on
January 24, 2012, the French Competition Authonity ordered SRR to pay a fing of €2 million The investigation 1s ongotng

Complaint of Bouygues Telecom against SFR and Orange in connection with the call termination and mobile markets

Bouygues Telecom brought a claim before the French Competition Council against SFR and Orange for certain alleged unfar trading
practices i the call termmation and mobile markets {“pnce scissoring”) On May 15, 2009, the French Competition Authonty {the
“Authority”) resolved to postpone its decision on the 1ssue and remanded the case for further investigation On December 13, 2010, SFR was
heard on these allegations by the instructing magistrate On August 18, 2011, SFR received a notification of grievances in which the
Authority noted the existence of abusive price discnimination practices On December 13, 2012, the Authanty fined SFR €65 708 million SFR
has appealed this decision

SFR against France Télécom

On August 10, 2011, France Télécom filed a claim against SFR before the Pans Commercial Court France Télécom asked the Court to compel
SFR to stop the overflow traffic at the point of interconnection of their respective networks

CLCV against SFR and other telecom operators

On January 7, 2013, the French consumer protection association, CLCV {consumption, haousing and quality of life) sued several French
telecom operators, including SFR, before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance It 1s seeking the removal of certain clauses that it considers
abusive from subscription contracts

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance following the termination of its rights
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels i Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, the Canal+ Group was prohibited, under fing, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or those replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partiaily reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was again unsuccessful +n its claims concerning the content
of the channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the
French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanous yunsdictions have taken the
opportunity to recall that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal + Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a channel
of similar attractiveness Non-comphiance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a claim
aganst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre
(Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine (a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected
by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012, Parabole
Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels

In parallel with the foregoing proceedings, on October 21, 2008, Parabole Réunion and its shareholders filed a claim against Canal Réunion,
Canal Qverseas, CanalSatellite Réunion, Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnbution, seeking the enfercement of the agreement
entered into on May 30, 2008, pursuant to which the companies would combine their TV channel broadcasting activities in the Indian Ocean
The execution of this agreement was contingent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent As these conditions were not
satisfied, the agreement became null and void On June 15, 2009, the Commercial Court rejected Parabole Réunton's claim Parabole
Réumon appealed this decision and the appeal was denied On May 23, 2011, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court This
appeal was dismissed on May 30, 2012

On Apnl 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Pans Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunon and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy
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Action brought by the French Competition Authanty regarding practices in the Pay TV sector

On January 9. 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by France Télécom, the French Competition Authanity sent Vivend)
and Groupe Canal+ a notification of allegations It alleges that Groupe Canal+ has abused 1ts dominant positcon n certain Pay TV markets
and that Vivendi and Groupe Canal+ colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand, and with Lagard@re, on the other Vivend: and Groupe
Canal+ have each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, 1n respect of Groupe Canal+ The French Competition Authenty requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Groupe Canal+'s exclusive distnbution nights on channels broadcast by the group and by
independent channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardere channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On
December 17, 2010, France Telécom appealed the decision before the Court of Appeal Vivendi and Groupe Canal+ joined these appeal
proceedings On July 15, 2011, France Télecom withdrew 1ts application for an annulment of the decision of the Competition Authority

Inquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given in connection with the merger of CanalSatelhite and TPS

The French Competition Authonty opened an tnquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given by Vivend: and Canal+ Group in
connection with the merger of TPS and CanalSatellite

On September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authanty rendered a decision in which 1t established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some it considered essential — on which depended its decision authorizing, in 2008, the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivend: and Canal+ Group As a consequence, the French Competition Authonity withdrew the merger authonzation,
requining Vivend: and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competition Authority within one month Furthermare, the
French Competition Authonty ordered Canal+ Group to pay a €30 million fine

On October 24, 2011, the transaction was re-notified to the French Competition Authonity On November 4, 2011, Vivend) and Canal+ Group
filed an appeal before the French Council of State against the French Competition Authonity’s decision dated September 20, 2011 As part of
this procedure, Canal+ Group had Hled two Prionty Constitutional Questions {QPCS) concerning this decrsion, which were referred to the
French Constrtutional Council by the French Council of State on July 17, 2012 On October 12, 2012, the French Constitutional Councl
declared that the legal and statutory provisions in question were constitutional

On July 23, 2012, the French Competition Authonty 1ssued its decision on this new notification It authonzes the acquisiton of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivendi and Canal+ Group, subject to compliance with a certain number of injunctions These injunctions are primanly
focused on the acquisition of film nights from American studios and French producers, the participation of Canal+ Group in Orange Cinema
Seres, the distributien of premium channels and non-linear services {video on demand and subscription video on demand)

On August 30, 2012, Vivendi and Canal+ Group fied an appeal before the French Council of State to obtan the cancellation of the July 23,
2012 decision In addition, Vivend and Canal+ Group have filed two motions, one seeking a suspension of the September 20, 2011 decision
and the other seeking a suspension of the July 23, 2012 dectsion

The French Council of State rejected these requests for suspension on September 17, 2012 and October 22, 2012, respectively A hearing on
the ments of the cancellation of the French Competition Authonty's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 was held on
December 14, 2012 On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State essentially confirmed the two decisions of the French Cempetition
Authonty, however, it reduced the fine of £30 million to €27 million because two of the alleged breaches were unfounded

Complaints against music industry majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other musig
industry majors for alleged ant-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court, on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petibon with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process Is underway

FBT & Eminem against UMG

On May 21, 2007, FBT (the label owned by Erinem) filed suit against UMG claiming breach of contract in connection with the production of
an album and requesting that the court arder additional payment of royalties for on-line sales of music downloads and ningtones On March
6. 2009, the Los Angeles Court dismissed FBT's claims and FBT appealed The Court of Appeal overturned the lower court's decision On
March 21, 2011, the U S Supreme Court, without ruling on the menits of the case, refused to hear an appeal from UMG, which 1s within its
judicial discretion [n a decision dated June 27, 2012, the Court allowed FBT and Eminem to broaden the scope of their complamt and
challenge the calculation of royafties on music downloads outside the Umited States On October 19, 2012, the parties entered to a
settlement agreement that ended this htigation
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Complaints against UMG regarding royalties for digital downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on-line sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Studio Infinity Ward, subsidiary of Activision Blizzard

After concluding an internal human resources inquiry into breaches of contract and insubordination by two sentor employees at Infinity
Ward, Activision Blizzard terminated the employment of Jason West and Vince Zampella on March 1, 2010 On March 3, 2010, West and
Zampella filed a complaint against Actvision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Superior Court for breach of contract and wrongful termination On
Apnl 9, 2010, Activision Bhizzard filed a cross complaint against West and Zampella, asserting ¢laims for breach of contract and fiduciary
duty In addition, 38 current and former employees of Infinity Ward filed a complaint against Activision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Supertor
Court on Apnil 27, 2010 for breach of contract and violation of the Labor Code of the State of Califorma On July 8, 2010, an amended
complaint was filed which added a further seven plaintiffs They claim that the company failed to pay bonuses and other compensation
allegedly owed to them

On December 21, 2010, Activision Blizzard filed a consolidated cross complaint to add Electronic Arts as a party, the discovery having shown
the complicity of Electronic Arts in the case The Los Angeles Court, following Activision Blizzard's request, agreed to transfer the case to
the Complex Diwision On May 31, 2012, the parties entered into a settlement agreement that ended this dispute

Telefonica against Vivendr in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP, Telefonica’s Brazilian subsidiary, filed a claim aganst Vivend before the Civil Court of Sdo Paulo (3° Vara Civel do
Fore Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S&o Paulo) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquiring
control of GVT and damages in the amount of 15 miflion Brazil:an reals (approximately 55 million eurcs) corresponding to the expenses
incurred by TELESP in connection with 1ts offer for GVT At the beginming of September, 2011, Vivend filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of 580 Paulo to hear a case nvolving part:es from Curstiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apni 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeals On the merits, Vivendi refuted all of Telefonica’s claims In
particular, Vivendi believes that Telefonica cannot claim to have suffered any “loss of chance” considenng that its President confirmed in a
public statement that 1t did not want to outbid Vivendi Vivend has also filed a counterciaim seeking to be compensated for damages
suffered as a result of the “smear campaign” carmed out aganst Vivendi by Telefonica since late 2009

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S50 Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majority of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Vivendi took control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed (the "paison pill provision”} should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend
Vivend), noting that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo's allegations

Hedging-Gniffo against Vivend:

On September 4, 2012, Hedging-Gniffo filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arntration Chamber of the Bovespa {Sdo Paulo Stock
Exchange} seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the acquisition
of GVT 1n 2009 Hedging-Griffo demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the
market and the pnce paid by Vivend: in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares Vivend believes that the decision taken by the
Hedging-Gniffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market battle that opposed Vivend: against Telephonica was their
own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in no way be attnbutable to Vivend:

Actions related to the ICMS tax

GVT s party in several Brazilian States to various proceedings concerning the apphication of the "ICMS” tax ICMS {impostors Sober
Circulagaos de Mercadonias e Prestagdos de Servigos) 1s a tax on operations relating to the crculation of goods and the supply of transport,
communication and electrcity services

0On August 5, 2011, Confaz, the national council in charge of coordinating the tax policies of the Brazilan States, published a draft proposal
allowing GVT, as well as all other companies that dispute the application of ICMS on Internet and Broadband services, to enter into
negotiations with the objective of settling the past disputes and clanfying the rules for the future As of today, GVT has reached agreement
with all of the states in which (t operates with the exception of Rio de Janeiro
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In addition, GVT 15 & party to litigation n vanous Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the twenty proceedings intiated by GVT, eighteen have
resulted in decisions favorable to GVT and twelve are no longer subject to appeal

Action related to the FUST and FUNTTEL taxes in Brazil

The Brazihan tax authonties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as "FUST” (Fundo da Universalizagdos dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagds), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazihan ternitory, ncluding in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnol6gioco das TelecomunicagBes), a federal tax to
finance technological investments in Braziian telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or Interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lsad to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspenston of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authanty from the
federal judge

Proceedings brought against telecommunications operators in Brazil regarding the application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were imitiated against all the telecommunications operators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as "PIS” (Programa de Integragdos Social) and "COFINS” (Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Segundade
Social}, which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the prowision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
Its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators insofar as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows
it to set its own tanffs
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Note28 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 690 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method (compared to
approxmately 530 entities as of December 31, 2011)

December 31 2012 December 31 2011
Country Aceaunting Yoting Qwnership Accauntng Voting Ownership
Note Method Interest Interest Method Interest Interest

Vivendi S.A France Parent compony Parent company

Actiision Blizzard, Inc {a) 18 United States c 615% 1.5% c % 0%
Actraision Publtshing Ing United States [ 100% §15% c 100% 0%
Blizzard Entertainment inc United States c 100% 515% C 100% 0%
ATVICY Netherlands C 160% 515% C 100% 0%

Colperatie Actvision Bhzzard International U A Netherlands C 100% 61 5% [ 100% 80%
ABPariners CV Netherlands C 100% 615% c 100% 60%
Actvsion Bhzard Benelux B ¥ Netherlands c 100% 615% C 100% 60%
Actmsion Blizzard Deutschland GmbH Gemany c 100% 67 5% c 100% 0%
Actision Blizzard France SA S France C 100% 615% C 100% 0%
Actvision Bhizzard Pty Limsted Australia C 100% 615% C 100% 50%
Bhzzard Entertainment Korea Limited Korea ¢ 100% 615% [ 100% 0%
Bhzzard Entertainment $ A S France C 100% 615% [N 100% 0%
Actvision Birzzard UK Limited United Kingdom C 100% 67 5% C 100% 60%

Universal Music Group Inc United States [ 100% 100 0% c 100% 100%
PolyGram Holding Inc United States c 100% 150% o 100% 100%
UMG Recordings Inc United States c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Vevo United States E 0% 50% E 50% 50%
SiG 104 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

Centenary Holding B ¥ Netheriands C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

Universal Intarmaticnal Music BV Netherlands C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

Unwversa! Entertainment GmbH Germany C 0% 100% C 100% 100%

Unwversal Music LLC Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

Universal Music France SA S France C 100% 100% [ 100% 160%

Universal Muysic Holdings Limited United Kingdom C 100% 106% ¢ 100% 100%

EMI Group Warldwide Holding Ltd 21 United Kingdom C 100% 100%

SFR Societé Frang du Radioteléphone 5.A France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Société Réunionnaise du Radiotéléphone SC S France c 100% 100% c 100% 190%
Sociéts Financigre de Distnbution S A France [ 100% 100% C 100% 0%
5s5ur58A France ™ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
La Poste Telecom France E 49% 45% E 49% 45%
Numergy 24 France E 41% 47%

Maroc Telocom S.A. Marocco c 5% 5% c 3% 3%
Maurttel § A Maumtana C 51% 2% C 51% 2%
Onatel S A Burkina Faso [ 51% 7% C 51% 27%
Gabon Telecom 5 A Gabon C 51% 7% c 51% 27%
Sotelma S A Mal c 51% 7% C 51% 27%

Global Village Telacom (Holding) S.A. Brazl c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Globa! Village Telecom Ltda Brazil C 100% 100% C 00% 100%
POP Internet Lida Brazl [ 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Innoweb Ltda Brazl C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

Groupe Canol+ S.A Fronce c 100% T00% c 100% 100%
Canal+ France 5 A France c 80% B0% C 0% 80%

Société d Editton de Canal Plus {b) France o 45% 39% C 49% 39%
Multithématiques S A § France c 100% 50% C 100% 80%
TPS Star SNC Ie) France C 100% a0%
Canal+ Overseas S A § France C 100% 0% G 100% 80%
Canal+ Distnbution SA S France o 100% 0% C 100% 0%
i} 12 France C 100% 150%
StudioCanal S A France C 100% 150% C 100% 100%
TVN(d 21 Poland E 40% 21%
Canal+ Cyfrowy 5 A {d) 23 Poland C 51% 5% c 75% 7%
VSTV (e} Vietnam C 49% 49% c 49% 49%

Other
See Tickets Urited Kingdom C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Dhgstack France " 100% 100% M 92% 2%
Vivendi Mobile Emertainment France C 100% 100% C 100% 190%
Wengo France C 100% 55% C 100% 100%
Elektnm Tetekomunikac)a Poland [ 100% 106% c 100% 100%

C Consolidated, E Equity

a  Vivend: consohdates Acbvision Blizzard and 1ts subsidianes because it holds the right to appoint a majonty of members to Activision
Blizzard's Board of Directors and thus has the power to govern Activision Bhizzard's financial and operational policies in order to obtain
benefits from its operations Until July 2013, the approval of certain matters by the Activision Blizzard Board of Directors requires the
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affirmative vote of a majonty of the votes present or otherwise able to be cast by the board and at least a majonity of the independent
directors of the board However, until July 2013, the distnbution of any dwvidend by Activision Bhizzard requires the affirmative vote of
a majonty of the independent directors if Activision Blhizzard's pro forma net debt, afier giving effect to such dividend, exceeds
$400 milhon  Moreover, due to Activision Blizzard's stock repurchase program, the exercise of stock options, restricted stocks, and
other dilutive Instruments by Activisian Blizzard's employses, Vivend's awnership interest in Activision Blizzard may fluctuate from
time to time

In 2011, Canal+ SA was renamed Société d'Edition de Canal Plus This company 15 consolidated because {1} Vivends has mayjonty
control over the board of directors, (1) no ather shareholder or shareholder group 1s i a position to exercise substantive participating
rights that would allow them to veto or block decisions taken by Vivend: and (in) Vivend: assumes the majonty of nisks and benefits
pursuant to an agreement with this company via Canal+ Distribution SAS Indeed, Canal+ Distrbution, wholly-owned by Vivendi,
guarantees this company’s results in return for exclusive commercial rights to 1ts subscnber base

On October 1, 2012, the company TPS Star S N C was merged with the company Multithématiques S A S by means of a transfer of
assets

On November 30, 2012, as part of the strategic partnership involving Polish pay-TV, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision,
which indwrectly holds 52% of TVN Simultaneously, Canal+ Group’s ownership aof Canat+ Cyfrawy S A {Cyfra+ platform) was diluted
by the contribution of the company [Tl Neovision ("n" platform} Therefore, as of December 31, 2012, Canal+ Group held a 51%
interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy which owns the company ITI Neovision at 100%

VSTV {Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s 43% held by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a VTV subsichary {the
Vietnamese public television company} This company has been consolidated by Vivend: given that Canal+ Group has both operational

and financial control over 1t due to a general delegation that was granted by the majority shareholder and to the company’s bylaws

Note29  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivend: SA to 1ts statutary auditors and members of thew firms in 2012 and 2011 were as follows
KPMG S A

Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Total
{in millions of euros} 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 012 201 2012 201
Statutory audit certificateon, consolidated and
indnndual financeal statements audit
Issuer 07 07 7% 14% 09 049 12% 1% 16 16
Fully consohdated subsidiaries 41 35 42% 68% 51 50 69% 64% 92 85
DOthes work and services directly related to the
statutory audit
Issuer 06 01 6% 2% 01 06 1% 8% 07 07
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 27 08 28% 12% 04 10 5% 13% N 16
Subtotal gt 49 83% 96% 65 75 87% 96% 146 124
Other services provided by the network to fully
consolidated subsidiaries
Legal tax and social matters 12 0t 12% 2% 09 01 12% 1% 21 02
Other 04 01 5% 2% 01 02 1% 3% 05 03
Subtotal 16 02 17% 4% 10 03 13% 4% 25 05
Total 9.7 51 100% 100% 15 18 100% 100% 11.2 129

The 2012 fees included the non-recurring assignments undestaken by statutory auditors in relation with the transactions underway
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Note 30 Subsequent events

The maim events that occurred between December 31, 2012 and February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved the financial statements for the fiscal year 2012 are as follows

January 9, 2013 U'S court ruling :n the lawswt between Vivend: and Liberty Med:a Corporation (please refer to Note 27),

January 16, 2013 Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement (please refer to
Note 26),

February 7, 2013 Vivend and Universal Music Group entered into a defimitive agreement to sell Parlophone Label Group, a unit of
EMI Recorded Music, to Wamer Music Group for £487 million {approximately €600 million) to be paid in cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivend:, Canal+ Group and
Canal+ France with the Pans Commercial Court Lagardére Group 15 seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France {please refer to Note 27}, and

February 15, 2013 Vivend and Universal Music Group signed a defimitive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG for
£40 million to be paid in cash
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Note 31  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend! S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
tndicated, m order for them to claim exemption from audit under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LWITED 3478018
DECCA MUSIC GRQUP LIMITED 718329
UNIVERSAL MUSIC {UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 853087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC GROUP INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 1778189
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK} LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 3506757
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 2037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGS LIMITED 2200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 37282
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 5092413
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 1862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
HELTER SKELTER AGENCY LIMITED 3522889
SANCTUARY (W AR ) LIMITED 5221402
SANCTUARY (UB4G} LIMITED 3158521
SANCTUARY ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 1890289
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 2898402
SANCTUARY STUDIOS LIMITED 3050388
THE SANCTUARY GROUP LIMITED 284340
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 3205625
UMG! (ATW) LIMITED 5103127
EMI Music France Holdco Ltd 6405604
EM | Dverseas Holdings Ltd 403200
EMI Group Electronics Ltd 461611
EMI Group Holdings {UK} 3158108
EMI Group International Holdings Ltd 1407770
EMI Group Wortdwide 3158106
EMI Ltd 53317
EMI Music UK Holdco Ltd 6388309
Virgin Music Graup 2259349
Virgin Records Overseas Ltd 335444
EMI Music ltaly Holdeo Ltd 6420934
EMI Recorded Music Holdings (Italy) Ltd 6420969
EMI{IP) Ltd 3984464
EMI Catalogue Investments Hotland Ltd 3038313
EMI Group America Finance Ltd 2415597
EMI Group Danish Investments Ltd 2421891
EMI Group Finance Denmark Ltd 2422007
EMI Investments Holland Ltd 3038307
EM! Recorded Music Holdings (UK Ltd 6407212
EMIG 4 Ltd 3038275
VRL 1 Ltd 3967882
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